



TAMIL NADU ELECTION WATCH 2011

ANALYSIS OF CRIMINAL, FINANCIAL AND OTHER DETAILS OF MLAS AND CANDIDATES FROM TAMIL NADU

BASED ON 2011 ASSEMBLY ELECTIONS

A report by

TAMIL NADU ELECTION WATCH

Department of Humanities and Social Sciences IIT Madras, Chennai

&

ASSOCIATION FOR DEMOCRATIC REFORMS

Association for Democratic Reforms
B-1/6, Hauz Khas
Delhi-110016
Ph: 011-40817601, Fax: 011-46094248

Email: adr@adrindia.org





ACKNOWLEGDEMENT

This report would not have been possible without the efforts of several volunteers, groups and organizations from the state of Tamil Nadu. The role of members of Association for Democratic Reforms and National Election Watch should be especially acknowledged. For Tamil Nadu Election Watch, Ms. Josephine A., Ph.D. Scholar, Department of Humanities and Social Sciences, IIT Madras, coordinated the preparation of the report on financial and criminal records of MLAs elected in 2011 Tamil Nadu Assembly Elections. Student volunteers from the Integrated Masters Programme in Humanities and Social Sciences, John Jacob, Ph.D Scholar, Dr. V. Rajesh, Guest Faculty, Dept. of HSS, IIT Madras in-charge of Tamil translation, Mr Ashokamitran (Tamil translator), Ms. P.V. Sugun, and Mr. D. Sasikumar, staff members, Dept. of HSS, IIT Madras, and others contributed immensely. Mr. A. L. Rangarajan, Mr. K. Anantha Narayanan, Mr. Kumaravel (Rejuvenate India Movement, Chennai), Ms Rohini Krishnan, Ms Parimala, Ms. Anantha Beatrice Vanaja, Mr. Peter Rex Charlie, Ms. Gayathri (New Life, Trichy), Ms. Annie George and Mr Siva Kumar (Bedroc, Nagapattinam), Mr. Vijay Anand, Mr. Subramaniyam, Mr. Vinoth, Mr. Ashok, Mr. Balaji (5th Pillar, Chennai), Mr. Joseph Victor (Hope, Puducherry), Dr. Prahalathan (Bhumi, Chennai), Mr. K. Srinivasan (Prime Point, Chennai & India Vision 2020), Mrs. J. P. Saulina Arnold (Tamil Nadu Voluntary Health Association, Chennai), Mr. Alphonse Raj (Island Trust, Nilgris) gave unstinted cooperation and support in all the endeavours of Tamil Nadu Election Watch.

Sudarsan Padmanabhan, Ph.D.
Assistant Professor, Humanities and Social Sciences
IIT Madras, Chennai 36
Tamil Nadu, India





PREFACE

An essential pre-requisite for a functioning democracy is periodically held elections that are free and fair giving equal opportunity to all citizens to choose their representative with full knowledge of the competence of the candidate to fulfill his role as a representative of the electors and the citizen. The electors should be fully aware of the merits and demerits of the contesting candidates in order to be able to make an informed choice. The information about the contesting candidates accrues to the electors in various different ways. In democracies where party organizations are strong, the intra-party selection procedure ensures wide dissemination of information about the aspiring candidates and supplemented by an active media, both print and visual, the information travels far and wide, effectively educating the voters. However, in India with the just 60 years' tradition of functioning as a democratic polity, we are still evolving practices and procedures in regard to the education of the electors. With the political parties following opaque procedures for selection of candidates, there is very little chance full antecedents of the candidates becoming available to be electorate. Overtime the media and civil society organizations have tried to bridge the gap. It is thanks to the civil society organizations like ADR, NEW and the pro-active role played by the Supreme court that it is now mandatory for the candidates to provide complete details of their Assets and Liabilities as also the information about pending criminal cases against them in the form of an Affidavit which is required to be filed along with the nomination paper. The ADR and NEW have carried this task further by undertaking the task of disseminating that information far and wide for the benefit of the electors. Actively helped by the Election Commission of India which, in its quest for more transparency, mandated that the information provided by the candidates in their affidavits should be publicly displayed soon after the candidate file the information. The ADR and NEW have organized widespread dissemination by compiling the information from the affidavits and sharing it with the public through the media. They have further arranged to publish the information in respect of each state in the form of a Book. I am happy that ADR is releasing this Book containing information about the Assets and Liabilities in cases against the contesting candidates of the 2011 General Elections to the Tamilnadu Assembly. I am sure this will enable the informed electors to make better choices in the forthcoming election to the Tamilnadu Assembly.

N.Gopalaswami





FOREWORD

Elections are the foundation and bedrock on which the representative system of parliamentary democracy stands. In the Western countries, Greece is noted as the birth place of the concept of 'democracy' in preference to tyranny and autocracy. The political philosopher Plato said: "One of the penalties for refusing to participate in politics is that you end up in being governed by your inferiors." Worse than that, in India at the present, there is unprecedented surge of scams, shameless misrule, countless criminalities, injustice and anarchy. India is the largest democracy of more that a billion people and also the biggest centre of corruption running in trillions.

While most of the political parties are striving to win elections, somehow or other, by the power of muscle, money, or ministerial authority, it was left to a group of the learned Professors from the Indian Institute of Management, Ahmedabad (IIM) and the National Institute of Design (NID) to form in 1999 the Association for Democratic Reforms (ADR) as a Non-Political, Non-Partisan and a Non-Governmental Organization to ensure electoral reform for free and fair poll. The Association worked hard to win two landmark judgments on candidates' disclosure of criminal and financial records from the Supreme Court in May 2002 and March 2003 against the strong opposition of the Union Government backed by the support of all parties in the Parliament

The Association formed in December 2002 the National Election Watch which laboriously scrutinised the affidavits submitted by the candidate and published the information regarding each candidate about his convictions in criminal cases and pending ones, if any, and also his assets (along with those of his spouses including dependents), his liabilities and educational qualifications.

The present brochure by the Tamil Nadu Election Watch gives a complete analysis of Criminal and Financial details of Candidates and elected MLAs from Tamil Nadu 2011 Assembly. The analysis has been done by them, without any political favour or partiality, only to present to the sovereign electors about the criminal and unethical aberrations polluting obnoxiously the political field and thereby all walks of life.

Justice Louis Brandeis in the US Federal Court made a memorable dissent:"Our government is the potent, omnipresent teacher. For good or for ill, it teaches the whole people by its example. Crime is contagious. If the government becomes a law-breaker, it breeds contempt for law; it invites every man to become a law unto himself; it invites anarchy." (Olmstead v. United States, 277 -1928) Later, his dissent note has become as a quotable quote for all..

I leave the Analysis to be gone through and benefited by the electors so as to redeem the political and moral values of public life in the country, not only for themselves at the present, but to leave a rich legacy of freedom and democracy to the generations to come.

Ballot is the only the peaceful instrument available to the citizens of a democracy to eradicate corruption, to drive out bad men and criminals who had entered surreptitiously the halls of governance and treasure troves of corruption.





Edmund Burke said: "When bad men combine, the good must associate together; else they will fall, one by one, an unpitied sacrifice in a contemptible struggle." He also stated: "All that is required for evil to prevail is for good men to do nothing."

Chennai

4-03-2011 Era Sezhiyan





Introduction

Despite its foibles and failings, democracy is the best form of government conceived by man because, more than anything else, it is founded on the dignity of the human being.

This is reflected in the Preamble to the Constitution of India, which is the bedrock of our democracy:

WE, THE PEOPLE OF INDIA, having solemnly resolved to constitute India into a **Sovereign, Socialist, Secular, Democratic Republic** and to secure to all its citizens: **Justice**, social, economic and political; **Liberty** of thought, expression, belief, faith and worship; **Equality** of status and of opportunity; and to promote among them all **Fraternity** assuring the **dignity of the individual and the unity and integrity of the Nation**; do hereby adopt, enact and give to ourselves this Constitution."

The message is clear – unity and integrity of the nation is possible only if the **dignity of the individual** is assured. Only a vibrant and functioning democracy can ensure this.

Election is the essence of democracy. Integrity is the salt. But if the salt loses its flavour, it is then good for nothing, but to be cast out and trodden under the feet of men. This is precisely what is happening. Saltiness of India's elections is fast losing its flavour and the electoral process is being cast out and trodden under the heavy boots of criminal and money power. If this continues unabated, India's democracy will remain only in paper, not in practice.

People's power in general and youth power in particular can combat this venality that is engulfing the Nation in general and the state in particular. For this they need to be informed and educated about the evil forces out to destroy our democracy.

During our tour of the state as part of the Forum for Electoral Integrity and interaction with the public and the students one question rings out loud and clear – How do we identify the criminal and the corrupt among the candidates and political parties so that we can reject them individually by opting for good candidates, if not reject them in toto using Rule 49 O of the Conduct of Election Rules?

This compendium published by the Tamil Nadu Election Watch will significantly answer the question and I commend it to the TN electorate.

M.G.Devasahayam IAS (Retd)

Chennai

Convener, Forum for Electoral Integrity

01 March 2011





Table of Contents

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY OF CANDIDATES AND MLAS	
Summary of MLAs	1
Summary of Candidates	2
ANALYSIS BASED ON THE PENDING CRIMINAL CASES –MLAS	.3
Party - wise break up of MLAs with pending criminal cases	3
Serious crimes distribution for major parties-MLAs	3
Top 10 MLAs with most serious pending criminal cases	4
Party-wise comparison of pending criminal cases on MLAs in Tamil Nadu Assembly Elections 2006 and 2011	5
Analysis based on assets - MLAs	6
Crorepati MLAs- Party wise break up	6
Average assets per MLA for major parties	6
Top 20 MLAs with high assets	7
Top 20 MLAs with Low assets	8
Analysis of Liabilities of MLAs	9
Comparison of Assembly Election 2006 and 2011 based on assets	LO
Top 10 high asset MLAs who have not filed Income Tax Returns (ITR)	LO
Number of MLAs who have never filed Income Tax Return- party-wise	l1
Top 10 MLAs who declared the highest income in Income Tax Returns (ITR)	l1
Number of MLAs who have paid tax – year-wise	L2
Details of MLAs who have not declared their PAN	L3
Crorepati MLAs who have not given their PAN details	L3
ANALYSIS BASED ON EDUCATIONAL BACKGROUND OF MLAS1	
Overall Education report – MLAs	١3
Education analysis of MLAs- party-wise	L 4





List of MLAs who have not completed education till 8th standard	14
List of MLAs who are Ph.D holders	15
ANALYSIS BASED ON GENDER – MLAS	
Party-wise analysis based on Gender – MLAs	16
ANALYSIS BASED ON AGE GROUP – MLAS	16
Age Analysis of MLAs- party-wise	17
Details of Ministers with pending criminal cases	18
Full assets details of ministers	24
ANALYSIS OF RE-ELECTED MLAS	27
Summary of asset comparison of re-elected MLAs	27
Assets comparison for re-elected MLAs	27
Average asset increase for re-elected MLAs-Party wise	29
ANALYSIS BASED ON PENDING CRIMINAL CASES – CANDIDATES	58
Party-wise break up of candidates with pending criminal cases	58
Party-wise comparison of pending criminal cases on candidates contested in Tamil Nadu Assembly Ele	ections
2006 and 2011	59
Top 10 candidates with serious pending criminal cases	60
ANALYSIS BASED ON ASSETS – CANDIDATES	61
Crorepati candidates- Party wise break up	61
Average assets of candidates - party-wise	62
High assets analysis of candidates	63
Low assets Analysis of candidates	65
High asset candidates who lost the Elections	67
ANALYSIS BASED ON INCOME TAX AND PAN DETAILS OF CANDIDATES	68
Top 10 high asset candidates who have not filed Income Tax Returns	68
Number of candidates who have never filed Income Tax Return- party-wise	68
Top 10 candidates who declared the highest income in Income Tax Returns (ITR)	69



Number of candidates who have paid tax – year-wise	70
Details of candidates who have not declared their PAN	71
ANALYSIS BASED ON EDUCATIONAL BACKGROUND OF CANDIDATES	71
Overall Education report – candidates	71
Education analysis of candidates- party-wise	71
Analysis based on Gender – Candidates	72
Party-wise analysis based on Gender – Candidates	72
ANALYSIS BASED ON AGE – CANDIDATES	72
Analysis Based on Age- candidates	72
Age Analysis of Candidates- party-wise	73
ANALYSIS OF RE-CONTESTING MLAS	73
Summary of asset comparison of re-contesting MLAs	
Asset comparison of re-contesting MLAs	73
Average asset increase for re-contesting MLAs-Party wise	79
LIST OF SERIOUS IPC SECTIONS CONSIDERED FOR THIS REPORT	80
DISCLAIMED	02





Tamil Nadu 2011 Assembly Elections

Tamil Nadu Assembly Elections 2011 were held during the months on April and May 2011. A total of 2748 candidates contested in the said elections and out of that Tamil Nadu Election Watch (TNEW) & Association for Democratic Reforms (ADR) have analyzed the data of 738 candidates. This report includes the analysis of criminal, financial, educational and other details of 738 candidates and 234 MLAs. Information provided by the Election Commission of India and details from the affidavits filed by the candidates have been used for the analysis.

Executive summary of candidates and MLAs

Summary of MLAs

- TNEW analyzed the affidavits of all 234 MLAs, out of which 70(30%) have pending criminal cases against them. AIADMK has 49 out of 150 (33 %), DMK has 7 out of 23 (30 %) and DMDK has 6 out of 29 (21 %) MLAs with pending criminal cases.
- Out of these 70 MLAs with pending criminal cases, 37 have pending serious criminal cases like murder, attempt to murder, kidnapping, robbery, extortion etc. AIADMK has 29, CPI(M) has 2, DMK has 2, CPI has 1, Puthiya Thamilagam has 1, PMK has 1 and DMDK has 1 MLA with pending serious criminal cases.
- There were a total of 84 IPC charges of heinous nature on the MLAs. These include murder, attempt to murder, kidnapping, extortion, etc.
- A total of 120 MLAs out of 234 i.e. 51% are crorepatis.
- Among major parties, the average asset per MLA for DMK is approximate 9.21 crore, for INC it is 4.41 crore, for AIADMK it is 3.78 crore and for DMDK it is 3.40 crore.
- A total of 122 MLAs out of 234 declared liabilities of 5 Lakhs or above.
- 25% of MLAs (59 of 234) had not furnished PAN card details.
- Total number of women MLAs in Tamil Nadu Assembly Elections 2011 is mere 17 comparing to 217 men MLAs, i.e. only 7% of the MLAs in Tamil Nadu Legislative Assembly are women.
- More than 48% MLAs (113 of 234) are graduates and above.





Summary of Candidates

- TNEW analyzed the affidavits of 738 candidates, out of which 143(19% of total analyzed) have pending criminal cases against them. PMK had 16 out of 30 (53% of total analyzed), AIADMK had 53 out of 165 (32% of total analyzed), DMK had 27 out of 123 (22% of total analyzed) and DMDK had 8 out of 40 (20% of total analyzed) candidates with pending criminal cases.
- Out of these 143 candidates with pending criminal cases, 76 had pending serious criminal cases like murder, attempt to murder, kidnapping, robbery, extortion etc. AIADMK had 32, DMK had 11, BJP had 10, PMK had 8 and INC had 6 candidates with pending serious criminal cases.
- There were 192 IPC charges of serious nature on the candidates which included murder, attempt to murder, kidnapping, theft etc.
- A total of 280 candidates out of 738 analyzed i.e. 38% were crorepatis.
- A total of 7 candidates out of 738 analyzed declared zero assets.
- A total of 310 candidates out of 738 analyzed declared liabilities of 5 Lakhs or above.
- Among major parties, the average asset per candidate for DMK it is 4.79 crore, INC it is 4.77 Crore, for AIADMK it is 3.95 Crore and for PMK it is 3.08 crores
- 27% of candidates (201 of 738 analyzed) did not furnish PAN card details.
- Total number of women candidates who contested in the Tamil Nadu Assembly Elections 2011 was a mere 144 compared to 2604 men candidates, i.e. only 5% of the candidates were women.
- More than 50% candidates (368 of 738 analyzed) are graduates and above.





Analysis based on the pending criminal cases -MLAs

Party - wise break up of MLAs with pending criminal cases

70 MLAs out of 234 (30%) have pending criminal cases against them. AIADMK had 49 out of 150 (33%), DMK had 7 out of 23 (30%) and DMDK had 6 out of 29 (21%) MLAs with pending criminal cases. Out of these 70 MLAs with pending criminal cases, 37 have pending serious criminal cases like murder, attempt to murder, kidnapping, robbery, extortion etc. AIADMK has 29, CPI(M) has 2, DMK has 2, CPI has 1, Puthiya Thamilagam has 1, PMK has 1, DMDK has 1 MLAs with pending serious criminal cases. The following table gives the party wise details of MLAs with pending criminal cases:-

Party	Total number of MLAs analyzed	nending of		MLAs with serious pending criminal cases	% of MLAs with serious pending criminal cases
AIADMK	150	49	33%	29	19%
DMDK	29	6	21%	1	3%
DMK	23	7	30%	2	9%
CPI(M)	10	3	30%	2	20%
СРІ	9	1	11%	1	11%
PMK	3	2	67%	1	33%
Puthiya Thamilagam	2	1	50%	1	50%
MANITHANEYA MAKKAL KATCHI	1	1	100%	0	0%
Others	7	0	0%	0	0%
Total	234	70	30%	37	16%

Table: Party-wise break up of MLAs with pending criminal cases

Serious crimes distribution for major parties-MLAs

There were a total of 84 IPC charges of heinous nature on the MLAs. These including murder, attempt to murder, kidnapping, extortion, etc. The following table gives the details of serious IPC counts for MLAs of major parties.

Party/IPC	324	307	294	153A	379	395	344	302	171F	326	171H	305	325	363	Total
AIADMK	27	24	4	0	3	0	0	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	65
PMK	2	1	0	3	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	6





Party/IPC	324	307	294	153A	379	395	344	302	171F	326	171H	305	325	363	Total
CPI(M)	2	2	0	0	0	2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	6
Puthiya															
Thamilagam	1	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2
DMDK	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1
DMK	0	0	0	1	0	1	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	3
CPI	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1
Total	33	27	5	4	3	3	1	1	1	1	2	1	1	1	84

Table:- Serious crimes distribution for major parties-MLAs

Top 10 MLAs with most serious pending criminal cases

37 MLAs out of 234 have serious criminal cases pending against them, like murder, attempt to murder, kidnapping, robbery, extortion etc. The following table gives the details of top 10 MLAs with serious criminal cases pending against them:-

S.No	Name of MLA	District	Constituency	Party	Serious IPC Counts	No of	Brief Details of serious IPC Counts
1	THANIYARASU.U	NAMAKKAL	PARAMATHI-VELUR	AIADMK	14	36	1 charges related to Murder(IPC section-302) 5 charges related to Attempt to murder(IPC section- 307) and others
2	J. GURUNATHAN	ARIYALUR	JAYANKONDAM	РМК	6	ч	1 charges related to Attempt to murder(IPC section- 307) and others
3	R.KAMARAJ	THIRUVARUR	NANNILAM	AIADMK	4	10	2 charges related to Attempt to murder(IPC section- 307) 1 charges related to kidnapping(IPC section-363) and others
4	ARUKUTTY	COIMBATORE	KAVUNDAMPALAYAM	AIADMK	4	//	2 charges related to Attempt to murder(IPC section- 307) and others
5	THANGA TAMILSELVAN	THENI	ANDIPATTI	AIADMK	3	1/	2 charges related to Attempt to murder(IPC section- 307) and others
6	S.KAMARAJ	KARUR	KRISHNARAYAPURAM	AIADMK	3	//	2 charges related to Attempt to murder(IPC section- 307) and others
7	K BALAKRISHNAN	CUDDALORE	CHIDAMBARAM	CPI(M)	3	')	1 charges related to Attempt to murder(IPC section- 307) and others
8	G BHIMRAO	THIRUVALLUR	MADURAVOYAL	CPI(M)	3	1	1 charges related to Attempt to murder(IPC section- 307) and others





S.No	Name of MLA	District	Constituency	Party	Serious IPC Counts	No of	Brief Details of serious IPC Counts
9	SENTHILBALAJI	Karur	Karur	AIADMK	2	7	1 charges related to Attempt to murder(IPC section- 307)
10	POLLACHI V. JAYARAMAN	Tiruppur	Udumalaipettai	AIADMK	2	4	1 charges related to Attempt to murder(IPC section- 307)

Table: - Top 10 MLAs with serious pending criminal cases

Party-wise comparison of pending criminal cases on MLAs in Tamil Nadu Assembly Elections 2006 and 2011

The following table give the party wise details of pending criminal cases on MLAs of Tamil Nadu Assembly Elections 2006 and 2011:-

		Assem	bly Election	2011	Assembly Election 2006					
Party	Total number of MLAs analyzed	MLAs with Pending Criminal Cases	% of MLAs with pending criminal cases	MLAs with serious pending criminal cases	% of MLAs with serious pending criminal cases	Total number of MLAs analyzed	MLAs with Pending Criminal Cases	% of MLAs with pending criminal cases	MLAs with serious pending criminal cases	% of MLAs with serious pending criminal cases
AIADMK	150	49	33%	29	19%	61	8	13%	1	2%
DMDK	29	6	21%	1	3%	1	0	0%	0	0%
DMK	23	7	30%	2	9%	96	39	41%	16	17%
CPI(M)	10	3	30%	2	20%	9	1	11%	0	0%
СРІ	9	1	11%	1	11%	6	2	33%	1	17%
PMK	3	2	67%	1	33%	18	15	83%	4	22%
Others	10	2	20%	1	10%	43	12	28%	3	7%
Total	234	70	30%	37	16%	234	77	33%	25	11%

Table:- Party-wise comparison of pending criminal cases on MLAs in Tamil Nadu Assembly Elections 2006 and 2011





Analysis based on assets - MLAs

Crorepati MLAs- Party wise break up

Out of the 234 MLAs in Tamil Nadu 2011 Assembly Elections, 120 (51%) are crorepatis. 83% of MLAs of DMK are crorepatis and 60% of INC MLAs are also crorepatis.

Party	Total MLAs	Number of Crorepati MLAs	% of crorepati MLAs
AIADMK	150	81	54%
DMK	23	19	83%
DMDK	29	10	35%
PMK	3	3	100%
INC	5	3	60%
CPI(M)	10	1	10%
PUTHIYA THAMILAGAM	2	1	100%
MANITHANEYA MAKKAL KATCHI	2	1	100%
СРІ	9	1	11%
OTHER	1	0	0%
Total	234	120	51%

Table: - Crorepati MLAs- Party Wise

Average assets per MLA for major parties

The average asset of a MLA of 2011 Assembly Election is 3.98 crores. Among major parties, the average asset per MLA for DMK is approximate 9.21 Cro and for AIADMK it is 3.78 crores. The following table gives the average assets of major parties that contested in the 2011 Assembly Elections:-

Party	Total MLAs analyzed	Average Assets
AIADMK	150	Rs 3,78,25,385
AIADIVIK	130	~ 3 Crore+
DMDK	29	Rs 3,40,90,235
DIVIDA	29	~ 3 Crore+
DMK	23	Rs 9,21,73,829
DIVIK	23	~ 9 Crore+
CPI(M)	10	Rs 25,60,519
CFI(IVI)	10	~ 25 Lacs+
CPI	9	Rs 83,81,035
Cri	9	~ 83 Lacs+
INC	5	Rs 4,41,30,594
INC	3	~ 4 Crore+
PMK	3	Rs 4,02,54,872
FIVIK	3	~ 4 Crore+
Puthiya Thamilagam	2	Rs 3,74,97,382
rutiliya Hallillagalli	2	~ 3 Crore+
Manithanova Makkal Katchi	2	Rs 75,53,207
Manithaneya Makkal Katchi	2	~ 75 Lacs+





Party	Total MLAs analyzed	Average Assets
AIFB	1	Rs 81,22,500 ~ 81 Lacs+
All Parties	234	Rs 3,98,42,301 3 Crore+

Table: Average assets per MLA for major parties

Top 20 MLAs with high assets

A Narayanan of AIADMK from Nanguneri constituency has the highest declared assets among the MLAs of Tamil Nadu 2011 Assembly Election. He declared an asset of Rs. 103.28 crore followed by K.C. Pallani Shamy of DMK from Aravakurichi with assets of Rs. 67.65 crores. The assets details of the top 20 MLAs with high asset are as given below:-

S.No.	Name	District	Constituency	Party	Movable Assets (Rs)	Immovable Assets (Rs)	Total Assets (Rs)
1	A. NARAYANAN	TIRUNELVELI	NANGUNERI	AIADMK	37,57,02,444*	65,71,63,000	1,03,28,65,444 103 Crore+
2	* K.C.PALLANI SHAMY	KARUR	ARAVAKURICHI	DMK	31,89,80,271	35,75,67,720	67,65,47,991 67 Crore+
3	E SUBAYA	TIRUNELVELI	AMBASAMUDRAM	AIADMK	2,38,19,052	57,88,37,228	60,26,56,280 60 Crore+
4	J JAYALALITHAA	TIRUCHIRAPPALLI	SRIRANGAM	AIADMK	13,03,27,979	38,37,40,000	51,40,67,979 51 Crore+
5	M.KARUNANIDHI	THIRUVARUR	THIRUVARUR	DMK	40,95,04,142	3,19,89,628	44,14,93,770 44 Crore+
6	VIJAYKANT	VILLUPURAM	RISHIVANDIYAM	DMDK	11,43,86,376	16,55,25,198	27,99,11,574 27 Crore+
7	R.SARATHKUMAR	TIRUNELVELI	TENKASI	AIADMK	13,93,17,365	13,73,99,307	27,67,16,672 27 Crore+
8	DORAISAMY R	COIMBATORE	COIMBATORE (SOUTH)	AIADMK	2,56,26,863	24,85,00,000	27,41,26,863 27 Crore+
9	MICHEL RAYAPPAN S.	TIRUNELVELI	RADHAPURAM	DMDK	2,58,01,161*	24,49,57,195*	27,07,58,356 27 Crore+
10	RAJAA T.R.B.	THIRUVARUR	MANNARGUDI	DMK	19,58,25,042	6,86,06,700	26,44,31,742 26 Crore+
11	K.P.KANDAN	KANCHEEPURAM	SHOZHINGANALLUR	AIADMK	1,32,80,571	20,25,00,000	21,57,80,571 21 Crore+
12	K.P. PARAMASIVAM	TIRUPPUR	PALLADAM	AIADMK	2,12,62,595	12,10,27,410	14,22,90,005 14 Crore+
13	NATARAJ NSN	TIRUPPUR	KANGAYAM	AIADMK	7,34,58,952	5,85,38,500	13,19,97,452 13 Crore+
14	K. PANDIARAJAN	VIRUDHUNAGAR	VIRUDHUNAGAR	DMDK	10,40,30,491	2,14,05,595*	12,54,36,086 12 Crore+
15	ANBALAGAN	CHENNAI	CHEPAUK- THIRUVALLIKENI	DMK	6,62,79,654	5,41,00,000	12,03,79,654 12 Crore+
16	VENUGOPALU K.S.N.	DINDIGUL	PALANI	AIADMK	69,92,297	10,87,52,403	11,57,44,700 11 Crore+
17	N.R.RENGARAJAN	THANJAVUR	PATTUKKOTTAI	INC	51,07,311	10,00,59,608	10,51,66,919 10 Crore+
18	POLLACHI V. JAYARAMAN	TIRUPPUR	UDUMALAIPETTAI	AIADMK	2,91,07,791	6,95,20,000	9,86,27,791 9 Crore+
19	DURAIMURUGAN	VELLORE	KATPADI	DMK	3,39,88,976	5,79,09,200	9,18,98,176 9 Crore+
20	VEERAMANI	VELLORE	JOLARPET	AIADMK	1,72,87,670	7,35,00,000	9,07,87,670 9 Crore+

*For candidates whose total values have not been given in the affidavit, the total has been calculated from the details given by the candidate himself/herself in the affidavit

Table: Top 20 MLAs with high assets





Top 20 MLAs with Low assets

Given below is the list of top 20 low asset MLAs:-

S.No.	Name	District	Constituency	Party	Movable Assets (Rs)	Immovable Assets (Rs)	Total Assets (Rs)
1	N.MURUGUMARAN	CUDDALORE	KATTUMANNARKOIL	AIADMK	1,15,000*	0	1,15,000 1 Lacs+
2	THINAKARAN K.	COIMBATORE	SULUR	DMDK	2,11,360	0	2,11,360 2 Lacs+
3	V. GUNASEELAN	THIRUVANNAMALAI	VANDAVASI	AIADMK	1,75,000	93,000	2,68,000 2 Lacs+
4	T. SURESH @ SURESH KUMAR	THIRUVANNAMALAI	CHENGAM	DMDK	56,000	3,00,000	3,56,000 3 Lacs+
5	NAGAI MALI (A) VP MAHALINGAM	NAGAPATTINAM	KILVELUR	CPI(M)	1,71,464	2,40,000	4,11,464 4 Lacs+
6	R ANNADURAI	MADURAI	MADURAI SOUTH	CPI(M)	3,95,412	78,000 [*]	4,73,412 4 Lacs+
7	CHEZHIAAN. GOVI	THANJAVUR	THIRUVIDAIMARUDUR	DMK	4,87,029	0	4,87,029 4 Lacs+
8	TAMILAZHAGAN	CUDDALORE	TITTAKUDI	DMDK	2,30,000	3,00,000*	5,30,000 5 Lacs+
9	KARUPPASAMY A A	TIRUPPUR	AVANASHI	AIADMK	3,56,383	2,25,000	5,81,383 5 Lacs+
10	K BALA BHARATHY	DINDIGUL	DINDIGUL	CPI(M)	1,65,161	4,50,000 [*]	6,15,161 6 Lacs+
11	N. NANJAPPAN	DHARMAPURI	PENNAGARAM	СРІ	4,35,139	2,00,000	6,35,139 6 Lacs+
12	MADHESWARAN S	SALEM	ATTUR	AIADMK	4,44,000	2,00,000 [*]	6,44,000 6 Lacs+
13	A LASER	THENI	PERIYAKULAM	CPI(M)	4,17,445	2,56,000	6,73,445 6 Lacs+
14	MANORANJITHAM	KRISHNAGIRI	UTHANGARAI	AIADMK	7,40,500	0	7,40,500 7 Lacs+
15	S. SENTHILKUMAR	TIRUCHIRAPPALLI	THIRUVERUMBUR	DMDK	1,42,000	7,25,000 [*]	8,67,000 8 Lacs+
16	V. PONNUPANDI	VIRUDHUNAGAR	SRIVILLIPUTHUR	СРІ	3,91,392	5,54,000	9,45,392 9 Lacs+
17	R. SUBA	SALEM	GANGAVALLI	DMDK	8,65,101	1,80,000	10,45,101 10 Lacs+
18	S.P.MUTHUKUMARAN	PUDUKKOTTAI	PUDUKKOTTAI	СРІ	6,05,964	5,00,000	11,05,964 11 Lacs+
29	P. SIVAKOLUNTHU	CUDDALORE	PANRUTI	DMDK	3,50,000	7,80,000	11,30,000 11 Lacs+
20	M. Muthuramalingam	MADURAI	Thirumangalam	AIADMK	12,38,990	0	12,38,990

*For candidates whose total values have not been given in the affidavit, the total has been calculated from the details given by the candidate himself/herself in the affidavit

Table: - Top 20 MLAs with low assets





Analysis of Liabilities of MLAs

A total of 29 MLAs contested in Tamil Nadu 2011 Assembly Elections have declared that they have liabilities of Rs.1crore or more. Given below is the list of top 20 MLAs with highest liabilities.

S.No.	Name	District	Constituency	Party	Liabilities (Rs)
1	E SUBAYA	TIRUNELVELI	AMBASAMUDRAM	AIADMK	31,28,93,000 31 Crore+
2	R.SARATHKUMAR	TIRUNELVELI	TENKASI	AIADMK	17,11,04,312 17 Crore+
3	A. NARAYANAN	TIRUNELVELI	NANGUNERI	AIADMK	14,81,02,000 [*] 14 Crore+
4	ANBALAGAN	CHENNAI	CHEPAUK- THIRUVALLIKENI	DMK	12,93,76,354 12 Crore+
5	VIJAYKANT	VILLUPURAM	RISHIVANDIYAM	DMDK	11,78,99,438 11 Crore+
6	K.G.RAMESH	VELLORE	TIRUPATTUR	AIADMK	6,37,00,653 6 Crore+
7	RAJAA T.R.B.	THIRUVARUR	MANNARGUDI	DMK	4,42,39,555 4 Crore+
8	C. VIJAYABASKAR	PUDUKKOTTAI	VIRALIMALAI	AIADMK	4,02,06,738 4 Crore+
9	NATARAJ NSN	TIRUPPUR	KANGAYAM	AIADMK	3,56,57,567 3 Crore+
10	SAKKARAPANI R	DINDIGUL	ODDANCHATRAM	DMK	3,47,56,533 3 Crore+
11	K.P. PARAMASIVAM	TIRUPPUR	PALLADAM	AIADMK	3,21,44,483 3 Crore+
12	P.G. RAJENDRAN	TIRUNELVELI	ALANGULAM	AIADMK	2,92,14,314 2 Crore+
13	NAINAR NAGENTHRAN	TIRUNELVELI	TIRUNELVELI	AIADMK	2,31,76,778 2 Crore+
14	JAYASUDHA.L	THIRUVANNAMALAI	POLUR	AIADMK	2,24,06,970 [*] 2 Crore+
15	M.KARUNANIDHI	THIRUVARUR	THIRUVARUR	DMK	2,23,53,006 2 Crore+
16	JCD PRABHAKAR	CHENNAI	VILLIVAKKAM	AIADMK	2,04,06,590 2 Crore+
17	K.P.MUNUSAMY	KRISHNAGIRI	KRISHNAGIRI	AIADMK	1,94,45,968 1 Crore+
18	GOPINATH	KRISHNAGIRI	HOSUR	INC	1,94,20,200 1 Crore+
19	NEELAKANDANV	CHENNAI	THIRU-VI-KA-NAGAR	AIADMK	1,87,09,112 1 Crore+
20	DURAIMURUGAN	VELLORE	KATPADI	DMK	1,85,36,027 1 Crore+

^{*}For candidates whose total values have not been given in the affidavit, the total has been calculated from the details given by the candidate himself/herself in the affidavit

Table:- Top 20 MLAs with high liabilities





Comparison of Assembly Election 2006 and 2011 based on assets

The following table gives the party wise comparison of assets of MLAs of 2006 and 2011 elections respectively.

	Tamil Nadu 2006 Assembly Elections			Tamil Nadu 2011 Assembly Election			
Party	Total MLAs	Total Crorepati MLAs	% of croepati MLAs	Total MLAs	Total crorepati MLAs	% of crorepati MLAs analyzed	
AIADMK	61	9	15%	150	81	54%	
DMK	96	31	32%	23	19	83%	
INC	34	12	35%	5	3	60%	
PMK	18	1	6%	3	3	100%	
DMDK	1	1	100%	29	10	34%	
OTHERS	24	3	13%	24	4	17%	
Total	234	57	24%	234	120	51%	

Table: Comparison of Assembly Election 2006 and 2011 based on assets

Analysis based on Income Tax and PAN details of MLAs

Top 10 high asset MLAs who have not filed Income Tax Returns (ITR)

Out of 234 MLAs analyzed, 74 MLAs (32%) have declared that they not filed Income Tax Returns. Among them, K P Munusamy of AIADMK has the highest assets of approximately 2.88 crore followed by A Pappasundaram of AIADMK with assets worth over 2.20 crores. Details of the top 10 MLAs who have declared that they have not filed Income Tax returns are as follows:-

S.No	Name	District	Constituency	Party	Movable Assets (Rs)	Immovable Assets (Rs)	Total Assets (Rs)	PAN Given
1	K.P.MUNUSAMY	KRISHNAGIRI	KRISHNAGIRI	AIADMK	15,46,000	2,73,00,000	2,88,46,000 2 Crore+	N
2	A. PAPPASUNDARAM	KARUR	KULITHALAI	AIADMK	10,65,590	2,10,00,000	2,20,65,590 2 Crore+	Υ
3	C. KRISHNAN	SALEM	OMALUR	AIADMK	26,04,595	1,89,57,500	2,15,62,095 2 Crore+	N
4	DHANAPAL.P	NAMAKKAL	RASIPURAM	AIADMK	63,72,763	1,50,00,000*	2,13,72,763 2 Crore+	N
5	R.RAJENDRAN	CUDDALORE	KURINJIPADI	AIADMK	13,58,659	1,65,90,000	1,79,48,659 1 Crore+	Υ
6	RAMALINGAM KV	ERODE	ERODE (WEST)	AIADMK	38,63,479	1,21,50,000	1,60,13,479 1 Crore+	Y
7	DAMODHARAN	COIMBATORE	KINATHUKADAVU	AIADMK	62,89,709	89,00,000	1,51,89,709 1 Crore+	Υ





S.No	Name	District	Constituency	Party	Movable Assets (Rs)	Immovable Assets (Rs)	Total Assets (Rs)	PAN Given
8	SENTHILBALAJI	KARUR	KARUR	AIADMK	80,04,057	52,00,000 [*]	1,32,04,057 1 Crore+	N
9	S.K. SELVAM	SALEM	VEERAPANDI	AIADMK	25,13,230	1,04,67,332	1,29,80,562 1 Crore+	N
10	M. RENGASAMY	THANJAVUR	THANJAVUR	AIADMK	5,55,858	97,00,000	1,02,55,858 1 Crore+	N

Table: Top 10 high asset MLAs who have never filed IT Returns

Number of MLAs who have never filed Income Tax Return- party-wise

In Tamil Nadu, among the major parties, AIADMK has the maximum number of MLAs (41 i.e. 27% of the 150 MLAs analyzed) who have never filed IT returns (ITR) followed by DMDK with 13 such MLAs (45 % of the 29 MLAs analyzed). CPI (M) has 9 and CPI has 7 MLAs who have never filed Income Tax Returns. Following table gives the party wise details of MLAs who have never filed IT returns.

Party	Total MLAs Analyzed	Total MLAs who have filed ITR	Total MLAs who have not Filed ITR	% of MLAs wo have not filed ITR
AIADMK	150	109	41	27 %
DMDK	29	16	13	45 %
DMK	23	21	2	9 %
CPI(M)	10	1	9	90 %
СРІ	9	2	7	78 %
INC	5	4	1	20 %
PMK	3	3	0	0 %
MANITHANEYA MAKKAL KATCHI	2	2	0	0 %
PUTHIYA THAMILAGAM	2	1	1	50%
AIFB	1	1	0	0 %
TOTAL	234	160	74	32 %

Table: Number of MLAs who have never filed Income Tax Return- party-wise

Top 10 MLAs who declared the highest income in Income Tax Returns (ITR)

Given below are the top 10 MLAs with the highest income shown in their income tax returns which includes the income shown by their spouse and dependents.





S.No	Name	Party	Constituency	Movable Asset	Immovable Asset	Total Asset	which	Self income shown by	Total income shown by MLA in ITR (Self+Spouse+Dependent)
1	A. NARAYANAN	AIADMK	NANGUNERI	37,57,02,444 37 Crore+	65,71,63,000 65 Crore+	1,03,28,65,4 103 Crore+	2009- 2010	1,49,04,480 1 Crore+	3,62,27,700 3 Crore+
2	M.KARUNANIDHI	DMK	THIRUVARUR	40,95,04,142 40 Crore+	3,19,89,628 3 Crore+	44,14,93,770 44 Crore+	2009- 2010	37,34,020 37 Lacs+	2,69,65,456 2 Crore+
3	K. PANDIARAJAN	DMDK	VIRUDHUNAGAR	10,40,30,491 10 Crore+	2,14,05,595 2 Crore+	12,54,36,086 12 Crore+	2010- 2011	93,28,615 93 Lacs+	1,57,63,433 1 Crore+
4	E SUBAYA	AIADMK	AMBASAMUDRAM	2,38,19,052 2 Crore+	57,88,37,228 57 Crore+	60,26,56,280 60 Crore+	2009- 2010	1,40,82,860 1 Crore+	1,53,57,494 1 Crore+
5	K.C.PALLANI SHAMY	DMK	ARAVAKURICHI	31,89,80,271 31 Crore+	35,75,67,720 35 Crore+	67,65,47,991 67 Crore+	2007- 2008	1,50,82,756 1 Crore+	1,53,27,916 1 Crore+
6	R.SARATHKUMAR	AIADMK	TENKASI	13,93,17,365 13 Crore+	13,73,99,307 13 Crore+	27,67,16,672 27 Crore+	2009- 2010	15,77,392 15 Lacs+	1,18,02,468 1 Crore+
7	MICHEL RAYAPPAN S.	DMDK	RADHAPURAM	2,58,01,161 2 Crore+	24,49,57,195 24 Crore+	27,07,58,356 27 Crore+	2009- 2010	94,48,887 94 Lacs+	1,06,99,516 1 Crore+
8	DURAIMURUGAN	DMK	KATPADI	3,39,88,976 3 Crore+	5,79,09,200 5 Crore+	9,18,98,176 9 Crore+	2009- 2010	4,62,579 4 Lacs+	1,02,97,554 1 Crore+
9	KALAIARASAN.M	PMK	ANAIKATTU	1,68,05,654 1 Crore+	6,88,50,000 6 Crore+	8,56,55,654 8 Crore+	2009- 2010	44,85,184 44 Lacs+	90,86,183 90 Lacs+
10	SAKKARAPANI R	DMK	ODDANCHATRAM	48,97,871 48 Lacs+	4,08,92,839 4 Crore+	4,57,90,710 4 Crore+	2009- 2010	64,15,060 64 Lacs+	71,65,190 71 Lacs+

Table: Top 10 MLAs who declared highest income in Income Tax Return

Number of MLAs who have paid tax – year-wise

The following table gives information about MLAs analyzed by the TNEW who have filed IT returns. 15% of the MLAs analyzed have **not** filed their IT returns for the Financial Year 2010-2011. There are 32% MLAs (of the total 234 analyzed) who have **never** filed IT returns.

S.No.	FY for which last return filed	Tax payers	Percentage	
1	2010-2011	36	15 %	
2	2009-2010	115	49 %	
3	2008-2009	2	0.9 %	
4	2007-2008	2	0.9 %	
5	2006-2007	1	0.4 %	
6	2005-2006	1	0.4 %	
7	Not Given	3	1 %	
candidat	es who have never filed taxes	74	32 %	

Table: Percentage of Tax payers - year-wise





Details of MLAs who have not declared their PAN

59 out of 234 MLAs analyzed (25%) who won in Tamil Nadu 2011 Assembly Elections have not declared their PAN card details.

Crorepati MLAs who have not given their PAN details

There are 7 crorepati MLAs who have not declared their PAN details even though it is part of the affidavit filed by them at the time of elections. The names of these MLAs are given below-

S. No.	Name	District	Constituency	Party	Movable Assets (Rs)	Immovable Assets (Rs)	Total Assets (Rs)	PAN Given
1	K.P.MUNUSAMY	KRISHNAGIRI	KRISHNAGIRI	AIADMK	15,46,000	2,73,00,000	2,88,46,000 2 Crore+	N
2	C. KRISHNAN	SALEM	OMALUR	AIADMK	26,04,595	1,89,57,500	2,15,62,095 2 Crore+	Ν
3	DHANAPAL.P	NAMAKKAL	RASIPURAM	AIADMK	63,72,763	1,50,00,000*	2,13,72,763 2 Crore+	N
4	SENTHILBALAJI	KARUR	KARUR	AIADMK	80,04,057	52,00,000 [*]	1,32,04,057 1 Crore+	N
5	S.K. SELVAM	SALEM	VEERAPANDI	AIADMK	25,13,230	1,04,67,332	1,29,80,562 1 Crore+	N
6	V. MARKANDAYAN	THOOTHUKUDI	VILATHIKULAM	AIADMK	58,91,430	44,24,600	1,03,16,030 1 Crore+	N
7	M. RENGASAMY	THANJAVUR	THANJAVUR	AIADMK	5,55,858	97,00,000	1,02,55,858 1 Crore+	N

Table:- Crorepati MLAs who have not given their PAN details

Analysis based on Educational background of MLAs

Overall Education report – MLAs

- A total of 34 MLAs (15% of 234 analyzed) have only passed 8th standard or below.
- 113 MLAs (48% of 234 analyzed) are graduates or with higher educational qualifications.
- 2 of the MLAs are Ph.D holders.

Education Group	MLAs Analysed
Literate	3
5th Pass	11
8th Pass	20
10th Pass	50
12th Pass	30





Education Group	MLAs Analysed
Graduate	44
Graduate Professional	34
Post Graduate	33
Doctorate	2
Others	3
Not Given	4
Total	234

Table: Education Group wise report of MLAs

Education analysis of MLAs- party-wise

Following table gives the party wise details of MLAs education qualifications

Party	Illiterate	Literate	5th Pass	8th Pass	10th Pass	12th Pass	Graduate	Graduate Professional	Post Graduate	Doctorate	Others	Not Given	Total
AIADMK	0	2	9	14	29	20	30	18	23	1	2	2	150
DMDK	0	1	0	2	9	5	4	4	3	0	1	0	29
DMK	0	0	1	0	4	2	5	5	4	0	0	2	23
CPI	0	0	1	1	4	1	1	1	0	0	0	0	9
INC	0	0	0	0	3	0	0	2	0	0	0	0	5
CPI(M)	0	0	0	2	1	2	3	2	0	0	0	0	10
PMK	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	2	0	0	0	3
PUTHIYA THAMILAGAM	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	2
MANITHANEYA MAKKAL KATCHI	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	1	0	0	2
AIFB	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	1
Total	0	3	11	20	50	30	44	34	33	2	3	4	234 / 234

Table:- Education analysis of MLAs- party-wise

List of MLAs who have not completed education till 8th standard

There are 14 MLAs among the total analyzed who haven't even completed 8th standard education. The details of such MLAs are given below.

S.No	Name	Party	Constituency	Education	Education Details
1	KARUPPASAMY A A	AIADMK	AVANASHI	Literate	3RD CLASS
2	P. SIVAKOLUNTHU	DMDK	PANRUTI	Literate	
3	R. SAMY	AIADMK	MELUR	Literate	4th Pass, Primary School, Pathinettangudi





					Association for Democratic Reforms
S.No	Name	Party	Constituency	Education	Education Details
4	A. NARAYANAN	AIADMK	NANGUNERI	5th Pass	5TH PASS.
5	ARUKUTTY	AIADMK	KAVUNDAMPALAYAM	5th Pass	6TH STD
6	GOVI. SAMPATHKUMAR	AIADMK	VANIYAMBADI	5th Pass	6th Std, Govt Middle School, Vallipattu, Vaniyambadi (TK), 31.08.1972
7	K.C.PALLANI SHAMY	DMK	ARAVAKURICHI	5th Pass	6TH STANDARD, VILLAGE SCHOOL, KAAVILIPALAYAM, YEAR:1947
8	K.MANOHARAN	AIADMK	THIRUPORUR	5th Pass	7th Pass
9	M. MUTHURAMALINGAM	AIADMK	THIRUMANGALAM	5th Pass	V STD., KADAMANGALAM CSI PRIMARY SCHOOL (1972-73)
10	NANJIL A. MURUGESAN	AIADMK	NAGERCOIL	5th Pass	Govt School Manavalapuram
11	P. GANESAN	AIADMK	UTHIRAMERUR	5th Pass	7TH Aringar Anna Higher Secondary School, Walajabad, 1975
12	S.KAMARAJ	AIADMK	KRISHNARAYAPURAM	5th Pass	6 TH PASS MUNICIPAL NAGAMAIYAR HIGH SCHOOL ON 27.02.1976
13	V. GUNASEELAN	AIADMK	VANDAVASI	5th Pass	7TH STD, PANCHYAT UNION MIDDLE SCHOOL PERUMBALAI
14	V. PONNUPANDI	СРІ	SRIVILLIPUTHUR	5th Pass	8TH INCOMPLETE, CMS HIGHER SECONDARY SCHOOL, 1984

Table:-List of MLAs who have not completed education till 8th standard

List of MLAs who are Ph.D holders

There are only 2 MLAs who are Ph.D holders among the total MLAs analysed. Details of such MLAs are as given below.

S.No.	Name	Party	Constituency	Education	Education Details
1	JAWAHIRULLAH	MANITHANEYA MAKKAL KATCHI	RAMANATHAPURAM	Doctorate	PH.D. 2008, M.PHIL 2000, MBA, 1983, MADRAS UNIVERSITY
2	THAMIZHARASAN	AIADMK	KILVAITHINANKUPPAM	Doctorate	M.A. & MPhil, P.HD. FROM PACHAYAPPA COLLEGE, & Phd FROM CHENNAI UNIVERSITY

Table: List of MLAs who are Ph.D holders





Analysis based on Gender – MLAs

Out of the 234 MLAs in the Tamil Nadu 2011 Assembly elections, the number of men MLAs is 217(93%) whereas total women MLAs are 17(7%). Percentage of women MLAs in 2011 Assembly has declined compared to that of 2006 Assembly. Percentage of women MLAs in 2006 Assembly was 9% (22 out of 234 MLAs) and in 2011 it is only 7% (17 out of 234 MLAs).

Party-wise analysis based on Gender – MLAs

The following table gives the party wise details of men and women MLAs in both 2011 and 2006 Tamil Nadu Assemblies.

	Tamil Nadu 2011 Assembly					Tamil Nadu 2006 Assembly				
Party	Total MLAs	No. of men MLAs	% of men MLAs	No. of women MLAs	% of women MLAs	Total MLAs	No. of men MLAs	% of men MLAs	No. of women MLAs	% of women MLAs
AIADMK	150	138	92%	12	8%	61	54	89%	7	11%
DMDK	29	27	93%	2	7%	1	1	100%	0	0%
DMK	23	22	96%	1	4%	96	89	93%	7	7%
INC	5	4	80%	1	20%	34	31	91%	3	9%
Others	27	26	96%	1	4%	42	36	86%	6	14%
Total	234	217	93%	17	7%	234	211	90%	23	10%

Table:- Party-wise analysis based on Gender - MLAs

Analysis based on age group – MLAs

- Only 1 MLA out of the 234 have declared their age to be less than 31 years old
- A total of 7 MLAs out of the total analyzed are more than 71 years of age.

Age Group	Number of MLAs Analyzed
25-30	1
31-40	22
41-50	90
51-60	90
61-70	24
71-80	6
81-110	1
Total	234

Table: Number of MLAs in each age group





Age Analysis of MLAs- party-wise

The following table gives the details of party wise age analysis of MLAs of 2011Tamil Nadu Assembly Elections.

Party/Age	25-35	36-45	46-55	56-65	66-75	76+	Total
AIADMK	1	32	66	47	3	1	150
DMDK	5	15	4	4	1	0	29
DMK	1	2	6	10	3	1	23
CPI(M)	0	0	5	5	0	0	10
СРІ	0	4	2	3	0	0	9
INC	0	1	3	1	0	0	5
СРІ	0	0	2	0	0	0	2
Puthiya Thamilagam	0	0	0	1	0	0	1
PMK	1	0	1	1	0	0	3
Manithaneya Makkal Katchi	0	0	1	0	0	0	1
MMK	0	1	0	0	0	0	1
AIFB	0	0	0	1	0	0	1
PT	0	0	1	0	0	0	1
Total	8	55	89	73	7	2	234

Table: Analysis of MLAs on the basis of age - party-wise

Analysis of Council of Ministers

- TNEW analyzed the affidavits of 33 ministers, out of which, 12 (36%) have pending criminal cases against them.
- Out of these 12 ministers with pending criminal cases, 8 (24%) have serious pending criminal cases like murder, attempt to murder, kidnapping, robbery, extortion etc.
- A total of 21 ministers out of 33 analyzed i.e. 64% are crorepatis.





Details of Ministers with pending criminal cases

The following table gives the details of the Ministers with pending criminal cases.

S. No.	Candidate Information	Brief Details of IPCs
1	Name:R.Kamaraj	2 charges related to Attempt to murder (IPC Section-307)
	:Thiruvarur	1 charges related to kidnapping (IPC Section-363)
	Constituency:Nannilam	1 charges related to Voluntarily causing hurt by dangerous weapons or means (IPC
	Party:AIADMK	Section-324)
	Total Cases:10	5 charges related to A will (IPC Section-31)
	Serious IPC:4	5 charges related to Cheating by personation (IPC Section-416)
	Other IPC:58	5 charges related to cheating by personation (IPC Section-419)
	Cases (Accused)	5 charges related to Forgery (IPC Section-463)
		5 charges related to Making a false document (IPC Section-464)
	1. IPC Sections - 31, 416, 419, 463,	5 charges related to forgery (IPC Section-465)
	464, 465, 471, 474 , Other Details	5 charges related to Using as genuine a forged document or electronic record (IPC
	- 1950 PEOPLE REPRESENTATION	Section-471)
	ACT.	5 charges related to Having possession of document described in Section 466 or 467, knowing it to be forged and intending to use it as genuine (IPC Section-474)
	2. IPC Sections - 31, 416, 419, 463,	4 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148)
	464, 465, 471, 474, Other Details	4 charges related to wrongful restraint (IPC Section-341)
	- 1950 PEOPLE REPRESENTATION	4 charges related to rioting (IPC Section-147)
	ACT. 3. IPC Sections - 31, 416, 419, 463,	2 charges related to Disobedience to order duly promulgated by public servant (IPC
	464, 465, 471, 474, Other Details	Section-188)
	- 1950 PEOPLE REPRESENTATION	1 charges related to Punishment (IPC Section-143)
	ACT.	1 charges related to Assault or criminal force to deter public servant from discharge of his
	4. IPC Sections - 31, 416, 419, 463,	duty (IPC Section-353)
	464, 465, 471, 474 , Other Details	1 charges related to Act endangering life or personal safety of others (IPC Section-336)
	- 1950 PEOPLE REPRESENTATION	1 charges related to voluntarily causing hurt (IPC Section-323)
	ACT.	
	5. IPC Sections - 31, 416, 419, 463,	
	464, 465, 471, 474 , Other Details	
	- 1950 PEOPLE REPRESENTATION	
	ACT.	
	6. IPC Sections - 147, 148, 341,	
	294(b), 188 , Other Details -	
	7. IPC Sections - 143, 341, 188,	
	Other Details -	
	8. IPC Sections - 147, 148, 341, 353, 506(ii) , Other Details -	
	9. IPC Sections - 147, 148, 363,	
	294(b), 336, 506(ii), 307, Other	
	Details -	
	10. IPC Sections - 147, 148, 294(b),	
	341, 323, 324, 307 , Other Details	
	- 3(1) PPDL ACT.	
	Cases (Convicted)No Cases	
2	Name:C.VE. SHANMUGAM	1 charges related to Obscene acts and songs (IPC Section-294)
	:Villupuram	1 charges related to Voluntarily causing hurt by dangerous weapons or means (IPC
	Constituency: Villupuram	Section-324)
	Party:AIADMK	1 charges related to theft (IPC Section-379)





		Association for Democratic Reforms
S. No.	Candidate Information	Brief Details of IPCs
	Total Cases:5	1 charges related to cheating by personation (IPC Section-419)
	Serious IPC:3	1 charges related to forgery (IPC Section-465)
	Other IPC:7	1 charges related to Forgery of record of court or of public register, etc. (IPC Section-466)
	Cases (Accused)	1 charges related to Using as genuine a forged document or electronic record (IPC Section-471)
	 IPC Sections - 419,465,466,471, 147,148, 294, 324, 385, 379, Other Details - 6 CASES - DETAILS NOT GIVEN SEPARATELY; IPC DETAILS ARE MENTIONED TOGETHER - 294(B), 31 R.P.ACT 1950, C.C.NO976/08 IPC Sections - , Other Details - C.C. NO 979/2008, 06-01-2006 IPC Sections - , Other Details - C.C. NO980/2008, 30-01-2006 IPC Sections - , Other Details - C.C. NO981/2008, 30-01-2006 IPC Sections - , Other Details - C.C. NO982/2008, 17-02-2006 	1 charges related to rioting (IPC Section-147) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to Putting person in fear of injury in order to commit extortion (IPC Section-385)
	Cases (Convicted)No Cases	
3	Name:SENTHILBALAJI	1 charges related to Attempt to murder (IPC Section-307)
	:Karur	1 charges related to Voluntarily causing hurt by dangerous weapons or means (IPC
	Constituency:Karur	Section-324)
	Party:AIADMK	5 charges related to rioting (IPC Section-147)
	Total Cases:7	4 charges related to criminal intimidation (IPC Section-506)
	Serious IPC:2	3 charges related to Punishment (IPC Section-143)
	Other IPC:27	3 charges related to wrongful restraint (IPC Section-341)
	Cases (Accused)	3 charges related to Assault or criminal force to deter public servant from discharge of his duty (IPC Section-353)
	1. IPC Sections - 143, 341, 188(A), Other Details - Case No. 185/2006	3 charges related to Disobedience to order duly promulgated by public servant (IPC Section-188) 3 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148)
	2. IPC Sections - 147, 341, 506, 353, 188 , Other Details - 506(i), 7(1)(a)(c)IA Act (Case No. 455/2007)	1 charges related to voluntarily causing hurt (IPC Section-323) 1 charges related to Every member of unlawful assembly guilty of offence committed in prosecution of common object (IPC Section-149) 1 charges related to Assault or criminal force to woman with intent to outrage her
	3. IPC Sections - 143, 147, 148, 149, 353, 307, Other Details - Case No. 1075/2007	modesty (IPC Section-354)
	4. IPC Sections - 147, 353, 354, 188, 506 , Other Details - 506(i), Case No. 752/2007	
	5. IPC Sections - 147, 148, 294(b), 323, 324, 506, Other Details - 506(ii), Case No.1403/2010	
	6. IPC Sections - 143, 341, 188,	
	Other Details - Case No.24/2011	
	7. IPC Sections - 147, 148, 294(b), 506, Other Details - 506(ii), 3(i)	





		Association for Democratic Reforms
S. No.	Candidate Information	Brief Details of IPCs
	PPDCL Act(Case No.25/2011)	
	Cases (Convicted)No Cases	
4	Name:SELLUR K RAJU	2 charges related to Voluntarily causing hurt by dangerous weapons or means (IPC
	:Madurai	Section-324)
	Constituency:Madurai West	3 charges related to rioting (IPC Section-147)
	Party:AIADMK	2 charges related to criminal intimidation (IPC Section-506)
	Total Cases:4	1 charges related to Disobedience to order duly promulgated by public servant (IPC
	Serious IPC:2	Section-188)
	Other IPC:8	1 charges related to voluntarily causing hurt (IPC Section-323)
	Cases (Accused)	1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148)
	 IPC Sections - 147, 188, Other Details - 7(1)A CRIMINAL LAW AMENDMENT ACT, CRIME NO.1698/06 DATE:21-03-2007 IPC Sections - 147, 323, 324, 506, Other Details - 506(a),3(1) OF TNPPDL ACT, CRIME NO.922/2008 (FIR STAGE) IPC Sections - 147, 148, 324, 506, Other Details - 506(i), CRIME NO.295/2009 (FIR STAGE) 	
	Cases (Convicted)	
	1. IPC Sections - , Other Details - STC NO.1049/08, 18(c) DRUGS & COSMETICS ACT 1940 R/W 65(3), 65(4)(3)(1) OF DRUGS & COSMETICS RULES OF 1945 R/W SEC 27(d) DRUGS & COSMETICS ACT, JUDICIAL MAGISTRATE COURT NO.II, MADURAI, DATE:20-07-2010 (IMPRISONMENT EXECUTED AND FINE PAID)	
5	Name:Gokula Indra	1 charges related to Voluntarily causing hurt by dangerous weapons or means (IPC
	:Chennai	Section-324)
	Constituency:Anna Nagar	1 charges related to theft (IPC Section-379)
	Party:AIADMK	1 charges related to rioting (IPC Section-147)
	Total Cases:3	1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148)
	Serious IPC:2	1 charges related to Assault or criminal force with intent to dishonour person, otherwise
	Other IPC:3	than on grave provocation (IPC Section-355)
	Cases (Accused)	
	 IPC Sections - 147,148, 294(b), 324, 355, 379, Other Details - Cr.No.569/2010 	





_		Association for Democratic Reforms
S. No.	Candidate Information	Brief Details of IPCs
	 IPC Sections - , Other Details - 4(1)A, TNOPP ACT (CR.No.32/2011) IPC Sections - , Other Details - 4(1)A, TNOPP ACT (CR.No.24/2011) 	
	Cases (Convicted)No Cases	
6	Name:B.Valarmathi	1 charges related to Attempt to murder (IPC Section-307)
	:Chennai Constituency:Thousand Lights Party:AlADMK Total Cases:2 Serious IPC:2 Other IPC:7 Cases (Accused) 1. IPC Sections - 147, 148, 353, 286, 120(b), 34, 171(f), 307, Other Details - 5 Explosive Substannces Act (Case No.775/06) 2. IPC Sections - 109, Other Details - 13(2),13(I)(e)of PC Act 1988.(Case No.02/07)	1 charges related to undue influence or personation at an election (IPC Section-171F) 1 charges related to rioting (IPC Section-147) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to Assault or criminal force to deter public servant from discharge of his duty (IPC Section-353) 1 charges related to Negligent conduct with respect to explosive substance (IPC Section-286) 1 charges related to Punishment of criminal conspiracy (IPC Section-120B) 1 charges related to Acts done by several persons in furtherance of common intention (IPC Section-34) 1 charges related to Punishment of abetment if the act abetted is committed in consequence, and where no express provision is made for its punishment (IPC Section-109)
	Cases (Convicted)No Cases	
7	Name:PANNEERSELVAM.O :Theni Constituency:Bodinayakanur Party:AIADMK Total Cases:2 Serious IPC:1 Other IPC:5 Cases (Accused) 1. IPC Sections - 109, Other Details - 13(1)(e),13(2) of PC Act 2. IPC Sections - 147, 148, 149, 353, 307, Other Details - 3 of TNPPDL Act	1 charges related to Attempt to murder (IPC Section-307) 1 charges related to Punishment of abetment if the act abetted is committed in consequence, and where no express provision is made for its punishment (IPC Section-109) 1 charges related to rioting (IPC Section-147) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to Every member of unlawful assembly guilty of offence committed in prosecution of common object (IPC Section-149) 1 charges related to Assault or criminal force to deter public servant from discharge of his duty (IPC Section-353)
	Cases (Convicted)No Cases	
8	Constituency:Gobichettipalayam Party:AIADMK Total Cases:2	1 charges related to Attempt to murder (IPC Section-307) 1 charges related to rioting (IPC Section-147) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to Assault or criminal force to deter public servant from discharge of his duty (IPC Section-353) 1 charges related to Every member of unlawful assembly guilty of offence committed in





		Association for Democratic Reforms
S. No.	Candidate Information	Brief Details of IPCs
	Other IPC:4	prosecution of common object (IPC Section-149)
		prosecution of common object (IPC Section-149)
	Cases (Accused)	
	1. IPC Sections - , Other Details -	
	13(2), 13(1)(e) Prevention of	
	Corruption Act 1988.	
	2. IPC Sections - 147,148,353,307,	
	149 , Other Details - Sec 3 of	
	TNPPT Act	
	Cases (Convicted)No Cases	
		1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 (1000 H T00)
9	Name: J JAYALALITHAA	4 charges related to defamation (IPC Section-500)
	:Tiruchirappalli	1 charges related to Punishment of criminal conspiracy (IPC Section-120B)
	Constituency:Srirangam	1 charges related to Printing or engraving matter known to be defamatory (IPC Section-
	Party:AIADMK	501)
	Total Cases:10	1 charges related to Defamation (IPC Section-499)
	Serious IPC:0	
	Other IPC:7	
	Cases (Accused)	
	Cases (Accused)	
	1. IPC Sections - 120B, , Other	
	Details - 13(2) 13(1)(e)OF P.C.ACT	
	2. IPC Sections - , Other Details -	
	276-CC OF INCOME TAX ACT.	
	3. IPC Sections - , Other Details - 35B	
	OF THE WEALTH TAX ACT.	
	4. IPC Sections - , Other Details - 11	
	OF THE PC ACT.1988	
	5. IPC Sections - 500, Other Details -	
	6. IPC Sections - 500, 501, Other	
	Details -	
	7. IPC Sections - 500 , Other Details -	
	7. IPC Sections - 500 , Other Details -	
	8. IPC Sections - 499, 500 , Other	
	Details -	
	9. IPC Sections - , Other Details - Crl.	
	M.P No-2972/2007	
	10. IPC Sections - , Other Details - Crl.	
	M.P No-5347/2007	
	110 33 17, 2007	
	Cases (Convicted)No Cases	
10	Name:P.CHENDURPANDIAN	3 charges related to Punishment (IPC Section-143)
	:Tirunelveli	3 charges related to Disobedience to order duly promulgated by public servant (IPC
	Constituency:Kadayanallur	Section-188)
	-	,
	Party:AIADMK	1 charges related to wrongful restraint (IPC Section-341)
	Total Cases:3	
	Serious IPC:0	
	Other IPC:7	
	Cases (Accused)	
L		I





		Association for Democratic Reforms
S. No.	Candidate Information	Brief Details of IPCs
	 IPC Sections - 143,341,188 , Other Details - 7(1)(A)CLA ACT CASE NO.346/2007 IPC Sections - 143,188 , Other Details - CASE NO.180/2011 IPC Sections - 143,188 , Other Details - CASE NO. 389/2011 	
	Cases (Convicted)No Cases	
11	Name:K.T.PACHAIMAL :Kanniyakumari Constituency:Kanniyakumari Party:AIADMK	1 charges related to Punishment (IPC Section-143) 1 charges related to Disobedience to order duly promulgated by public servant (IPC Section-188) 1 charges related to Negligent conduct with respect to fire or combustible matter (IPC Section-285) 1 charges related to Cheating and dishonestly inducing delivery of property (IPC Section-420) 1 charges related to criminal intimidation (IPC Section-506)
12	Constituency: Thoothukkudi	





S. No.	Candidate Information	Brief Details of IPCs
	CR NO.157/2011,	
	PALAYAMKOTTAI PS,	
	Cases (Convicted)No Cases	

Table:- Details of Ministers with pending criminal cases

Full assets details of ministers

The following table gives the full asset and PAN details of all the 33 ministers analyzed.

S. No.	Name	Constituency	Party	Movable Assets (Rs)	Immovable Assets (Rs)	Total Assets (Rs)	PAN Given
1	J JAYALALITHAA	Srirangam	AIADMK	13,03,27,979	38,37,40,000	51,40,67,979 51 Crore+	Υ
2	SENGOTTAIYAN KA	Gobichettipalayam	AIADMK	3,28,32,349	2,37,29,720	5,65,62,069 5 Crore+	Υ
3	Chellapandian S. T.	Thoothukkudi	AIADMK	72,85,429	4,31,00,000	5,03,85,429 5 Crore+	Υ
4	PALANISWAMI K	Edappadi	AIADMK	47,49,801	3,19,65,901	3,67,15,702 3 Crore+	Υ
5	B.Valarmathi	Thousand Lights	AIADMK	44,44,407	2,91,52,250	3,35,96,657 3 Crore+	Υ
6	S SUNDARRAJ	Paramakudi	AIADMK	1,27,59,618	2,03,79,000	3,31,38,618 3 <i>C</i> rore+	Υ
7	K.P.MUNUSAMY	Krishnagiri	AIADMK	15,46,000	2,73,00,000	2,88,46,000 2 Crore+	N
8	MOORTHY.V.	Madavaram	AIADMK	35,06,103	2,37,70,400	2,72,76,503 2 Crore+	Υ
9	Mohammedjohn	Ranipet	AIADMK	88,36,656	1,69,00,000	2,57,36,656 2 Crore+	Υ
10	VIJAY.DR.V.S.	Vellore	AIADMK	98,62,189	1,48,50,000	2,47,12,189 2 Crore+	Υ
11	N R Sivapathi	Musiri	AIADMK	28,40,217	1,65,00,000	1,93,40,217 1 Crore+	Υ





						Association for Democratic Reform	ns 🔼
S. No.	Name	Constituency	Party	Movable Assets (Rs)	Immovable Assets (Rs)	Total Assets (Rs)	PAN Given
12	M C Sampath	Cuddalore	AIADMK	57,97,196	1,26,87,000	1,84,84,196 1 Crore+	Y
13	RAMALINGAM KV	Erode (West)	AIADMK	38,63,479	1,21,50,000	1,60,13,479 1 Crore+	Υ
14	THANGAMANI.P	Kumarapalayam	AIADMK	33,19,345	1,21,00,000	1,54,19,345 1 Crore+	Y
15	DAMODHARAN	Kinathukadavu	AIADMK	62,89,709	89,00,000	1,51,89,709 1 Crore+	Y
16	K A Jayapal	Nagapattinam	AIADMK	92,13,805	47,02,000	1,39,15,805 1 Crore+	Υ
17	SENTHILBALAJI	Karur	AIADMK	80,04,057	52,00,000 [*]	1,32,04,057 1 Crore+	N
18	R Vaithilingam	Orathanadu	AIADMK	34,59,659	85,87,263	1,20,46,922 1 Crore+	Y
19	VISWANATHAN R	Natham	AIADMK	48,43,019	67,00,000	1,15,43,019 1 Crore+	Y
20	M.S.M. ANANDAN	Tiruppur (North)	AIADMK	30,46,510	84,60,000	1,15,06,510 1 Crore+	Y
21	Gokula Indra	Anna Nagar	AIADMK	59,59,540	45,34,273	1,04,93,813 1 Crore+	Y
22	P.CHENDURPANDIAN	Kadayanallur	AIADMK	62,75,300	32,07,100 [*]	94,82,400 94 Lacs+	N
23	K.T.PACHAIMAL	Kanniyakumari	AIADMK	28,88,604	54,35,000	83,23,604 83 Lacs+	Y
24	R.Kamaraj	Nannilam	AIADMK	30,65,056	41,00,000	71,65,056 71 Lacs+	Y
25	SUBRAMANIAN. N	Gandharvakottai	AIADMK	48,26,925	13,49,000	61,75,925 61 Lacs+	Y





						Association for Democratic Reforms			
S. No.	Name	Constituency	Party	Movable Assets (Rs)	Immovable Assets (Rs)	Total Assets (Rs)	PAN Given		
26	C.VE. SHANMUGAM	Villupuram	AIADMK	7,80,799	51,10,000 [*]	58,90,799	Y		
20	C.VE. SHANWOGAW	Viliaparam	AIADIVIK	7,00,733	31,10,000	58 Lacs+	'		
27	K.T. RAJENDRA BALAJI	Sivakasi	AIADMK	21,47,052	29,38,563	50,85,615	N		
				,,		50 Lacs+			
28	B.V. RAMANA	Thiruvallur	AIADMK	16,93,000	28,00,000	44,93,000	Υ		
				_5,52,555		44 Lacs+	-		
29	T.K.M.Chinneyah	Tambaram	AIADMK	1,94,800	35,00,000	36,94,800	N		
	,			, ,		36 Lacs+			
30	PANNEERSELVAM.O	Bodinayakanur	AIADMK	25,67,174	10,00,000	35,67,174	Υ		
		·				35 Lacs+			
31	Mukkur Thiru N.	Cheyyar	AIADMK	21,15,000	13,50,000	34,65,000	Υ		
	Subramanian					34 Lacs+			
32	SELLUR K RAJU	Madurai West	AIADMK	10,63,791	22,40,000	33,03,791	Υ		
				, ,	, , ,	33 Lacs+			
33	P PALANIAPPAN	Pappireddippatti	AIADMK	24,79,451	7,00,000*	31,79,451	N		
		11 11		, ,	, ,	31 Lacs+			

*For candidates whose total values have not been given in the affidavit, the total has been calculated from the details given by the candidate himself/herself in the affidavit

Table:- Full assets details of ministers





Analysis of re-elected MLAs

Summary of asset comparison of re-elected MLAs

Manamadurai constituency with a growth of 3396% in his assets.

Out of the 234 MLAs, there were 50 MLAs analyzed whose details were matched with information available from the last Assembly Elections held in 2006. This analysis is based on the affidavits filed in 2006 and 2011. It attempts to compare the assets of MLAs from the Tamil Nadu Assembly, 2006 who got re-elected in Tamil Nadu Assembly Elections, 2011.

Assets comparison for re-elected MLAs

The table below provides the increase in assets of re-elected MLAs who contested and won both 2006 and 2011 elections. In Rupees, the maximum growth in assets has been for J Jayalalitha of AIADMK contested from Srirangam constituency. Her assets have grown by over 26.74 crores. She is followed by M Karunanidhi of DMK (asset growth of over 17.57 crores) and N R Rengarajan of INC (asset growth of over 7.76 crores). In percentage terms, the maximum percentage increase is in the total assets of T Senguttuvan of DMK from Veppanahalli. His assets have grown by 29012%. He is followed by constituency K Ulaganathan of CPI from Thiruthuraipoondi constituency with a growth of 4104% in his assets and M Gunasekaran of AIADMK from

S.No.	Name	Party in Tamil Nadu 2011	Constituency in 2011	Constituency in 2006	Assets in 2011	Assets in 2006	Asset Increase	% Increase in Asset
1.	J JAYALALITHAA	AIADMK	Srirangam	Andipatti	51,40,67,979 51 Crore+		26,74,85,979 26 Crore+	108%
2.	M.Karunanidhi	DMK	Thiruvarur	Chepauk	44,14,93,770 44 Crore+	26,57,62,881 26 Crore+	17,57,30,889 17 Crore+	66%
3.	N.R.RENGARAJAN	INC	Pattukkottai	Pattukkottai	10,51,66,919 10 Crore+		7,76,02,311 7 Crore+	282%
4.	DURAIMURUGAN	DMK	Katpadi	Katpadi	9,18,98,176 9 Crore+		6,88,50,275 6 Crore+	299%
5.	S. Gunasekaran	СРІ	Sivaganga	Sivaganga	5,57,42,707 5 Crore+	, ,	5,13,91,582 5 Crore+	1181%
6.	N.Ramakrishnan	DMK	Cumbum	Cumbum	6,78,44,299 6 Crore+		4,32,51,277 4 Crore+	176%
7.	KR PERIYAKARUPPAN	DMK	Tiruppattur	Tiruppattur	4,81,53,953 4 Crore+		4,00,65,553 4 Crore+	495%
8.	SAKKARAPANI R	DMK	Oddanchatram	Oddanchatram	4,57,90,710 4 Crore+		3,56,43,617 3 Crore+	351%
9.	RAMACHANDRAN K	DMK	Coonoor	Gudalur	6,63,88,681 6 Crore+		3,16,29,481 3 Crore+	91%
10.	SENGOTTAIYAN KA	AIADMK	Gobichettipalayam	Gobichettipalayam	5,65,62,069 5 Crore+		3,14,27,172 3 Crore+	125%
11.	KRISHNAMOORTHY.S	AIADMK	Kalasapakkam	Kalasapakkam	3,13,72,550	0	3,13,72,550	%





					·		Association for Democratic Re	forms
S.No.	Name	Party in Tamil Nadu 2011	Constituency in 2011	Constituency in 2006	Assets in 2011	Assets in 2006	Asset Increase	% Increase in Asset
					3 Crore+		3 Crore+	
12.	Thangam Thennarasu	DMK	Tiruchuli	Aruppukottai	3,62,90,516 3 Crore+	51,12,994	3,11,77,522	610%
						51 Lacs+	3 Crore+	
13.	GOPINATH	INC	Hosur	Hosur	3,20,90,352 3 Crore+	15,80,000 15 Lacs+	3,05,10,352 3 Crore+	1931%
14.	Velumani S P	AIADMK	Thondamuthur	Perur	2,62,36,171 2 Crore+	32,38,633 32 Lacs+	2,29,97,538 2 Crore+	710%
15.	S.SIVASANKAR	DMK	Kunnam	Andimadam	2,47,67,261 2 Crore+	23,11,000 23 Lacs+	2,24,56,261 2 Crore+	972%
16.	T.SENGUTTUVAN	DMK	Veppanahalli	Krishnagiri	1,86,31,940 1 Crore+	64,000 64 Thou+	1,85,67,940 1 Crore+	29012%
17.	A.K.BOSE	AIADMK	Madurai North	Tirupparankundram	2,61,35,700 2 Crore+	1,09,30,500 1 Crore+	1,52,05,200 1 Crore+	139%
18.	R. KUMARAGURU	AIADMK	Ulundurpettai	Thirunavalur	1,68,01,753 1 Crore+	40,19,102 40 Lacs+	1,27,82,651 1 Crore+	318%
19.	MALARAVAN T	AIADMK	Coimbatore (North)	Coimbatore West	1,55,22,535 1 Crore+	49,33,321 49 Lacs+	1,05,89,214 1 Crore+	215%
20.	K.P ANBALAGAN	AIADMK	Palacodu	Palacode	1,54,09,083 1 Crore+	53,81,889 53 Lacs+	1,00,27,194 1 Crore+	186%
21.	DAMODHARAN	AIADMK	Kinathukadavu	Kinathukkadavu	1,51,89,709 1 Crore+		95,34,186 95 Lacs+	169%
22.	T. Ramachandran	СРІ	Thalli	Thalli	98,33,684 98 Lacs+		95,05,684 95 Lacs+	2898%
23.	John Jacob	INC	Killiyoor	Killiyoor	92,30,211 92 Lacs+		85,34,211 85 Lacs+	1226%
24.	R Vaithilingam	AIADMK	Orathanadu	Orathanad	1,20,46,922 1 Crore+		82,96,126 82 Lacs+	221%
25.	SENTHILBALAJI	AIADMK	Karur	Karur	1,32,04,057 1 Crore+		77,33,953 77 Lacs+	141%
26.	SUBA THANGAVELAN	DMK	Tiruvadanai	Kadaladi	1,13,11,041 1 Crore+	39,98,440 39 Lacs+	73,12,601 73 Lacs+	183%
27.	THANGAMANI.P	AIADMK	Kumarapalayam	Tiruchengode	1,54,19,345 1 Crore+	83,95,276 83 Lacs+	70,24,069 70 Lacs+	84%
28.	A SOUNDHARAPANDIAN	DMK	Lalgudi	Lalgudi	1,01,41,496 1 Crore+	37,75,400 37 Lacs+	63,66,096 63 Lacs+	169%
29.	STALIN M K	DMK	Kolathur	Thousand Lights	2,11,60,061 2 Crore+	1,50,75,648 1 Crore+	60,84,413 60 Lacs+	40%
30.	T.P.M.MOHIDEENKHAN	DMK	Palayamkottai	Palayamcottai	1,07,41,012 1 Crore+	51,76,012 51 Lacs+	55,65,000 55 Lacs+	108%
31.	R. SAMY	AIADMK	Melur	Melur	61,23,441 61 Lacs+	8,93,190 8 Lacs+	52,30,251 52 Lacs+	586%
32.	PERIYASAMY I	DMK	Athoor	Athoor	1,84,09,394 1 Crore+	1,36,04,433 1 Crore+	48,04,961 48 Lacs+	35%
33.	KALAIRAJAN V P	AIADMK	Thiyagarayanagar	II haadaraya Nadar	59,80,538 59 Lacs+	16,80,000 16 Lacs+	43,00,538 43 Lacs+	256%
34.	SUBRAMANIAN. N	AIADMK	Gandharvakottai	Kolathur	61,75,925	19,32,460	42,43,465	220%





							Association for Democratic Re	torms —
S.No.	Name	Party in Tamil Nadu 2011	Constituency in 2011	Constituency in 2006	Assets in 2011	Assets in 2006	Asset Increase	% Increase in Asset
					61 Lacs+	19 Lacs+	42 Lacs+	
35.	M. GUNASEKRAN	AIADMK	Manamadurai	Manamadurai	41,46,929 41 Lacs+		40,28,313 40 Lacs+	3396%
36.	C.VE. SHANMUGAM	AIADMK	Villupuram	Tindivanam	58,90,799 58 Lacs+	20,40,763 20 Lacs+	38,50,036 38 Lacs+	189%
37.	R. DORAIKKANNU	AIADMK	Papanasam	Papanasam	43,28,533 43 Lacs+	4,86,500 4 Lacs+	38,42,033 38 Lacs+	790%
38.	JAYAKUMAR D.	AIADMK	Royapuram	Royapuram	84,73,902 84 Lacs+	51,69,018 51 Lacs+	33,04,884 33 Lacs+	64%
39.	SENTHAMIZHAN.G	AIADMK	Saidapet	Saidapet	55,11,140 55 Lacs+	24,97,700 24 Lacs+	30,13,440 30 Lacs+	121%
40.	Selvi Ramajayam	AIADMK	Bhuvanagiri	Bhuvanagiri	38,87,376 38 Lacs+	17,03,495 17 Lacs+	21,83,881 21 Lacs+	128%
41.	R.CHINNASAMY	AIADMK	Singanallur	Singanallur	37,12,192 37 Lacs+		21,62,192 21 Lacs+	139%
42.	C. KARUPPASAMY	AIADMK	Sankarankovil	Sankaranayanarkoil	19,71,575 19 Lacs+	69,746 69 Thou+	19,01,829 19 Lacs+	2727%
43.	K. ULAGANATHAN	СРІ	Thiruthuraipoondi	Tiruthuraipundi	15,78,286 15 Lacs+	37,539 37 Thou+	15,40,747 15 Lacs+	4104%
44.	PANNEERSELVAM.O	AIADMK	Bodinayakanur	Periyakulam	35,67,174 35 Lacs+	20,81,702 20 Lacs+	14,85,472 14 Lacs+	71%
45.	Chinnaraj	AIADMK	Mettuppalayam	Mettupalayam	22,49,254 22 Lacs+		13,29,254 13 Lacs+	144%
46.	VISWANATHAN R	AIADMK	Natham	Natham	1,15,43,019 1 Crore+		13,02,551 13 Lacs+	13%
47.	P Dilli Babu	CPI(M)	Harur	Harur	12,42,602 12 Lacs+	82,355 82 Thou+	11,60,247 11 Lacs+	1409%
48.	K Bala Bharathy	CPI(M)	Dindigul	Dindigul	6,15,161 6 Lacs+	6,83,420 6 Lacs+	-68,259	-10%
49.	Shanmugavelu	AIADMK	Madathukulam	Udumalpet	3,75,56,618 3 Crore+	4,51,63,243 4 Crore+	-76,06,625	-17%
50.	Anitha R.Radhakrishnan	DMK	Tiruchendur	Tiruchendur	0	2,32,44,500 2 Crore+	-2,32,44,500	-100%

Table: - Assets comparison for re-elected MLAs

Average asset increase for re-elected MLAs-Party wise

The table below provides the party-wise average asset growth of re-elected MLAs. Financial details of 27 MLAs of AIADMK were available from affidavits of 2011 Assembly Elections. These were matched with available affidavits of 2006 to reveal that the average asset increase for re-elected MLAs of AIADMK was Rs. 1.73 crores. The same procedure was followed for 15 MLAs from DMK and it shows an average asset increase of Rs. 3.16 crores. Given below is the detail for 5 parties who had re-elected MLAs in 2011 Tamil Nadu Assembly.





S.No.	Party in Tamil Nadu 2011	Total No. of re- elected MLAs analyzed	Average Assets in Tamil Nadu 2011	Average Assets in Tamil Nadu Assembly Elections 2006	Average Asset Increase	Average % Increase in Asset
1.	AIADMK	27	3,21,88,381 3 Crore+	1,48,16,257 1 Crore+	1,73,72,124 1 Crore+	117%
2.	DMK	15	6,08,68,154 6 Crore+	2,92,50,728 2 Crore+	3,16,17,426 3 Crore+	108%
3.	INC	3	4,88,29,161 4 Crore+	99,46,869 99 Lacs+	3,88,82,292 3 Crore+	391%
4.	СРІ	3	2,23,84,892 2 Crore+	15,72,221 15 Lacs+	2,08,12,671 2 Crore+	1324%
5.	CPI(M)	2	9,28,882 9 Lacs+	3,82,888 3 Lacs+	5,45,994 5 Lacs+	143%
	GRAND TOTAL	50	3,99,52,170 3 Crore+	1,74,82,458 1 Crore+	2,24,69,712 2 Crore+	129%

Table:- Average asset increase for re-elected MLAs-Party wise

Full Asset Details of MLAs

The following table gives the full asset details of MLAs

S.No.	Name	District	Constituency	Party	Movable Assets (Rs)	Immovable Assets (Rs)	Total Assets (Rs)	PAN Given
1	A. NARAYANAN	TIRUNELVELI	NANGUNERI	AIADMK	37,57,02,444	65,71,63,000	1,03,28,65,444 103 Crore+	Υ
2	* K.C.PALLANI SHAMY	KARUR	ARAVAKURICHI	DMK	31,89,80,271	35,75,67,720	67,65,47,991 67 Crore+	Υ
3	E SUBAYA	TIRUNELVELI	AMBASAMUDRAM	AIADMK	2,38,19,052	57,88,37,228	60,26,56,280 60 Crore+	Υ
4	J JAYALALITHAA	TIRUCHIRAPPALLI	SRIRANGAM	AIADMK	13,03,27,979	38,37,40,000	51,40,67,979 51 Crore+	Υ
5	M.KARUNANIDHI	THIRUVARUR	THIRUVARUR	DMK	40,95,04,142	3,19,89,628	44,14,93,770 44 Crore+	Υ
6	VIJAYKANT	VILLUPURAM	RISHIVANDIYAM	DMDK	11,43,86,376	16,55,25,198	27,99,11,574 27 Crore+	Υ
7	R.SARATHKUMAR	TIRUNELVELI	TENKASI	AIADMK	13,93,17,365	13,73,99,307	27,67,16,672 27 Crore+	Υ
8	DORAISAMY R	COIMBATORE	COIMBATORE (SOUTH)	AIADMK	2,56,26,863	24,85,00,000	27,41,26,863 27 Crore+	Υ
9	MICHEL RAYAPPAN S.	TIRUNELVELI	RADHAPURAM	DMDK	2,58,01,161*	24,49,57,195	27,07,58,356 27 Crore+	Υ
10	RAJAA T.R.B.	THIRUVARUR	MANNARGUDI	DMK	19,58,25,042	6,86,06,700	26,44,31,742 26 Crore+	Υ
11	K.P.KANDAN	KANCHEEPURAM	SHOZHINGANALLUR	AIADMK	1,32,80,571	20,25,00,000	21,57,80,571 21 Crore+	Υ
12	K.P. PARAMASIVAM	TIRUPPUR	PALLADAM	AIADMK	2,12,62,595	12,10,27,410	14,22,90,005 14 Crore+	Υ
13	NATARAJ NSN	TIRUPPUR	KANGAYAM	AIADMK	7,34,58,952	5,85,38,500	13,19,97,452 13 Crore+	Υ
14	K. PANDIARAJAN	VIRUDHUNAGAR	VIRUDHUNAGAR	DMDK	10,40,30,491	2,14,05,595*	12,54,36,086 12 Crore+	Υ
15	ANBALAGAN	CHENNAI	CHEPAUK-THIRUVALLIKENI	DMK	6,62,79,654	5,41,00,000	12,03,79,654 12 Crore+	Υ
16	VENUGOPALU K.S.N.	DINDIGUL	PALANI	AIADMK	69,92,297	10,87,52,403	11,57,44,700	Υ





					Association for Democratic Reforms			
S.No.	Name	District	Constituency	Party	Movable Assets (Rs)	Immovable Assets (Rs)	Total Assets (Rs)	PAN Given
17	N.R.RENGARAJAN	THANJAVUR	PATTUKKOTTAI	INC	51,07,311	10,00,59,608	11 Crore+ 10,51,66,919 10 Crore+	Υ
18	POLLACHI V. JAYARAMAN	TIRUPPUR	UDUMALAIPETTAI	AIADMK	2,91,07,791	6,95,20,000	9,86,27,791 9 Crore+	Y
19	DURAIMURUGAN	VELLORE	KATPADI	DMK	3,39,88,976	5,79,09,200	9,18,98,176 9 Crore+	Y
20	VEERAMANI	VELLORE	JOLARPET	AIADMK	1,72,87,670	7,35,00,000	9,07,87,670 9 Crore+	Υ
21	KALAIARASAN.M	VELLORE	ANAIKATTU	PMK	1,68,05,654	6,88,50,000	8,56,55,654 8 Crore+	Υ
22	NAINAR NAGENTHRAN	TIRUNELVELI	TIRUNELVELI	AIADMK	2,87,92,610	5,61,99,370	8,49,91,980 8 Crore+	Υ
23	E.V.VELU	THIRUVANNAMALAI	TIRUVANNAMALAI	DMK	54,04,423	7,56,86,000	8,10,90,423 8 Crore+	Υ
24	C. VIJAYABASKAR	PUDUKKOTTAI	VIRALIMALAI	AIADMK	6,56,12,900	1,44,72,000	8,00,84,900 8 Crore+	Υ
25	JCD PRABHAKAR	CHENNAI	VILLIVAKKAM	AIADMK	1,19,71,814	5,74,60,000	6,94,31,814 6 Crore+	Υ
26	DR.K.KRISHNASAMY	THOOTHUKUDI	OTTAPIDARAM	Puthiya Thamilagam	56,25,690	6,28,50,000	6,84,75,690 6 Crore+	Υ
27	N.RAMAKRISHNAN	THENI	CUMBUM	DMK	1,43,29,399	5,35,14,900	6,78,44,299 6 Crore+	Υ
28	* VIJAYADHARANI	KANNIYAKUMARI	VILAVANCODE	INC	1,49,23,000	5,26,54,000	6,75,77,000 6 Crore+	Y
29	RAMACHANDRAN K	THE NILGIRIS	COONOOR	DMK	2,36,47,681	4,27,41,000	6,63,88,681 6 Crore+	Y
30	ALAGAPURAM R MOHANRAJ	SALEM	SALEM (NORTH)	DMDK	91,94,298	5,64,87,000	6,56,81,298 6 Crore+	Y
31	R. RAJALAKSHMI	CHENNAI	MYLAPORE	AIADMK	29,22,429*	5,60,00,000	5,89,22,429 5 Crore+	Y
32	SENGOTTAIYAN KA	ERODE	GOBICHETTIPALAYAM	AIADMK	3,28,32,349	2,37,29,720	5,65,62,069 5 Crore+	Υ
33	S. GUNASEKARAN	SIVAGANGAI	SIVAGANGA	СРІ	5,01,307	5,52,41,400	5,57,42,707 5 Crore+	Υ
34	ANBALAGAN. G	THANJAVUR	KUMBAKONAM	DMK	1,45,77,817	4,07,81,140	5,53,58,957 5 Crore+	Υ
35	L. VENKATESAN	VILLUPURAM	TIRUKKOYILUR	DMDK	3,00,69,616	2,40,00,000	5,40,69,616 5 Crore+	Υ
36	CHELLAPANDIAN S. T.	THOOTHUKUDI	THOOTHUKKUDI	AIADMK	72,85,429	4,31,00,000	5,03,85,429 5 Crore+	Υ
37	* P.G. RAJENDRAN	TIRUNELVELI	ALANGULAM	AIADMK	3,05,27,702	1,96,65,000	5,01,92,702 5 Crore+	Υ
38	NEELAKANDANV	CHENNAI	THIRU-VI-KA-NAGAR	AIADMK	1,57,57,557	3,30,00,000	4,87,57,557 4 Crore+	Υ
39	KR PERIYAKARUPPAN	SIVAGANGAI	TIRUPPATTUR	DMK	3,52,75,503	1,28,78,450	4,81,53,953 4 Crore+	Υ
40	SAKKARAPANI R	DINDIGUL	ODDANCHATRAM	DMK	48,97,871	4,08,92,839	4,57,90,710 4 Crore+	Υ
41	N.D. VENKATACHALAM	ERODE	PERUNDURAI	AIADMK	97,78,722	3,29,05,000	4,26,83,722 4 Crore+	Υ
42	JAYASUDHA.L	THIRUVANNAMALAI	POLUR	AIADMK	1,56,70,013	2,63,41,800*	4,20,11,813 4 Crore+	Υ
43	NARAYANAN P G	ERODE	BHAVANI	AIADMK	1,04,74,002	3,08,00,000	4,12,74,002 4 Crore+	Υ





						Association for Der	mocratic Reforms	
S.No.	Name	District	Constituency	Party	Movable Assets (Rs)	Immovable Assets (Rs)	Total Assets (Rs)	PAN Given
44	C.ARUNPANDIAN	THANJAVUR	PERAVURANI	DMDK	78,63,462	3,17,73,000	3,96,36,462 3 Crore+	Υ
45	K P KRISHNAN	PUDUKKOTTAI	ALANGUDI	AIADMK	24,81,250	3,67,00,000	3,91,81,250 3 Crore+	Υ
46	S.R. PARTHIBAN	SALEM	METTUR	DMDK	47,56,357	3,41,72,362	3,89,28,719 3 Crore+	Υ
47	SHANMUGAVELU	TIRUPPUR	MADATHUKULAM	AIADMK	1,88,06,618	1,87,50,000	3,75,56,618 3 Crore+	Υ
48	PALANISWAMI K	SALEM	EDAPPADI	AIADMK	47,49,801	3,19,65,901	3,67,15,702 3 Crore+	Υ
49	THANGAM THENNARASU	VIRUDHUNAGAR	TIRUCHULI	DMK	1,48,38,516	2,14,52,000	3,62,90,516 3 Crore+	Υ
50	VETRIIVEL	CHENNAI	DR.RADHAKRISHNAN NAGAR	AIADMK	30,00,482	3,09,24,970	3,39,25,452 3 Crore+	Υ
51	B.VALARMATHI	CHENNAI	THOUSAND LIGHTS	AIADMK	44,44,407	2,91,52,250	3,35,96,657 3 Crore+	Υ
52	S SUNDARRAJ	RAMANATHAPURAM	PARAMAKUDI	AIADMK	1,27,59,618	2,03,79,000	3,31,38,618 3 Crore+	Υ
53	K.G.RAMESH	VELLORE	TIRUPATTUR	AIADMK	2,73,78,473	53,95,000	3,27,73,473 3 Crore+	Υ
54	GOPINATH	KRISHNAGIRI	HOSUR	INC	14,90,352	3,06,00,000	3,20,90,352 3 Crore+	Υ
55	S. VEDHACHALAM	THIRUVALLUR	AMBATTUR	AIADMK	29,46,303	2,85,56,750*	3,15,03,053 3 Crore+	Υ
56	KRISHNAMOORTHY.S	THIRUVANNAMALAI	KALASAPAKKAM	AIADMK	1,69,87,550	1,43,85,000*	3,13,72,550 3 Crore+	Υ
57	PONNUSAMY K	TIRUPPUR	DHARAPURAM	AIADMK	96,68,688	2,17,00,000	3,13,68,688 3 Crore+	Υ
58	K.MANOHARAN	KANCHEEPURAM	THIRUPORUR	AIADMK	24,18,000	2,73,64,000	2,97,82,000 2 Crore+	Υ
59	K.P.MUNUSAMY	KRISHNAGIRI	KRISHNAGIRI	AIADMK	15,46,000	2,73,00,000	2,88,46,000 2 Crore+	N
60	K. GOPALSAMY	VIRUDHUNAGAR	RAJAPALAYAM	AIADMK	1,27,67,399	1,58,80,000	2,86,47,399 2 Crore+	Υ
61	MOORTHY.V.	THIRUVALLUR	MADAVARAM	AIADMK	35,06,103	2,37,70,400	2,72,76,503 2 Crore+	Υ
62	R. MANOHARAN	TIRUCHIRAPPALLI	TIRUCHIRAPPALLI (EAST)	AIADMK	80,98,166	1,86,80,000	2,67,78,166 2 Crore+	Υ
63	MUTHUKUMAR	CUDDALORE	VRIDDHACHALAM	DMDK	76,36,569	1,87,00,000	2,63,36,569 2 Crore+	Υ
64	VELUMANI S P	COIMBATORE	THONDAMUTHUR	AIADMK	39,54,171	2,22,82,000	2,62,36,171 2 Crore+	Υ
65	A.K.BOSE	MADURAI	MADURAI NORTH	AIADMK	38,35,700*	2,23,00,000	2,61,35,700 2 Crore+	Υ
66	MOHAMMEDJOHN	VELLORE	RANIPET	AIADMK	88,36,656	1,69,00,000	2,57,36,656 2 Crore+	Υ
67	R. SUNDARAJAN	MADURAI	MADURAI CENTRAL	DMDK	22,32,403	2,33,80,000*	2,56,12,403 2 Crore+	Υ
68	THAMIZHARASAN	VELLORE	KILVAITHINANKUPPAM	AIADMK	49,45,734	2,00,00,000	2,49,45,734 2 Crore+	Υ
69	K. KUPPAN	THIRUVALLUR	THIRUVOTTIYUR	AIADMK	41,16,568	2,07,55,200	2,48,71,768 2 Crore+	Υ
70	S.SIVASANKAR	PERAMBALUR	KUNNAM	DMK	84,63,171	1,63,04,090	2,47,67,261 2 Crore+	Υ
71	VIJAY.DR.V.S.	VELLORE	VELLORE	AIADMK	98,62,189	1,48,50,000	2,47,12,189	Υ





						Association for Den	nocratic Reforms	
S.No.	Name	District	Constituency	Party	Movable Assets (Rs)	Immovable Assets (Rs)	Total Assets (Rs)	PAN Given
							2 Crore+	
72	ASHOK M.K	CHENNAI	VELACHERY	AIADMK	70,79,355	1,62,97,000*	2,33,76,355 2 Crore+	Υ
73	A. PAPPASUNDARAM	KARUR	KULITHALAI	AIADMK	10,65,590	2,10,00,000	2,20,65,590 2 Crore+	Υ
74	R. SRINIVASAN	VELLORE	ARCOT	AIADMK	2,06,17,849	13,00,000	2,19,17,849 2 Crore+	Υ
75	C. KRISHNAN	SALEM	OMALUR	AIADMK	26,04,595	1,89,57,500	2,15,62,095 2 Crore+	N
76	DHANAPAL.P	NAMAKKAL	RASIPURAM	AIADMK	63,72,763	1,50,00,000*	2,13,72,763 2 Crore+	N
77	J. GURUNATHAN	ARIYALUR	JAYANKONDAM	РМК	66,94,177	1,45,55,000	2,12,49,177 2 Crore+	Υ
78	STALIN M K	CHENNAI	KOLATHUR	DMK	42,29,701	1,69,30,360	2,11,60,061 2 Crore+	Υ
79	N R SIVAPATHI	TIRUCHIRAPPALLI	MUSIRI	AIADMK	28,40,217	1,65,00,000	1,93,40,217 1 Crore+	Υ
80	ARUNSUBRAMANYAM	THIRUVALLUR	TIRUTTANI	DMDK	9,39,450	1,84,00,000	1,93,39,450 1 Crore+	Υ
81	MARIYAMPITCHAI	TIRUCHIRAPPALLI	TIRUCHIRAPPALLI (WEST)	AIADMK	25,00,396	1,66,88,250*	1,91,88,646 1 Crore+	Υ
82	* P.K. VAIRAMUTHU	PUDUKKOTTAI	THIRUMAYAM	AIADMK	63,70,000	1,26,15,200	1,89,85,200 1 Crore+	Υ
83	T.SENGUTTUVAN	KRISHNAGIRI	VEPPANAHALLI	DMK	97,89,406	88,42,534	1,86,31,940 1 Crore+	Υ
84	M C SAMPATH	CUDDALORE	CUDDALORE	AIADMK	57,97,196	1,26,87,000	1,84,84,196 1 Crore+	Υ
85	PERIYASAMY I	DINDIGUL	ATHOOR	DMK	48,67,039	1,35,42,355	1,84,09,394 1 Crore+	Υ
86	R.RAJENDRAN	CUDDALORE	KURINJIPADI	AIADMK	13,58,659	1,65,90,000	1,79,48,659 1 Crore+	Υ
87	R. KUMARAGURU	VILLUPURAM	ULUNDURPETTAI	AIADMK	93,97,753	74,04,000	1,68,01,753 1 Crore+	Υ
88	S. PAVUNRAJ	NAGAPATTINAM	POOMPUHAR	AIADMK	34,25,210	1,26,50,000	1,60,75,210 1 Crore+	Υ
89	RAMALINGAM KV	ERODE	ERODE (WEST)	AIADMK	38,63,479	1,21,50,000	1,60,13,479 1 Crore+	Υ
90	ALAGUVELU K	VILLUPURAM	KALLAKURICHI	AIADMK	61,87,162	94,60,000	1,56,47,162 1 Crore+	Υ
91	MALARAVAN T	COIMBATORE	COIMBATORE (NORTH)	AIADMK	57,59,875	97,62,660	1,55,22,535 1 Crore+	Υ
92	THANGAMANI.P	NAMAKKAL	KUMARAPALAYAM	AIADMK	33,19,345	1,21,00,000	1,54,19,345 1 Crore+	Υ
93	K.P ANBALAGAN	DHARMAPURI	PALACODU	AIADMK	64,82,083	89,27,000	1,54,09,083 1 Crore+	Υ
94	R.PERUMAL	KANCHEEPURAM	SRIPERUMBUDUR	AIADMK	46,68,000	1,07,23,500	1,53,91,500 1 Crore+	Υ
95	DAMODHARAN	COIMBATORE	KINATHUKADAVU	AIADMK	62,89,709	89,00,000	1,51,89,709 1 Crore+	Υ
96	M. MURUGAN	RAMANATHAPURAM	MUDHUKULATHUR	AIADMK	68,00,000	73,50,000*	1,41,50,000 1 Crore+	Υ
97	CHOLAN CT PALANISAMY	SIVAGANGAI	KARAIKUDI	AIADMK	43,73,500	96,00,000	1,39,73,500 1 Crore+	Υ
98	K A JAYAPAL	NAGAPATTINAM	NAGAPATTINAM	AIADMK	92,13,805	47,02,000	1,39,15,805 1 Crore+	Υ





						Association for Democratic Reforms				
S.No.	Name	District	Constituency	Party	Movable Assets (Rs)	Immovable Assets (Rs)	Total Assets (Rs)	PAN Given		
99	P.VIJAYALAKSHMI PALANISAMY	SALEM	SANKARI	AIADMK	24,98,209	1,13,98,209	1,38,96,418 1 Crore+	Υ		
100	GANESHKUMAR A	VILLUPURAM	GINGEE	PMK	16,09,786	1,22,50,000	1,38,59,786 1 Crore+	Υ		
101	SENTHILBALAJI	KARUR	KARUR	AIADMK	80,04,057	52,00,000	1,32,04,057 1 Crore+	N		
102	S.K. SELVAM	SALEM	VEERAPANDI	AIADMK	25,13,230	1,04,67,332	1,29,80,562 1 Crore+	N		
103	JAWAHIRULLAH	RAMANATHAPURAM	RAMANATHAPURAM	Manithaneya Makkal Katchi	47,56,413	80,00,000	1,27,56,413 1 Crore+	Υ		
104	THANGA TAMILSELVAN	THENI	ANDIPATTI	AIADMK	63,90,000	58,99,000	1,22,89,000 1 Crore+	Υ		
105	R VAITHILINGAM	THANJAVUR	ORATHANADU	AIADMK	34,59,659	85,87,263	1,20,46,922 1 Crore+	Υ		
106	R RAMAMURTHY	VILLUPURAM	VIKRAVANDI	CPI(M)	29,39,215	89,30,000	1,18,69,215 1 Crore+	Υ		
107	VISWANATHAN R	DINDIGUL	NATHAM	AIADMK	48,43,019	67,00,000	1,15,43,019 1 Crore+	Υ		
108	M.S.M. ANANDAN	TIRUPPUR	TIRUPPUR (NORTH)	AIADMK	30,46,510	84,60,000	1,15,06,510 1 Crore+	Υ		
109	C PERUMAL	SALEM	YERCAUD	AIADMK	12,32,017	1,01,00,000	1,13,32,017 1 Crore+	Υ		
110	SUBA THANGAVELAN	RAMANATHAPURAM	TIRUVADANAI	DMK	57,11,041	56,00,000	1,13,11,041 1 Crore+	Υ		
111	S.KANITHA	KANCHEEPURAM	MADURANTAKAM	AIADMK	49,30,071	62,35,000	1,11,65,071 1 Crore+	Υ		
112	N.V. KAMARAJ	NAGAPATTINAM	VEDARANYAM	AIADMK	31,01,439	80,10,800	1,11,12,239 1 Crore+	Υ		
113	NANJIL A. MURUGESAN	KANNIYAKUMARI	NAGERCOIL	AIADMK	92,52,061	15,00,000	1,07,52,061 1 Crore+	Υ		
114	T.P.M.MOHIDEENKHAN	TIRUNELVELI	PALAYAMKOTTAI	DMK	22,56,012	84,85,000	1,07,41,012 1 Crore+	Υ		
115	ARUKUTTY	COIMBATORE	KAVUNDAMPALAYAM	AIADMK	28,34,106	76,63,000	1,04,97,106 1 Crore+	Υ		
116	GOKULA INDRA	CHENNAI	ANNA NAGAR	AIADMK	59,59,540	45,34,273	1,04,93,813 1 Crore+	Υ		
117	V. MARKANDAYAN	THOOTHUKUDI	VILATHIKULAM	AIADMK	58,91,430	44,24,600	1,03,16,030 1 Crore+	N		
118	M. RENGASAMY	THANJAVUR	THANJAVUR	AIADMK	5,55,858	97,00,000	1,02,55,858 1 Crore+	N		
119	A SOUNDHARAPANDIAN	TIRUCHIRAPPALLI	LALGUDI	DMK	51,55,496	49,86,000	1,01,41,496 1 Crore+	Υ		
120	R CHANDRA SEKAR	TIRUCHIRAPPALLI	MANAPPARAI	AIADMK	41,94,000	59,00,000	1,00,94,000 1 Crore+	Υ		
121	THANIYARASU.U	NAMAKKAL	PARAMATHI-VELUR	AIADMK	18,28,340	80,78,432	99,06,772 99 Lacs+	N		
122	* T. RAMACHANDRAN	KRISHNAGIRI	THALLI	СРІ	25,13,184	73,20,500	98,33,684 98 Lacs+	Υ		
123	S. PALANISAMY	DINDIGUL	VEDASANDUR	AIADMK	61,38,053	36,49,400	97,87,453 97 Lacs+	Υ		
124	RAMANIDHARAN SS	ERODE	ANTHIYUR	AIADMK	31,84,500	65,50,000	97,34,500 97 Lacs+	Υ		
125	PALA. KARUPPIAH	CHENNAI	HARBOUR	AIADMK	65,72,473	30,00,000	95,72,473 95 Lacs+	Υ		





126 P.CHENDURPANDIAN TIRUNELVELI KADAYANALLUR AIADMK 62,75,300 32,07,100 94,82,400 94,82,400 127 JOHN JACOB KANNIYAKUMARI KILLIYOOR INC 57,05,211 35,25,000 92,30,211 128 RAJA.PON THIRUVALLUR PONNERI AIADMK 14,02,000 77,45,400 91,1685 129 P.DHANSINGH KANCHEEPURAM PALLAVARAM AIADMK 5,76,853 85,40,000 91,1685 130 V.SOMASUNDARAM KANCHEEPURAM KANCHEEPURAM AIADMK 42,12,935 45,00,000 87,12935 131,833 131 JAYAKUMARI KANNIYAKUMARI ROYAPURAM AIADMK 67,48,902 17,25,000 84,73,902 84,73,903 84,73,902 84,73,902 84,73,902 84,73,902 84,73,902 84,73,902 84,73,902 84,73,902 84,73,902 84,73,902 84,73,902 84,73,902 84,73,902 84,73,902 84,73,902 84,73,903 84,73,902 84,73,9	
127 JOHN JACOB KANNIYAKUMARI KILLIYOOR INC 57,05,211 35,25,000 92,30,211	ts PAN Given
128	N
129 P.DHANSINGH KANCHEEPURAM PALLAVARAM AIADMK 5,76,853 85,40,000 91,16,853 91,16,85	. У
130) Y
131 JAYAKUMAR D. CHENNAI ROYAPURAM AIADMK 42,12,933 43,00,000 87 Lacs	Y
131 134	Y
132 N.I.PACHAIMAL NANNIYAKUMARI NANNIYAKUMARI AIADMK 26,88,604 54,35,000 83 Laces	. Y
133 P. GANESAN NANCHEEPURAM UTHIRAMEROR AIADMK 11,94,000 70,00,000 81,22,500 134 P.V. KATHIRAVAN MADURAI USILAMPATTI AIFB 6,22,500 75,00,000 81,22,500 136 136 135 8ASKER.K.P.P NAMAKKAL NAMAKKAL AIADMK 52,46,763 28,00,000 80,46,763 80 Lacss 136 SABDUL RAHEEM. THIRUVALLUR AVADI AIADMK 37,37,797 41,52,600 78,90,397 71,30,000 77,30,000 72,40,628 139 D.HARIDOSS VILLUPURAM TINDIVANAM AIADMK 15,82,679 57,00,000 72,82,679 72 Lacss 140 M RAJANAYAGAM PUDUKKOTTAI ARANTHANGI AIADMK 27,96,282 44,50,000 72,46,282 72 Lacss 141 R.KAMARAJ THIRUVARUR NANNILAM AIADMK 30,65,056 41,00,000 71,65,056 71 Lacss 142 KADAMBUR RAJU C. THOOTHUKUDI KOVILPATTI AIADMK 37,83,807 28,68,000 66,51,807 66 Lacss 143 * PRINCE J. G. KANNIYAKUMARI COLACHAL INC 11,90,000 53,98,488 65,88,488 65 Lacss 144 A. RAMASAMY DINDIGUL NILAKKOTTAI PT 9,04,073 56,15,000 66,12,000 64,1	Y
134 P.V. KATHIKAVAN MIADURAL USLAMPATII AIFB 6,22,300 75,00,000 81,4crs 135 BASKER.K.P.P NAMAKKAL NAMAKKAL AIADMK 52,46,763 28,00,000 80,46,763 136 SABDUL RAHEEM. THIRUVALLUR AVADI AIADMK 37,37,797 41,52,600 78,90,397 137 T. INDIRA GANDHI TIRUCHIRAPPALLI THURAIYUR AIADMK 24,30,000 53,00,000 77,30,000 138 M. RETHINASAMY THANJAVUR THIRUVAIYARU AIADMK 20,63,000 56,00,000 76,63,000 139 D.HARIDOSS VILLUPURAM TINDIVANAM AIADMK 15,82,679 57,00,000 72,82,679 140 M. RAJANAYAGAM PUDUKKOTTAL ARANTHANGI AIADMK 27,96,282 44,50,000 72,46,282 141 R.KAMARAJ THIRUVARUR NANNILAM AIADMK 30,65,056 41,00,000 71,65,056 142 KADAMBUR RAJU C. THOOTHUKUDI KOVILPATTI AIADMK 37,83,807 28,68,000 66,51,807 143 * PRINCE J. G. KANNIYAKUMARI COLACHAL INC 11,90,000 53,98,488 65,88,488 65 Lacs* 144 A. RAMASAMY DINDIGUL NILAKKOTTAI PT 9,04,073 56,15,000 65,12,007 145 S.KAMARAJ KARUR KRISHNARAYAPURAM AIADMK 17,97,000 46,15,000 64,122,000 64 Lacs* 44 Lacs*	N
135 BASKER.R.P.P. NAMAKKAL NAMAKKAL AIADMK 32,46,763 28,00,000 80 Lacs*) Y
136 SABUUL RAHEEM. THIROVALLUR AVADI AIADMK 37,37,797 41,52,600 78 Lacs* 78 Lacs* 78 Lacs* 78 Lacs* 77 Lacs* 78 Lacs*	Y
137 T. INDIKA GANDHI TIROCHIRAPPALLI THORATOR AIADMK 24,30,000 33,00,000 77 Lacss 138 M. RETHINASAMY THANJAVUR THIRUVAIYARU AIADMK 20,63,000 56,00,000 76,63,000 139 D.HARIDOSS VILLUPURAM TINDIVANAM AIADMK 15,82,679 57,00,000 72,82,679 140 M RAJANAYAGAM PUDUKKOTTAI ARANTHANGI AIADMK 27,96,282 44,50,000 72,46,282 141 R.KAMARAJ THIRUVARUR NANNILAM AIADMK 30,65,056 41,00,000 71,65,056 142 KADAMBUR RAJU C. THOOTHUKUDI KOVILPATTI AIADMK 37,83,807 28,68,000 66,51,807 143 * PRINCE J. G. KANNIYAKUMARI COLACHAL INC 11,90,000 53,98,488 65 Lacs* 144 A. RAMASAMY DINDIGUL NILAKKOTTAI PT 9,04,073 56,15,000 64,12,000 145 S.KAMARAJ KARUR KRISHNARAYAPURAM AIADMK 17,97,000 46,15,000	Y
138 M. RETHINASAWY	Y
139 D.HARIDOSS VILLOPORAM HINDIVANAM AIADMK 13,82,679 37,00,000 72,Lacs+ 140 M RAJANAYAGAM PUDUKKOTTAI ARANTHANGI AIADMK 27,96,282 44,50,000 72,46,282 72 Lacs+ 141 R.KAMARAJ THIRUVARUR NANNILAM AIADMK 30,65,056 41,00,000 71,65,056 71 Lacs+ 142 KADAMBUR RAJU C. THOOTHUKUDI KOVILPATTI AIADMK 37,83,807 28,68,000 66,51,807 66 Lacs+ 143 * PRINCE J. G. KANNIYAKUMARI COLACHAL INC 11,90,000 53,98,488 65,88,488 65 Lacs+ 144 A. RAMASAMY DINDIGUL NILAKKOTTAI PT 9,04,073 56,15,000 65,19,073 65 Lacs+ 145 S.KAMARAJ KARUR KRISHNARAYAPURAM AIADMK 17,97,000 46,15,000 64,12,000	N
140 M RAJANAYAGAM PUDUKKUTAI ARANTHANGI AIADMK 27,96,282 44,50,000 72 Lacs+ 141 R.KAMARAJ THIRUVARUR NANNILAM AIADMK 30,65,056 41,00,000 71,65,056 71 Lacs+ THOOTHUKUDI KOVILPATTI AIADMK 37,83,807 28,68,000 66,51,807 66 Lacs+ THOOTHUKUDI KANNIYAKUMARI COLACHAL INC 11,90,000 53,98,488 65,88,488 65 Lacs+ A. RAMASAMY DINDIGUL NILAKKOTTAI PT 9,04,073 56,15,000 65,19,073 65 Lacs+ A. S.KAMARAJ KARUR KRISHNARAYAPURAM AIADMK 17,97,000 46,15,000 64,12,000	Y
141 R.RAMIARAJ I HIROVARUR NANNILAM AIADMK 30,65,056 41,00,000 71 Locs+ 142 KADAMBUR RAJU C. THOOTHUKUDI KOVILPATTI AIADMK 37,83,807 28,68,000 66,51,807-66 Locs+ 143 * PRINCE J. G. KANNIYAKUMARI COLACHAL INC 11,90,000 53,98,488-65 Locs+ 144 A. RAMASAMY DINDIGUL NILAKKOTTAI PT 9,04,073 56,15,000-65 Locs+ 145 S.KAMARAJ KARUR KRISHNARAYAPURAM AIADMK 17,97,000-46,15,000-64 Locs+	Y
142 KADAMBUR RAJU C. THOOTHORODI KOVILPATTI AIADMK 37,83,807 28,68,000 66 Lacs+ 143 * PRINCE J. G. KANNIYAKUMARI COLACHAL INC 11,90,000 53,98,488 65,88,488 144 A. RAMASAMY DINDIGUL NILAKKOTTAI PT 9,04,073 56,15,000 65,19,073 145 S.KAMARAJ KARUR KRISHNARAYAPURAM AIADMK 17,97,000 46,15,000 64,12,000	Y
143 PRINCE J. G. KANNIYAKOMARI COLACHAL INC 11,90,000 53,98,488 65 Lacs+ 144 A. RAMASAMY DINDIGUL NILAKKOTTAI PT 9,04,073 56,15,000 65,19,073 65 Lacs+ 145 S.KAMARAJ KARUR KRISHNARAYAPURAM AIADMK 17,97,000 46,15,000 64,12,000 64 Lacs+	N
144 A. RAMASAMY DINDIGUL NILARROTTAL PT 9,04,073 56,15,000 65 Lacs+ 145 S.KAMARAJ KARUR KRISHNARAYAPURAM AIADMK 17,97,000 46,15,000 64,12,000 64 Lacs+	Y
145 S.KAIVIAKAI KARUK KRISHINAKATAPUKAIVI AIADIVIK 17,57,000 40,15,000 64 Lacs+	N
CO 00 ===) Y
146 S.P. SHUNMUGANATHAN THOOTHUKUDI SRIVAIKUNTAM AIADMK 21,82,774 42,00,000 63,82,774	Y
147 BABU MURUGAVEL.M THIRUVANNAMALAI ARANI DMDK 35,52,022 28,00,000 63,52,022	Y
148 THIRAVIDAMANI M THE NILGIRIS GUDALUR DMK 12,62,734 49,50,000 62,12,734	N
149 SUBRAMANIAN. N PUDUKKOTTAI GANDHARVAKOTTAI AIADMK 48,26,925 13,49,000 61,75,925 61 Lacs+	Y
150 MUTHUKARUPPANNASAMY M.K. COIMBATORE POLLACHI AIADMK 25,50,665 36,25,000 61,75,665 61 Lacs+	N
151 M.P.S.SIVASUBIRAMANIAN CUDDALORE NEYVELI AIADMK 16,34,964 45,27,680 61,62,644 61 Lacs+	Y
152 R. SAMY MADURAI MELUR AIADMK 37,40,119 23,83,322 61,23,441 61 Lacs+	· Y
153 M.V. KARUPPAIAH MADURAI SHOLAVANDAN AIADMK 13,79,814 47,20,000 60,99,814	Y





						Association for Der	mocratic Reforms	
S.No.	Name	District	Constituency	Party	Movable Assets (Rs)	Immovable Assets (Rs)	Total Assets (Rs)	PAN Given
							60 Lacs+	
154	KALAIRAJAN V P	CHENNAI	THIYAGARAYANAGAR	AIADMK	31,05,538	28,75,000	59,80,538 59 Lacs+	Υ
155	C.VE. SHANMUGAM	VILLUPURAM	VILLUPURAM	AIADMK	7,80,799	51,10,000*	58,90,799 58 Lacs+	Υ
156	SENTHAMIZHAN.G	CHENNAI	SAIDAPET	AIADMK	45,11,140	10,00,000	55,11,140 55 Lacs+	Υ
157	JANIKIRAMAN	VILLUPURAM	VANUR	AIADMK	19,03,281	36,06,000	55,09,281 55 Lacs+	N
158	TAMILARASAN K.	MADURAI	MADURAI EAST	AIADMK	23,73,883	30,48,500	54,22,383 54 Lacs+	Υ
159	DR.DURAIAPPA.S.	TIRUNELVELI	VASUDEVANALLUR	AIADMK	27,69,264	26,22,700	53,91,964 53 Lacs+	Υ
160	DURAI. MANIVEL	ARIYALUR	ARIYALUR	AIADMK	15,19,220	37,85,000	53,04,220 53 Lacs+	N
161	BUDHICHANDRAN	THE NILGIRIS	UDHAGAMANDALAM	AIADMK	12,45,000	40,00,000	52,45,000 52 Lacs+	Υ
162	K.T. RAJENDRA BALAJI	VIRUDHUNAGAR	SIVAKASI	AIADMK	21,47,052	29,38,563	50,85,615 50 Lacs+	N
163	KITTUSAMY RN	ERODE	MODAKKURICHI	AIADMK	11,78,580	35,65,800	47,44,380 47 Lacs+	Υ
164	C.H. SEKAR	THIRUVALLUR	GUMMIDIPOONDI	DMDK	12,03,596	35,00,000	47,03,596 47 Lacs+	Υ
165	M.K.SELVARAJU	SALEM	SALEM (SOUTH)	AIADMK	20,99,114	25,00,000	45,99,114 45 Lacs+	Υ
166	VAIGAICHELVAN	VIRUDHUNAGAR	ARUPPUKKOTTAI	AIADMK	31,18,398	14,00,000	45,18,398 45 Lacs+	Υ
167	V.C. CHANDRAKUMAR	ERODE	ERODE (EAST)	DMDK	18,03,763	26,96,300	45,00,063 45 Lacs+	Υ
168	B.V. RAMANA	THIRUVALLUR	THIRUVALLUR	AIADMK	16,93,000	28,00,000	44,93,000 44 Lacs+	Υ
169	V.S.RAJI	KANCHEEPURAM	CHEYYUR	AIADMK	2,21,088	42,50,000	44,71,088 44 Lacs+	N
170	R. DORAIKKANNU	THANJAVUR	PAPANASAM	AIADMK	15,78,533	27,50,000	43,28,533 43 Lacs+	Υ
171	M. GUNASEKRAN	SIVAGANGAI	MANAMADURAI	AIADMK	8,83,129*	32,63,800*	41,46,929 41 Lacs+	Υ
172	SAMPATHKUMAR	NAMAKKAL	TIRUCHENGODU	DMDK	24,89,007	16,37,500	41,26,507 41 Lacs+	Υ
173	G.VENKATACHALAM	SALEM	SALEM (WEST)	AIADMK	14,02,572	27,00,000	41,02,572 41 Lacs+	N
174	SELVI RAMAJAYAM	CUDDALORE	BHUVANAGIRI	AIADMK	9,02,688	29,84,688	38,87,376 38 Lacs+	Υ
175	P. PARTHASARATHY	CHENNAI	VIRUGAMPAKKAM	DMDK	27,45,061	11,00,000	38,45,061 38 Lacs+	Υ
176	POONATCHI T P.	TIRUCHIRAPPALLI	MANACHANALLUR	AIADMK	15,50,000	22,00,000*	37,50,000 37 Lacs+	N
177	R.CHINNASAMY	COIMBATORE	SINGANALLUR	AIADMK	7,12,192	30,00,000	37,12,192 37 Lacs+	N
178	T.K.M.CHINNEYAH	KANCHEEPURAM	TAMBARAM	AIADMK	1,94,800	35,00,000	36,94,800 36 Lacs+	N
179	P. MOHAN	VILLUPURAM	SANKARAPURAM	AIADMK	34,10,766	2,00,000	36,10,766 36 Lacs+	Υ
180	PANNEERSELVAM.O	THENI	BODINAYAKANUR	AIADMK	25,67,174	10,00,000	35,67,174 35 Lacs+	Υ





						Association for Der	mocratic Reforms	
S.No.	Name	District	Constituency	Party	Movable Assets (Rs)	Immovable Assets (Rs)	Total Assets (Rs)	PAN Given
181	K BALAKRISHNAN	CUDDALORE	CHIDAMBARAM	CPI(M)	4,85,246	30,00,000	34,85,246 34 Lacs+	N
182	SUBRAMANIAN.N	THIRUVANNAMALAI	CHEYYAR	AIADMK	21,15,000	13,50,000	34,65,000 34 Lacs+	Υ
183	SELLUR K RAJU	MADURAI	MADURAI WEST	AIADMK	10,63,791	22,40,000	33,03,791 33 Lacs+	Υ
184	P PALANIAPPAN	DHARMAPURI	PAPPIREDDIPPATTI	AIADMK	24,79,451	7,00,000*	31,79,451 31 Lacs+	N
185	S.RAMACHANDRAN	KANCHEEPURAM	ALANDUR	DMDK	7,20,741	21,75,000*	28,95,741 28 Lacs+	Υ
186	A.K.T. RAJA	MADURAI	THIRUPARANKUNDRAM	DMDK	7,51,752	20,84,750	28,36,502 28 Lacs+	N
187	THAMIZHSELVAN.R	PERAMBALUR	PERAMBALUR	AIADMK	8,00,000	20,00,000	28,00,000 28 Lacs+	N
188	A SOUNDARARAJAN	CHENNAI	PERAMBUR	CPI(M)	5,75,146	21,42,000	27,17,146 27 Lacs+	Υ
189	K THANGAVEL	TIRUPPUR	TIRUPPUR (SOUTH)	CPI(M)	6,03,831	21,00,000	27,03,831 27 Lacs+	N
190	ARANGANATHAN.A.K.	THIRUVANNAMALAI	KILPENNATHUR	AIADMK	6,04,434	20,93,800	26,98,234 26 Lacs+	N
191	PUSHPA LEELA ALBAN	KANNIYAKUMARI	PADMANABHAPURAM	DMK	22,17,228	2,50,000	24,67,228 24 Lacs+	Υ
192	P.L. SUNDARAM	ERODE	BHAVANISAGAR	СРІ	17,44,813	6,50,000	23,94,813 23 Lacs+	N
193	MANIMARAN.R	THIRUVALLUR	POONMALLAE	AIADMK	10,70,500	13,00,000	23,70,500 23 Lacs+	Υ
194	ASLAM BASHA A.	VELLORE	AMBUR	MMK	8,50,000	15,00,000	23,50,000 23 Lacs+	Υ
195	CHINNARAJ	COIMBATORE	METTUPPALAYAM	AIADMK	49,254	22,00,000	22,49,254 22 Lacs+	Υ
196	SANTHI RAJAMANICKAM	NAMAKKAL	SENTHAMANGALAM	DMDK	11,15,653	10,00,000	21,15,653 21 Lacs+	N
197	K.P. NAGARAJAN	VILLUPURAM	MAILAM	AIADMK	19,80,500*	1,25,000*	21,05,500 21 Lacs+	Υ
198	M. SAKTHI	NAGAPATTINAM	SIRKAZHI	AIADMK	7,95,100	12,62,500	20,57,600 20 Lacs+	N
199	* C. KARUPPASAMY	TIRUNELVELI	SANKARANKOVIL	AIADMK	13,87,575	5,84,000	19,71,575 19 Lacs+	Υ
200	K.LINGAMUTHU	VELLORE	GUDIYATTAM	СРІ	3,76,000	15,00,000	18,76,000 18 Lacs+	N
201	ARULSELVAN	NAGAPATTINAM	MAYILADUTHURAI	DMDK	2,92,507	15,81,000	18,73,507 18 Lacs+	N
202	D. MURUGESAN	KANCHEEPURAM	CHENGALPATTU	DMDK	1,40,000	15,00,000	16,40,000 16 Lacs+	N
203	KRISHNAMURTHI.K.E	KRISHNAGIRI	BARGUR	AIADMK	7,72,300	8,40,500	16,12,800 16 Lacs+	N
204	K. ULAGANATHAN	THIRUVARUR	THIRUTHURAIPOONDI	СРІ	15,03,286	75,000	15,78,286 15 Lacs+	N
205	GOVI. SAMPATHKUMAR	VELLORE	VANIYAMBADI	AIADMK	5,41,910	10,00,000	15,41,910 15 Lacs+	N
206	R.B. UDHAYAKUMAR	VIRUDHUNAGAR	SATTUR	AIADMK	9,31,000	6,00,000	15,31,000 15 Lacs+	Υ
207	S. RAVI	VELLORE	ARAKKONAM	AIADMK	14,40,000	0	14,40,000 14 Lacs+	Υ





Name							Association for Der	mocratic Reforms	-
209 M. ARUMUGAM COIMBATORE VALPARAI CPI 4,12,230 3,05,000 13,17,330 N	S.No.	Name	District	Constituency	Party				
210 A. BASKAR DHARMAPURI DHARMAPURI DMDK 10,56,862 2,50,000 13,16,75 12,167	208	G BHIMRAO	THIRUVALLUR	MADURAVOYAL	CPI(M)	13,665	14,00,000*		N
211 NALLATHAMBIK CHENNAI EGMORE DMDK 10,90,873 2,00,000 12,90,873 N	209	M. ARUMUGAM	COIMBATORE	VALPARAI	СРІ	4,12,330	9,05,000		N
212 P.R.MANGGAR VELLORE SHOLINGUR DMDK 11,82,441* 98,000* 12,8269* N	210	A. BASKAR	DHARMAPURI	DHARMAPURI	DMDK	10,56,862	2,50,000*		Υ
213 P DILLI BABU DHARMAPURI HABUR CP (M) 5,88,602* 6,54,000* 12,24,502 12,266 N	211	NALLATHAMBI K	CHENNAI	EGMORE	DMDK	10,90,873	2,00,000*		N
213	212	P.R.MANOGAR	VELLORE	SHOLINGUR	DMDK	11,82,441	98,000*		N
215 P. SINAKOLUNTHU CUDDALORE PANRUTI DMDK 3,50,000 7,80,000 11,30,000 Y	213	P DILLI BABU	DHARMAPURI	HARUR	CPI(M)	5,88,602 [*]	6,54,000*		N
216 S.P.MUTHUKUMARAN	214	M. MUTHURAMALINGAM	MADURAI	THIRUMANGALAM	AIADMK	12,38,990	0		Υ
210 S.P.MOITHORDMARAN POUDROTTAL POUDROTTAL CPI 0,05,994 5,00,000 11,045,101 N	215	P. SIVAKOLUNTHU	CUDDALORE	PANRUTI	DMDK	3,50,000	7,80,000		Υ
217	216	S.P.MUTHUKUMARAN	PUDUKKOTTAI	PUDUKKOTTAI	СРІ	6,05,964	5,00,000		N
219 S. SENTHILKUMAR TIRUCHIRAPPALLI THIRUVERUMBUR DMDK 1,42,000 7,25,000 8 8 8 67,000 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 9 2 2 2 2 MANORANJITHAM KRISHNAGIRI UTHANGARAI AIADMK 7,40,500 0 7,40,500 N 7 1,655 0 0 7,40,500 N 7 1,655 0 0 7,40,500 N 7 1,655 0 0 1,655,161 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	217	R. SUBA	SALEM	GANGAVALLI	DMDK	8,65,101	1,80,000		N
220 MANORANJITHAM KRISHNAGIRI UTHANGARAI AIADMK 7,40,500 0 7,40,500 N	218	* V. PONNUPANDI	VIRUDHUNAGAR	SRIVILLIPUTHUR	СРІ	3,91,392	5,54,000		N
221	219	S. SENTHILKUMAR	TIRUCHIRAPPALLI	THIRUVERUMBUR	DMDK	1,42,000	7,25,000*		Υ
221 ALSEN THENT PENTANCIAM CFI(M) 4,17,443 2,50,000 6,146,000 N	220	MANORANJITHAM	KRISHNAGIRI	UTHANGARAI	AIADMK	7,40,500	0		N
222 MADHESWARANS SALEM ATTOR AIADMK 4,44,000 2,00,000 6 Laces N	221	A LASER	THENI	PERIYAKULAM	CPI(M)	4,17,445	2,56,000		N
223 N. NANJAPPAN DHARMAPORI PENNAGARAWI CPI 4,35,139 2,00,000 6,15,161 N	222	MADHESWARAN S	SALEM	ATTUR	AIADMK	4,44,000	2,00,000*		N
224 KBALA BHARATHY DINDIGUL DINDIGUL	223	N. NANJAPPAN	DHARMAPURI	PENNAGARAM	СРІ	4,35,139	2,00,000		N
225 RARDPPASAMY A A TIRUPPUR AVANASHI AIADMK 3,56,383 2,25,000 5 Lacs+ 7	224	K BALA BHARATHY	DINDIGUL	DINDIGUL	CPI(M)	1,65,161	4,50,000*		N
226 TAMILAZHAGAN CODDALORE THINAKODI DMK 2,30,000 3,00,000 5 Lacs* N	225	KARUPPASAMY A A	TIRUPPUR	AVANASHI	AIADMK	3,56,383	2,25,000		Υ
227 CHEZHIAAN. GOVI	226	TAMILAZHAGAN	CUDDALORE	TITTAKUDI	DMDK	2,30,000	3,00,000*		N
229 NAGAI MALI (A) VP NAGAPATTINAM KILVELUR CPI(M) 1,71,464 2,40,000 4,11,464 N	227	CHEZHIAAN. GOVI	THANJAVUR	THIRUVIDAIMARUDUR	DMK	4,87,029	0		Υ
229 MAHALINGAM NAGAPATTINAM KILVELUR CPI(M) 1,71,464 2,40,000 MAHALINGAM NAGAPATTINAM KILVELUR CPI(M) 1,71,464 2,40,000 MAHALINGAM NAGAPATTINAM KILVELUR CPI(M) 1,71,464 2,40,000 MAHALINGAM NAGAPATTINAM CHENGAM DMDK 56,000 3,00,000 3,56,000 NAGAPATTINAM NAGAPATTINAM CHENGAM DMDK 1,75,000 93,000 2,68,000 NAGAPATTINAM NAGAPATTINAM CHENGAM DMDK 1,75,000 93,000 2,68,000 NAGAPATTINAM NAGAPATTINAM CHENGAM NAGAPATTINAM CHENGAM NAGAPATTINAM CHENGAM NAGAPATTINAM CHENGAM NAGAPATTINAM NAGAPATTINAM NAGAPATTINAM CHENGAM NAGAPATTINAM N	228	R ANNADURAI	MADURAI	MADURAI SOUTH	CPI(M)	3,95,412	78,000 [*]		N
231 V. GUNASELAN THIRUVANNAMALAI VANDAVASI AIADMK 1,75,000 93,000 2,68,000 N	229	, ,	NAGAPATTINAM	KILVELUR	CPI(M)	1,71,464	2,40,000		N
231 V. GUNASELAN THIRUVANNAMIALAI VANDAVASI AIADMK 1,75,000 93,000 2 Lacs+ N	230	T. SURESH @ SURESH KUMAR	THIRUVANNAMALAI	CHENGAM	DMDK	56,000	3,00,000		N
233 * N.MURUGUMARAN CUDDALORE KATTUMANNARKOIL AIADMK 1,15,000* 0 1,15,000 N	231	V. GUNASEELAN	THIRUVANNAMALAI	VANDAVASI	AIADMK	1,75,000	93,000		N
233 N.MOROGOMAKAN CODDALORE KATTOMANNARKOIL AIADMK 1,15,000 0 1Lacs+	232	THINAKARAN K.	COIMBATORE	SULUR	DMDK	2,11,360	0		N
234 * ANITHA R.RADHAKRISHNAN THOOTHUKUDI TIRUCHENDUR DMK 0 0 N	233	* N.MURUGUMARAN	CUDDALORE	KATTUMANNARKOIL	AIADMK	1,15,000*	0		N
	234	* ANITHA R.RADHAKRISHNAN	THOOTHUKUDI	TIRUCHENDUR	DMK	0	0	0	N





*For candidates whose total values have not been given in the affidavit, the total has been calculated from the details given by the candidate himself/herself in the affidavit

Table:- Full asset details of MLAs

Full details of pending criminal cases on MLAs

ction-302) rder (IPC Section-307)
sing hurt by dangerous weapons or means (IPC
on-379)
sing grievous hurt (IPC Section-325)
ction-147)
l with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148)
f criminal conspiracy (IPC Section-120B)
aint (IPC Section-341)
ation (IPC Section-506)
g damage to the amount of fifty rupees (IPC
(IPC Section-448)
ing hurt (IPC Section-323)
sing hurt to deter public servant from his duty (IPC
g life or personal safety of others (IPC Section-336)
gn to commit offence punishable with
nal force to deter public servant from discharge of
C Section-143)
o order duly promulgated by public servant (IPC
turning and the state of lead areal fined by
troying or moving, etc., a land- mark fixed by
explosive substance with intent to cause damage to of agricultural produce) ten rupees (IPC Section-
e of agricultural produce, terrapees (if e section
abetment if the act abetted is committed in
provision is made for its punishment (IPC Section-
, p
act endangering life or personal safety of others
ACT, CC NO.295/2008, DT 30.03.2008, VELLORE
RAMATHI VELUR
009, DT.12.11.2009, NAMAKKAL P.S., CRIMINAL
0 NO 705/2000 DT 42 44 2000 1150/150/15
C NO.705/2009, DT.12.11.2009, MECHERI P.S.,
UR
2009, DT.12.11.2009, TIRUPUR SOUTH P.S., UR
DT.30.03.2008, VELLORE P.S., CRIMINAL JUDICIAL
D1.30.03.2006, VELLONE F.S., CRIIVIIINAE JUDICIAL
DT.03.08.2010, ARACHANALLUR P.S., CRIMINAL
C S C I = 6 i 6 (ii 6 9 8 r C O t 2 i 1 9 8 r C O C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C





		Association for Democratic Reforms
S. No.	Candidate Information	Brief Details of IPCs
		JUDICIAL COURT II, ERODE
		3(4) OF TNPDDL ACT, CC NO.545/2010, DT.17.12.2010, NALLIAMPALAYAM P.S.,
		CRIMINAL JUDICIAL COURT I, NAMAKKAL
		3 OF TNPDDL ACT, CC NO.589/2009, DT.12.11.2009, AATTIAMPATTI P.S., CRIMINAL
		JUDICIAL COURT, SALEM
		3 OF TNPDDL ACT, CC NO.590/2009, DT.12.11.2009, AATTIAMPATTI P.S., CRIMINAL
		JUDICIAL COURT, SALEM
		3(1)OF TNPDDL ACT, CC NO.660/2009, DT.12.11.2009, MAGUDANCHAVADI P.S.,
		CRIMINAL JUDICIAL COURT, SANGAGIRI
		TbPDDL ACT, CC NO.536/2009, DT.15.11.2009, AMMAIYANAICKENUR P.S., CRIMINAL
		JUDICIAL COURT, NILAKOTTAI
		3(1) OF PPDL ACT, CC NO.293/2010, DT.03.08.2010, ARACHANALLUR P.S., CRIMINAL
		JUDICIAL COURT II, ERODE
		506 (ii) & 3 OF PDDL ACT, CC NO.3638/2008, DT.16.12.2008, TOWN STATION KARUR,
		CRIMINAL JUDICIAL COURT I, KARUR
		3&5 OF TBPPDL ACT, CC NO.442/2009, DT.12.11.2009, KUNDADAM P.S., CRIMINAL
		JUDICIAL COURT, DARAPURAM
		3(1)OF TNPDDL ACT, CC NO.1305/2009, DT.19.11.2009, PALLIPALAYAM P.S.,
		CRIMINAL JUDICIAL COURT, TIRUCHENGODE
		3(1)OF TNPDDL ACT, CC NO.471/2009, DT.12.11.2009, STEEL PLANT P.S., CRIMINAL
		JUDICIAL COURT, SALEM
		3(1) 5 TNPDDL ACT R/W 336 CC NO.535/2009, DT.13.11.2009, AMMAIYANAICKENUR
		P.S., CRIMINAL JUDICIAL COURT, NILAKOTTAI
		3&5 OF TBPPDL ACT, CC NO.1001/2009, DT.12.11.2009, DHARAPURAM P.S., CRIMINA
		JUDICIAL COURT, DARAPURAM
		3(1)OF TNPDDL ACT, CC NO.448/2009, DT.12.11.2009, THEEVETTIPATTI P.S., CRIMINAI
		JUDICIAL COURT, OMALUR CC NO.135/2009, DT.12.11.2009 VILAMPATTI P.S., CRIMINAL JUDICIAL COURT,
		NILAKOTTAI
		3 & 5 OF TBPPDL ACT, CC NO.250/2009, DT.12.11.2009, AVINASHIPALAYAM P.S.,
		CRIMINAL JUDICIAL COURT II, PALLADAM
		3&5 OF TBPPDL ACT, CC NO.1002/2009, DT.12.11.2009, DHARAPURAM P.S., CRIMINA
		JUDICIAL COURT, DARAPURAM
		3 & 5 OF TBPPDL ACT, CC NO.1871/2009, DT.12.11.2009, TIRUPUR SOUTH P.S.,
		CRIMINAL JUDICIAL COURT II, TIRUPUR
		4 OF TBPPDL ACT, CC NO.1870/2009, DT.12.11.2009, TIRUPUR SOUTH P.S., CRIMINAL
		JUDICIAL COURT, TIRUPUR
		506 (ii), CC NO.134/2009, DT.12.11.2009 VILAMPATTI P.S., CRIMINAL JUDICIAL COURT
		NILAKOTTAI
		3 & 5 OF TBPPDL ACT, CC NO.1873/2009, DT.12.11.2009, TIRUPUR SOUTH P.S.,
		CRIMINAL JUDICIAL COURT II, TIRUPUR
		CC NO.600/2009, DT.12.11.2009, NILAKOTTAI P.S., CRIMINAL JUDICIAL COURT,
		NILAKOTTAI
		506 (ii) & 3(1) TNPDDL ACT, CC NO.293/2008, DT30.03.2008 CRIMINAL JUDICIAL
		COURT, PARAMATHI VELUR
		506 (ii) & 3(1) TNPDDL ACT, CC NO.298/2008, DT 30.03.2008, VELLORE P.S., CRIMINAL
		JUDICIAL COURT, PARAMATHI VELUR
		3(1)OF TNPDDL ACT, CC NO.1304/2009, DT.19.11.2009, PALLIPALAYAM P.S.,
		CRIMINAL JUDICIAL COURT, TIRUCHENGODE
		506 (ii) & 3(1) TNPDDL ACT, CC NO.294/2008, DT 30.03.2008, VELLORE P.S., CRIMINAL
		JUDICIAL COURT, PARAMATHI VELUR
		3&5 OF TBPPDL ACT, CC NO.1000/2009, DT.12.11.2009, DHARAPURAM P.S., CRIMINA
		JUDICIAL COURT, DARAPURAM





		Association for Democratic Reforms
S. No.	Candidate Information	Brief Details of IPCs
		506 (ii) & 3(1) TNPDDL ACT, CC NO.3637/2008, DT 16.12.2008, TOWN STATION, KARUR P.S.,CRIMINAL JUDICIAL COURT I, KARUR
		3(1)OF TNPDDL ACT R/W 109 IPC, CC NO.706/2009, DT.12.11.2009, MECHERI P.S.,
		CRIMINAL JUDICIAL COURT II, METTUR
		3(1)OF TNPDDL ACT, CC NO.1268/2009, DT.12.11.2009, OMALUR P.S., CRIMINAL
		JUDICIAL COURT, OMALUR
		3 OF TNPDDL ACT, CC 2009, DT.12.11.2009, KONDALAMPATTI P.S., CRIMINAL JUDICIAL
		COURT, SALEM
		1 charges related to Attempt to murder (IPC Section-307)
		3 charges related to Promoting enmity between different groups on grounds of
		religion, race, place of birth, residence, language, etc., and doing acts prejudicial to
		maintenance of harmony (IPC Section-153A)
		2 charges related to Voluntarily causing hurt by dangerous weapons or means (IPC
		Section-324)
		7 charges related to criminal intimidation (IPC Section-506)
		3 charges related to Wantonly giving provocation with intent to cause riot-if rioting be
		committed-if not committed (IPC Section-153)
		3 charges related to rioting (IPC Section-147)
		3 charges related to wrongful restraint (IPC Section-341)
		2 charges related to Intentional insult with intent to provoke breach of the peace (IPC
		Section-504)
		2 charges related to Imputations, assertions prejudicial to national-integration (IPC
		Section-153B)
		2 charges related to Statements conducing to public mischief (IPC Section-505)
		2 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148)
		2 charges related to House-trespass after preparation for hurt, assault or wrongful
		restraint (IPC Section-452)
	Name:J. GURUNATHAN	2 charges related to voluntarily causing hurt (IPC Section-323)
	District:Ariyalur	2 charges related to Mischief causing damage to the amount of fifty rupees (IPC
	Constituency: Jayankondam	Section-427)
2	Party:PMK	2 charges related to Every member of unlawful assembly guilty of offence committed
	Total Cases:9	in prosecution of common object (IPC Section-149)
	Serious IPC:6	1 charges related to Assault or criminal force with intent to dishonour person,
	Other IPC:37	otherwise than on grave provocation (IPC Section-355)
		1 charges related to house-trespass (IPC Section-448)
		1 charges related to Threat of injury to public servant (IPC Section-189)
		1 charges related to Punishment of abetment if the act abetted is committed in
		consequence, and where no express provision is made for its punishment (IPC Section-
		109)
		1 charges related to Assault or criminal force to deter public servant from discharge of
		his duty (IPC Section-353)
		Other details:506(ii), 71 (XIX) MCC ACT. (CC NO.329/1997)
		7(i)(a)CLA ACT.(CC NO.724/2003)
		506(ii), CC NO.54/2001
		3 of IES Act (Cr.No.36/2008)
		CASE RELATING TO A SPEECH IN RESPECT OF A LOCK UP DDEATH IN A PUBLIC
		MEETING
		FILE OF JAYANKONDAM POLICE STATION
		CASES RELATING TO SPEECH MADE IN A PUBLIC MEETING TO EMPHASIZE
		EMPLOYMNET AND RELIEF TO THE LAND ACQUISTION
		506(ii), CC NO.41/2001
		506(ii), CC NO.9139/2003





		Association for Democratic Reforms
S. No.	Candidate Information	Brief Details of IPCs
		506(ii), CC NO.10/2003 506(ii), CC NO.9138/2003 JUDICIAL MAFITRATE JAYANKONDAM POLICE STATION 506(ii), CC NO.378/2007
3	Name:R.Kamaraj District:Thiruvarur Constituency:Nannilam Party:AIADMK Total Cases:10 Serious IPC:4 Other IPC:58	2 charges related to Attempt to murder (IPC Section-307) 1 charges related to kidnapping (IPC Section-363) 1 charges related to Voluntarily causing hurt by dangerous weapons or means (IPC Section-324) 5 charges related to A will (IPC Section-31) 5 charges related to Cheating by personation (IPC Section-416) 5 charges related to Cheating by personation (IPC Section-419) 5 charges related to Forgery (IPC Section-463) 5 charges related to Making a false document (IPC Section-464) 5 charges related to forgery (IPC Section-465) 5 charges related to Using as genuine a forged document or electronic record (IPC Section-471) 5 charges related to Having possession of document described in Section 466 or 467, knowing it to be forged and intending to use it as genuine (IPC Section-474) 4 charges related to rioting (IPC Section-147) 4 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 4 charges related to wrongful restraint (IPC Section-341) 2 charges related to Disobedience to order duly promulgated by public servant (IPC Section-188) 1 charges related to Voluntarily causing hurt (IPC Section-323) 1 charges related to Assault or criminal force to deter public servant from discharge of his duty (IPC Section-353) 1 charges related to Act endangering life or personal safety of others (IPC Section-336) Other details:1950 PEOPLE REPRESENTATION ACT. 1950 PEOPLE REPRESENTATION ACT. 1950 PEOPLE REPRESENTATION ACT. 1950 PEOPLE REPRESENTATION ACT.
4	Name:ARUKUTTY District:Coimbatore Constituency:Kavundampalayam Party:AIADMK Total Cases:4 Serious IPC:4 Other IPC:9	2 charges related to Attempt to murder (IPC Section-307) 2 charges related to Voluntarily causing hurt by dangerous weapons or means (IPC Section-324) 2 charges related to criminal intimidation (IPC Section-506) 2 charges related to rioting (IPC Section-147) 2 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 2 charges related to voluntarily causing hurt (IPC Section-323) 1 charges related to Mischief causing damage to the amount of fifty rupees (IPC Section-427) Other details:CR.NO.121/2010 506(ii), CR.NO.1/2007 506(ii), CR.NO.26/2010 CR.NO.140/2010
5	Name:Thanga Tamilselvan District:Theni Constituency:Andipatti Party:AIADMK	2 charges related to Attempt to murder (IPC Section-307) 1 charges related to Voluntarily causing hurt by dangerous weapons or means (IPC Section-324) 15 charges related to Cheating by personation (IPC Section-416)





	Association for Democratic Reforms
S. No. Candidate Information	Brief Details of IPCs
Total Cases:17	15 charges related to cheating by personation (IPC Section-419)
Serious IPC:3	15 charges related to Forgery (IPC Section-463)
Other IPC:113	15 charges related to Making a false document (IPC Section-464)
	15 charges related to forgery (IPC Section-465)
	15 charges related to Using as genuine a forged document or electronic record (IPC
	Section-471)
	15 charges related to Having possession of document described in Section 466 or 467,
	knowing it to be forged and intending to use it as genuine (IPC Section-474)
	2 charges related to rioting (IPC Section-147) 2 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148)
	1 charges related to wrongful restraint (IPC Section-341)
	1 charges related to Wischief causing damage to the amount of fifty rupees (IPC
	Section-427)
	1 charges related to Assault or criminal force to deter public servant from discharge of
	his duty (IPC Section-353)
	1 charges related to Every member of unlawful assembly guilty of offence committed
	in prosecution of common object (IPC Section-149)
	Other details:CC No.66/2006, QUASH PETITION CRL.O.P.No.8738/2009, CASE
	PENDING IN HIGH COURT
	CC No.65/2006, QUASH PETITION CRL.O.P.No.8739/2009, CASE PENDING IN HIGH
	COURT CC No.310/2007, QUASH PETITION CRL.O.P.No.8643/2009, CASE PENDING IN HIGH
	COURT
	CC No.187/2006, QUASH PETITION CRL.O.P.No.8747/2009, CASE PENDING IN HIGH
	COURT
	CC No.188/2006, QUASH PETITION CRL.O.P.No.8743/2009, CASE PENDING IN HIGH
	COURT
	CC No.185/2006, QUASH PETITION CRL.O.P.No.8753/2009, CASE PENDING IN HIGH
	COURT
	ACT 31, 1950, CC No.11/2006, QUASH PETITION CRL.O.P.No.8636/09, CASE PENDING
	IN HIGH COURT
	CC No.186/2006, QUASH PETITION CRL.O.P.No.8749/2009, CASE PENDING IN HIGH
	COURT ACT 21 1000 CC No 64/2006 OHASH DETITION CRI O D No 9727/2000 CASE
	ACT 31, 1950, CC No.64/2006, QUASH PETITION CRL.O.P.No.8737/2009, CASE PENDING IN HIGH COURT
	307 R/W 149 & 3 OF TNPPDL ACT 29-12-2008, KOODARKOIL POLICE STATION, CRIME
	NO.155/2008, PRC NO.30/2010, CASE PENDING
	CC No.309/2007, QUASH PETITION CRL.O.P.No.8645/2009, CASE PENDING IN HIGH
	COURT
	ACT 31, 1950, CC No.308/2007, QUASH PETITION CRL.O.P.No.8644/2009, CASE
	PENDING IN HIGH COURT
	CC No.13/2006, QUASH PETITION CRL.O.P.No.8643/09, CASE PENDING IN HIGH
	COURT
	ACT 31, 1950, CC No.184/2006, QUASH PETITION CRL.O.P.No.8748/2009, CASE
	PENDING IN HIGH COURT
	CC No.189/2006, QUASH PETITION CRL.O.P.No.8742/2009, CASE PENDING IN HIGH COURT
	3(1) TNPPDL ACT,13.11.2006 CRIME NO.606/2006, ANDIPATTI POLIE STATION, CASE IS
	PENDING, PRC No.18/2007, ANDIPATTI
	CC No.12/2006, QUASH PETITION CRL.O.P.No.8642/09, CASE PENDING IN HIGH
	COURT
6 Name:R. KUMARAGURU	2 charges related to Voluntarily causing hurt by dangerous weapons or means (IPC
	, 0 ,





		Association for Democratic Reforms
S. No		Brief Details of IPCs
	District:Villupuram	Section-324)
	Constituency: Ulundurpettai	1 charges related to Obscene acts and songs (IPC Section-294)
	Party:AIADMK	1 charges related to rioting (IPC Section-147)
	Total Cases:6	1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148)
	Serious IPC:3	1 charges related to criminal intimidation (IPC Section-506)
	Other IPC:15	1 charges related to voluntarily causing hurt (IPC Section-323)
		1 charges related to wrongful restraint (IPC Section-341)
		1 charges related to Punishment (IPC Section-143)
		1 charges related to Disobedience to order duly promulgated by public servant (IPC Section-188)
		1 charges related to Negligent conduct with respect to fire or combustible matter (IPC Section-285)
		1 charges related to Cheating by personation (IPC Section-416)
		1 charges related to cheating by personation (IPC Section-419)
		1 charges related to Forgery (IPC Section-463)
		1 charges related to Making a false document (IPC Section-464)
		1 charges related to forgery (IPC Section-465)
		1 charges related to Using as genuine a forged document or electronic record (IPC
		Section-471)
		1 charges related to Having possession of document described in Section 466 or 467,
		knowing it to be forged and intending to use it as genuine (IPC Section-474)
		Other details:Cr.No.214/2007
		Cr.No.426/2007
		506(ii), Cr.No.425/2007
		C.R No.95/2007-J.M court II UPT 15/02/2007
		C.R No.888/2006-J.M court II UPT 19/10/2006
		C.R No.426/2007-J.M court II UPT 06/08/2007
		Cr.No.95/2007
		C.R No.214/2007-J.M court II UPT 07/06/2007
		7(II)(a) CLA Act (Cr.No.888/2006)
		C.R No.91/2007-J.M court II UPT 15/02/2007
		Cr.No.91/2007
		1 charges related to Obscene acts and songs (IPC Section-294)
		1 charges related to Voluntarily causing hurt by dangerous weapons or means (IPC
		Section-324)
		1 charges related to theft (IPC Section-379)
		1 charges related to cheating by personation (IPC Section-419)
		1 charges related to forgery (IPC Section-465)
	Name:C.VE. SHANMUGAM	1 charges related to Forgery of record of court or of public register, etc. (IPC Section-466)
	District:Villupuram Constituency:Villupuram	1 charges related to Using as genuine a forged document or electronic record (IPC Section-471)
7	Party:AIADMK	1 charges related to rioting (IPC Section-147)
	Total Cases:5	1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148)
	Serious IPC:3 Other IPC:7	1 charges related to Putting person in fear of injury in order to commit extortion (IPC Section-385)
		Other details: C.C. NO981/2008, 30-01-2006
		6 CASES - DETAILS NOT GIVEN SEPARATELY; IPC DETAILS ARE MENTIONED TOGETHER -
		294(B), 31 R.P.ACT 1950, C.C.NO976/08
		C.C. NO 979/2008, 06-01-2006
		CRLOP453, 7-01-2009
		p. 1.55, 7 01 2005





S. No.	Candidate Information	Brief Details of IPCs
		C.C. NO980/2008, 30-01-2006
		C.C. NO 982/2008, 17-02-2006
		2 charges related to Attempt to murder (IPC Section-307)
		1 charges related to Voluntarily causing hurt by dangerous weapons or means (IPC
		Section-324)
		4 charges related to rioting (IPC Section-147)
		4 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148)
		2 charges related to Punishment (IPC Section-143)
		2 charges related to Every member of unlawful assembly guilty of offence committed
	Name:S.KAMARAJ	in prosecution of common object (IPC Section-149)
	District:Karur	2 charges related to Assault or criminal force to deter public servant from discharge of
_	Constituency:Krishnarayapuram	his duty (IPC Section-353)
8	Party:AIADMK	2 charges related to voluntarily causing hurt (IPC Section-323)
	Total Cases:4	2 charges related to criminal intimidation (IPC Section-506)
	Serious IPC:3	1 charges related to Mischief causing damage to the amount of fifty rupees (IPC
	Other IPC:20	Section-427)
		1 charges related to criminal trespass (IPC Section-447)
		Other details:3 OF TNPPD ACT, (Case NO. 274/2009)
		Case No1075/2007
		506(ii), 3 OF PPDL ACT, (Case NO. 998/2010)
		506(ii), (Case NO. 1403/2010)
		1 charges related to Attempt to murder (IPC Section-307)
		1 charges related to Voluntarily causing hurt by dangerous weapons or means (IPC
		Section-324)
		1 charges related to dacoity (IPC Section-395)
	Name of Challesiaha an	2 charges related to rioting (IPC Section-147)
		2 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148)
		2 charges related to wrongful restraint (IPC Section-341)
	Name:K Balakrishnan District:Cuddalore	1 charges related to Voluntarily causing hurt to deter public servant from his duty (IPC Section-332)
	Constituency:Chidambaram	1 charges related to Assault or criminal force to deter public servant from discharge of
9	Party:CPI(M)	his duty (IPC Section-353)
,	Total Cases:2	1 charges related to Disobedience to order duly promulgated by public servant (IPC
	Serious IPC:3	Section-188)
	Other IPC:12	1 charges related to criminal intimidation (IPC Section-506)
		1 charges related to Act endangering life or personal safety of others (IPC Section-336)
		1 charges related to criminal trespass (IPC Section-447)
		Other details:506(2) R/W SECTION 3(1) PPD ACT, CR.NO.175/2009 IN JUDICIAL
		MAGISTRATE II, THIRUKOVILUR (FIR PENDING)
		307 R/W SECTION 3 OF THE TNPPD ACT 1992, CR.NO.435/2010 IN XIV-
		METROPOLITAN MAGISTRATE COURT, EGMORE, CHENNAI (FIR PENDING)
		1 charges related to Attempt to murder (IPC Section-307)
	Name:G BHIMRAO	1 charges related to Voluntarily causing hurt by dangerous weapons or means (IPC
	District:Thiruvallur	Section-324)
	Constituency:Maduravoyal	1 charges related to dacoity (IPC Section-395)
10	Party:CPI(M)	1 charges related to rioting (IPC Section-147)
	Total Cases:1	1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148)
	Serious IPC:3	1 charges related to Art and angering life or personal sefects of others (IBC Section 336)
	Other IPC:5	1 charges related to Act endangering life or personal safety of others (IPC Section-336)
		1 charges related to criminal trespass (IPC Section-447)
	1	with an intention to inform votors. Condidates' affidavit with nomination papers





		Association for Democratic Reforms
S. No.	Candidate Information	Brief Details of IPCs
		Other details:TNPPDL ACT 1992, SEC 3, CC NO. 435/2010, F3 NUNGAMBAKKAM
		POLICE STATION, CHENNAI
		1 charges related to Attempt to murder (IPC Section-307)
		1 charges related to Voluntarily causing hurt by dangerous weapons or means (IPC
		Section-324)
		5 charges related to rioting (IPC Section-147)
		4 charges related to criminal intimidation (IPC Section-506)
		3 charges related to Punishment (IPC Section-143)
		3 charges related to wrongful restraint (IPC Section-341)
		3 charges related to Assault or criminal force to deter public servant from discharge of
		his duty (IPC Section-353)
	Name:SENTHILBALAJI	3 charges related to Disobedience to order duly promulgated by public servant (IPC
	District:Karur	Section-188)
	Constituency:Karur	3 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148)
11	Party:AIADMK	1 charges related to Every member of unlawful assembly guilty of offence committed
	Total Cases:7 Serious IPC:2	in prosecution of common object (IPC Section-149) 1 charges related to Assault or criminal force to woman with intent to outrage her
	Other IPC:27	modesty (IPC Section-354)
	other IPC.27	1 charges related to voluntarily causing hurt (IPC Section-323)
		t charges related to voluntarily causing that (if C Section-323)
		Other details:506(ii), 3(i) PPDCL Act(Case No.25/2011)
		506(i), Case No. 752/2007
		506(ii), Case No.1403/2010
		506(i), 7(1)(a)(c)IA Act (Case No. 455/2007)
		Case No.24/2011
		Case No. 185/2006
		Case No. 1075/2007
		1 charges related to Attempt to murder (IPC Section-307)
		1 charges related to Voluntarily causing hurt by dangerous weapons or means (IPC
		Section-324)
		3 charges related to rioting (IPC Section-147)
		3 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148)
		2 charges related to criminal intimidation (IPC Section-506)
		1 charges related to wrongful restraint (IPC Section-341)
		1 charges related to Assault or criminal force to deter public servant from discharge of
	Name and Children and Children and Children	his duty (IPC Section-353)
	Name:POLLACHI V. JAYARAMAN	1 charges related to Joining or continuing in unlawful assembly, knowing it has been
	District:Tiruppur	commanded to disperse (IPC Section-145)
	Constituency: Udumala i petta i Party: AIADMK	1 charges related to voluntarily causing hurt (IPC Section-323) 1 charges related to criminal trespass (IPC Section-447)
	Total Cases:4	1 charges related to Criminal trespass (IFC Section-447) 1 charges related to House-trespass after preparation for hurt, assault or wrongful
	Serious IPC:2	restraint (IPC Section-452)
	Other IPC:17	1 charges related to Mischief causing damage to the amount of fifty rupees (IPC
		Section-427)
		1 charges related to Mischief by fire or explosive substance with intent to destroy
		house, etc. (IPC Section-436)
		1 charges related to Punishment of criminal conspiracy (IPC Section-120B)
		Other details:3(1) OF TAMILNADU PROPERTY DAMAGES ACT., SEC. 3(1)(X) OF THE
		SC/ST ACT.
		506(ii)
		506(ii), 7(1A)CLA
13	Name:SELLUR K RAJU	2 charges related to Voluntarily causing hurt by dangerous weapons or means (IPC





District:Madurai Constituency:Madurai West Party:AIADMK Total Cases:4 Serious IPC:2 Other IPC:8 Other IPC:9 Other IPC:9 Other IPC:3 Other IPC:9 Other IPC:3 Other IPC:6 Other	S. No.	Candidate Information	Association for Democratic Reforms Brief Details of IPCs
Constituency:Madurai West Party:AlADMK 2 charges related to rioting (IPC Section-147) 2 charges related to rioting (IPC Section-147) 4 charges related to rioting (IPC Section-168) 1 charges related to Disobedience to order duly promulgated by public servani Serious IPC:2 Section-188) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to Voluntarily causing hurt by dangerous weapons or mear Section-324) 1 charges related to Voluntarily causing hurt by dangerous weapons or mear Section-324) 1 charges related to theft (IPC Section-379) 1 charges related to Troiting (IPC Section-379) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to Attempt to murder (IPC Section-355) 1 charges related to Attempt to murder (IPC Section-307) 1 charges related to Attempt to murder (IPC Section-307) 1 charges related to Attempt to murder (IPC Section-307) 1 charges related to rioting (IPC Section-307) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charg	J. 140.		1 11 11
Party:AIADMK Total Cases:4 Serious IPC:2 Other IPC:8 Other IPC:9 O			
Total Cases:4 Serious IPC:2 Other IPC:8 Other details:506(i), CRIME NO.295/2009 (FIR STAGE) 7(1)A CRIMINAL LAW AMENDMENT ACT, CRIME NO.1698/06 DATE:21-03-200' 506(a),3(1) OF TNPPDL ACT, CRIME NO.292/2008 (FIR STAGE) 5TC NO.1049/08, 18(c) DRUGS & COSMETICS ACT 1940 R/W 65(3), 65(4)(3)(1) 5RUGS & COSMETICS RULES OF 1945 R/W 58C 27(d) DRUGS (COSMETICS ACT 1940 R/W 65(3), 65(4)(3)(1) 5RUGS & COSMETICS RULES OF 1945 R/W 58C 27(d) DRUGS (COSMETICS ACT 1940 R/W 65(3), 65(4)(3)(1) 5RUGS & COSMETICS RULES OF 1945 R/W 58C 27(d) DRUGS (COSMETICS ACT 1940 R/W 65(3), 65(4)(3)(1) 5RUGS & COSMETICS RULES OF 1945 R/W 58C 27(d) DRUGS (COSMETICS ACT 1940 R/W 65(3), 65(4)(3)(1) 5RUGS & COSMETICS RULES OF 1945 R/W 58C 27(d) DRUGS (COSMETICS ACT 1940 R/W 65(3), 65(4)(3)(1) 5RUGS & COSMETICS RULES OF 1945 R/W 58C 27(d) DRUGS (COSMETICS ACT 1940 R/W 65(3), 65(4)(3)(1) 5RUGS & COSMETICS RULES OF 1945 R/W 65(2), 65(4)(3)(1) 5RUGS & COSMETICS RULES OF 1940 R/W 65(3), 65(4)(3)(1) 5RUGS & COSMETICS RULES OF 1940 R/W 65(3), 65(4)(3)(1) 5RUGS & COSMETICS RULES OF 1940 R/W 65(3), 65(4)(3)(1) 5RUGS & COSMETICS RULES OF 1940 R/W 65(3), 65(4)(3)(1) 5RUGS & COSMETICS RULES OF 1940 R/W 65(3), 65(4)(3)(1) 5RUGS & COSMETICS RULES OF 1940 R/W 65(3), 65(4)(3)(1) 5RUGS & COSMETICS RULES OF 1940 R/W 65(4)(4) 5RUGS		-	
Serious IPC:2 Other IPC:8 Other IPC:8 Other IPC:8 Other IPC:8 Other IPC:8 Other IPC:8 Other IPC:8 Other IPC:8 Other details:506(i), CRIME NO.295/2009 (FIR STAGE) 7(1)A CRIMINAL LAW AMENDMENT ACT, CRIME NO.1698/06 DATE:21-03-200 506(a),3(1) OF TNPPDL ACT, CRIME NO.922/2008 (FIR STAGE) 7(1)A CRIMINAL LAW AMENDMENT ACT, CRIME NO.1698/06 DATE:21-03-200 506(a),3(1) OF TNPPDL ACT, CRIME NO.922/2008 (FIR STAGE) STC NO.1049/08, 18(c) DRUGS & COSMETICS ACT 1940 R/W 65(3),65(4)(3)(1) DRUGS & COSMETICS RULES OF 1945 R/W SEC 27(d) DRUGS & COSMETICS ACT UDICIAL MAGISTRATE COURT NO.II, MADURAI, DATE:20-07-2010 (IMPRISON) EXECUTED AND FINE PAID) I charges related to Voluntarily causing hurt by dangerous weapons or mear Section-324) Name:Gokula Indra District:Chennai Constituency:Anna Nagar 1 charges related to to Voluntarily causing hurt by dangerous weapons or mear Section-324) 1 charges related to to Voluntarily causing hurt by dangerous weapons or mear Section-324) 1 charges related to to Voluntarily causing hurt by dangerous weapons or mear Section-324) 1 charges related to Voluntarily causing hurt by dangerous weapons or mear Section-324) 1 charges related to theft (IPC Section-379) I charges related to theft (IPC Section-379) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to Assault or criminal force with intent to dishonour person, otherwise than on grave provocation (IPC Section-355) Other IPC:3 Other IPC:3 Other details:4(1)A, TNOPP ACT (CR.No.32/2011) 1 charges related to Abetment of suicide of child or insane person (IPC Section-147) 1 charges related to Abetment of suicide of child or insane person (IPC Section-147) 1 charges related to Toiting (IPC Section-147) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to Holischief by fire or explosive substance with intent to dest house, etc. (IPC Section-452) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to Rioting,		-	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
Other IPC:8 1 charges related to voluntarily causing hurt (IPC Section-323) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) Other details:506(i), CRIME NO.295/2009 (FIR STAGE) 7(1)A CRIMINAL LAW AMENDMENT ACT, CRIME NO.1698/06 DATE:21-03-200' 506(a), 3(1) OF TNPPDL ACT, CRIME NO 922/2008 (FIR STAGE) STC NO.1049/08, 18(c) DRUGS & COSMETICS ACT 1940 R/W 65(3), 65(4)(3)(1) DRUGS & COSMETICS RULES OF 1945 R/W SEC 27(d) DRUGS & COSMETICS ACT JUDICIAL MAGISTRATE COURT NO.II, MADURAI, DATE:20-07-2010 (IMPRISON) EXECUTED AND FINE PAID) 1 charges related to Voluntarily causing hurt by dangerous weapons or mear Section-324) 1 charges related to to Voluntarily causing hurt by dangerous weapons or mear Section-324) 1 charges related to trioning (IPC Section-147) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to Assault or criminal force with intent to dishonour person, otherwise than on grave provocation (IPC Section-355) Other details:4(1)A, TNOPP ACT (CR.No.24/2011) Cr.No.569/2010 4(1)A, TNOPP ACT (CR.No.32/2011) 1 charges related to Abtempt to murder (IPC Section-307) 1 charges related to Abtempt to murder (IPC Section-307) 1 charges related to Criminal Intimidation (IPC Section-506) 1 charges related to Trioning (IPC Section-147) 1 charges related to House-trespass after preparation for hurt, assault or wror restraint (IPC Section-436) Other details:3,4 of TNPPD ACT & 4 E.S. ACT & IPC's -147, 148, 294(b), 452, 43 305, 506(2) I charges related to to misching armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-149) 1 charges related to to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-149) 1 charges related to Robbery, or dacoity, with attempt to cause death or griev (IPC Section-397) 1 charges related to Robbery, or dacoity, with attempt to cause death or griev (IPC Section-397) 1 charges related to Abtempt or dac			,, , , ,
1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) Other details:506(i), CRIME NO.295/2009 (FIR STAGE) 7(1)A CRIMINAL LAW AMENDMENT ACT, CRIME NO.1698/06 DATE:21-03-200 506(a), 2(1) OF TMPPD LACT, CRIME NO.292/2008 (FIR STAGE) STC NO.1049/08, 18(c) DRUGS & COSMETICS ACT 1940 R/W 65(3), 65(4)(3)(1) DRUGS & COSMETICS ACT 1940 R/W 65(3), 65(4)(3)(1) DRUGS & COSMETICS ACT UDICIAL MAGISTRATE COURT NO.II, MADURAI, DATE:20-07-2010 (IMPRISON) EXECUTED AND FINE PAID) 1 charges related to Voluntarily causing hurt by dangerous weapons or mear Section-324) Name:Gokula Indra District:Chennai Constituency:Anna Nagar 14 Party:AlADMK 1 charges related to theft (IPC Section-379) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to Assault or criminal force with intent to dishonour person, otherwise than on grave provocation (IPC Section-355) Serious IPC:2 Other IPC:3 Name:S.P. SHUNMUGANATHAN District:Thoothukudi Constituency:Srivaikuntam Party:AlADMK 7 total Cases:2 Serious IPC:2 Other IPC:6 Name:T.SENGUTTUVAN District:Krishnagiri Constituency:Srivaikuntam Name:T.SENGUTTUVAN District:Krishnagiri Constituency:Perpanahalli Party:DMK Total Cases:2 Serious IPC:2 Other details:3,4 of TNPPD ACT & 4 E.S. ACT & IPC's -147, 148, 294(b), 452, 43 305, 506(2) IPC's -294(b), 506(ii) 1 charges related to droiting (IPC Section-395) 1 charges related to lillegal payments in connection with an election (IPC Section-114) 1 charges related to droiting (IPC Section-395) 1 charges related to lillegal payments in connection with an election (IPC Section-114) 1 charges related to Robbery, or dacoity, with attempt to cause death or griev (IPC Section-397) 1 charges related to Robbery, or dacoity, with attempt to cause death or griev (IPC Section-397) 1 charges related to Robbery, or dacoity, with attempt to cause death or griev (IPC Section-397)			
7(1)A CRIMINAL LAW AMENDMENT ACT, CRIME NO.1698/06 DATE:21-03-200: 506(a),3(1) OF TNPPDL ACT, CRIME NO.922/2008 (FIR STAGE) STC NO.1049/08, 18(c) DRUGS & COSMETICS ACT 1940 R/W 65(3), 65(4)(3)(1) DRUGS & COSMETICS ACT 1940 R/W 65(4) R/W		Other IPC:8	
Name:Gokula Indra District:Chennai Constituency:Anna Nagar 14 Party:AIADMK Total Cases:3 Serious IPC:2 Other IPC:3 Name:S.P. SHUNMUGANATHAN District:Tchothukudi Constituency:Srivaikuntam Party:AIADMK Total Cases:2 Serious IPC:2 Other IPC:6 Name:T.SENGUTTUVAN District:Krishnagiri Constituency:Veppanahalli Party:DMK Total Cases:2 Serious IPC:2 Other IPC:6 Name:T.SENGUTTUVAN District:Krishnagiri Constituency:Veppanahalli Party:DMK Total Cases:2 Serious IPC:2 Other IPC:6 Name:T.SENGUTTUVAN District:Krishnagiri Constituency:Veppanahalli Party:DMK Total Cases:2 Serious IPC:2 Other IPC:6 Name:T.SENGUTTUVAN District:Krishnagiri Constituency:Veppanahalli Party:DMK Total Cases:2 Serious IPC:2 Other IPC:6 Name:T.SENGUTTUVAN District:Krishnagiri Constituency:Veppanahalli Party:DMK Total Cases:2 Serious IPC:2 Other IPC:6 Name:T.SENGUTTUVAN District:Krishnagiri Constituency:Veppanahalli Party:DMK Total Cases:2 Serious IPC:2 Other IPC:2 Serious IPC:2 Other IPC:3 Name:T.SENGUTTUVAN District:Krishnagiri Constituency:Veppanahalli Party:DMK Total Cases:2 Serious IPC:2 Serious IPC:2 Total Cases:2 Serious IPC:2 Other IPC:A Total Cases:2 Total Cases:3 Total Cases:4 Total Cases:4 Total Cases:5 Total Cases:5 Total Cases:5 Total Cases:6 Total Cases:6 Total Cases:7 Total Cases:7 Total Cases:7 Total Cases:8 Total Cases:8 Total Cases:8 Total Cases:9 Total Cases:9 Total Cases:9 Total Cases:9 Total Cases:9 Total Cases:1			7(1)A CRIMINAL LAW AMENDMENT ACT, CRIME NO.1698/06 DATE:21-03-2007 506(a),3(1) OF TNPPDL ACT, CRIME NO.922/2008 (FIR STAGE) STC NO.1049/08, 18(c) DRUGS & COSMETICS ACT 1940 R/W 65(3), 65(4)(3)(1) OF DRUGS & COSMETICS RULES OF 1945 R/W SEC 27(d) DRUGS & COSMETICS ACT, JUDICIAL MAGISTRATE COURT NO.II, MADURAI, DATE:20-07-2010 (IMPRISONMENT
Name:Gokula Indra District:Chennai Constituency:Anna Nagar Party:AlADMK Total Cases:3 Serious IPC:2 Other IPC:3 Name:S.P. SHUNMUGANATHAN District:Thoothukudi Constituency:Srivaikuntam Party:AlADMK Total Cases:2 Serious IPC:2 Other IPC:6 Name:T.SENGUTTUVAN District:Krishnagiri Constituency:Veppanahalli Party:DMK Total Cases:2 Serious IPC:2 Other Getails:4 1 charges related to toting (IPC Section-147) 1 charges related to Assault or criminal force with intent to dishonour person, otherwise than on grave provocation (IPC Section-355) Other details:4(1)A, TNOPP ACT (CR.No.24/2011) Cr.No.569/2010 4(1)A, TNOPP ACT (CR.No.32/2011) 1 charges related to Attempt to murder (IPC Section-307) 1 charges related to Attempt to murder (IPC Section-307) 1 charges related to Attempt to murder (IPC Section-307) 1 charges related to toting (IPC Section-147) 1 charges related to rioting (IPC Section-147) 1 charges related to House-trespass after preparation for hurt, assault or wror restraint (IPC Section-436) Other details:3,4 of TNPPD ACT & 4 E.S. ACT & IPC's -147, 148, 294(b), 452, 43 305, 506(2) IPC's -294(b), 506(ii) 1 charges related to diacoity (IPC Section-147) 1 charges related to filoting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-171) 1 charges related to filoting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-171) 1 charges related to lilegal payments in connection with an election (IPC Section-171) 1 charges related to rioting (IPC Section-147) 1 charges related to rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to house-trespass (IPC Section-488) 1 charges related to house-trespass (IPC Section-489) 1 charges related to house-trespass (IPC Sectio			1 charges related to Voluntarily causing hurt by dangerous weapons or means (IPC
District:Chennai Constituency:Anna Nagar 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to Assault or criminal force with intent to dishonour person, otherwise than on grave provocation (IPC Section-355) Serious IPC:2 Other IPC:3 Other IPC:3 Other details:4(1)A, TNOPP ACT (CR.No.24/2011) Cr.No.569/2010 4(1)A, TNOPP ACT (CR.No.32/2011) 1 charges related to Attempt to murder (IPC Section-307) 1 charges related to Attempt to f suicide of child or insane person (IPC Section 2 charges related to criminal intimidation (IPC Section-506) Name:S.P. SHUNMUGANATHAN District:Thoothukudi Constituency:Srivaikuntam 15 Party:AlaDMK Total Cases:2 Serious IPC:2 Other IPC:6 Other details:3,4 of TNPPD ACT & 4 E.S. ACT & IPC's -147, 148, 294(b), 452, 43 305, 506(2) IPC's - 294(b), 506(ii) 1 charges related to disoring, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-147) 1 charges related to House-trespass after preparation for hurt, assault or wror restraint (IPC Section-436) Other details:3,4 of TNPPD ACT & 4 E.S. ACT & IPC's -147, 148, 294(b), 452, 43 305, 506(2) IPC's - 294(b), 506(ii) 1 charges related to dacoity (IPC Section-395) 1 charges related to lllegal payments in connection with an election (IPC Section-171H) Name:T.SENGUTTUVAN District:Krishnagiri Constituency:Veppanahalli Party:DMK Total Cases:2 Serious IPC:2 Other details:3,4 of TNPPD ACT & 4 E.S. ACT & IPC's -147, 148, 294(b), 452, 43 305, 506(2) IPC's - 294(b), 506(ii) 1 charges related to dacoity (IPC Section-395) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 ch			,
Constituency:Anna Nagar Party:AlADMK 1 charges related to Assault or criminal force with intent to dishonour person, otherwise than on grave provocation (IPC Section-355) Serious IPC:2 Other IPC:3 Other IPC:3 Other details:4(1)A, TNOPP ACT (CR.No.24/2011) Cr.No.569/2010 4(1)A, TNOPP ACT (CR.No.32/2011) 1 charges related to Attempt to murder (IPC Section-307) 1 charges related to Attempt to murder (IPC Section-506) 1 charges related to riminal intimidation (IPC Section-506) 1 charges related to riminal intimidation (IPC Section-506) 1 charges related to riminal intimidation (IPC Section-506) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) Constituency:Srivaikuntam Party:AlADMK Total Cases:2 Serious IPC:2 Other IPC:6 Name:T.SENGUTTUVAN District:Krishnagiri Constituency:Veppanahalli Party:DMK Total Cases:2 Serious IPC:2 Other details:3,4 of TNPPD ACT & 4 E.S. ACT & IPC's -147, 148, 294(b), 452, 43 305, 506(2) IPC's - 294(b), 506(ii) 1 charges related to dacoity (IPC Section-395) 1 charges related to Illegal payments in connection with an election (IPC Section-171H) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (
1 charges related to Assault or criminal force with intent to dishonour person, otherwise than on grave provocation (IPC Section-355) Serious IPC:2 Other IPC:3 Other IPC:3 Other details:4(1)A, TNOPP ACT (CR.No.24/2011) Cr.No.569/2010 4(1)A, TNOPP ACT (CR.No.32/2011) 1 charges related to Attempt to murder (IPC Section-307) 1 charges related to Abetment of suicide of child or insane person (IPC Section District: Thoothukudi 1 charges related to criminal intimidation (IPC Section-147) District:Thoothukudi 1 charges related to rioting (IPC Section-147) District:Thoothukudi 1 charges related to House-trespass after preparation for hurt, assault or wror restraint (IPC Section-452) 1 charges related to Mischief by fire or explosive substance with intent to dest house, etc. (IPC Section-436) Other IPC:6 Other details:3,4 of TNPPD ACT & 4 E.S. ACT & IPC's -147, 148, 294(b), 452, 43 305, 506(2) IPC's - 294(b), 506(ii) 1 charges related to dacoity (IPC Section-395) 1 charges related to lllegal payments in connection with an election (IPC Sect 171H) Name:T.SENGUTTUVAN District:Krishnagiri Constituency:Veppanahalli Party:DMK Total Cases:2 Serious IPC:2 Serious IPC:2 I charges related to Robbery, or dacoity, with attempt to cause death or griev (IPC Section-397) 1 charges related to Acts done by several persons in furtherance of common in (IPC Section-340)			
Total Cases:3 Serious IPC:2 Other IPC:3 Other details:4(1)A, TNOPP ACT (CR.No.24/2011) Cr.No.569/2010 4(1)A, TNOPP ACT (CR.No.32/2011) 1 charges related to Attempt to murder (IPC Section-307) 1 charges related to Abetment of suicide of child or insane person (IPC Section-2 charges related to rioting (IPC Section-147) District:Thoothukudi Constituency:Srivaikuntam Party:AlADMK Total Cases:2 Serious IPC:2 Other IPC:6 Name:T.SENGUTTUVAN District:Krishnagiri Constituency:Veppanahalli Party:DMK Total Cases:2 Serious IPC:2 Other IPC:6 Other IPC:7 Other IPC:8 Other IPC:9 Other IP			
Serious IPC:2 Other IPC:3 Other IPC:3 Other details:4(1)A, TNOPP ACT (CR.No.24/2011) Cr.No.569/2010 4(1)A, TNOPP ACT (CR.No.32/2011) 1 charges related to Attempt to murder (IPC Section-307) 1 charges related to Abetment of suicide of child or insane person (IPC Section-2 charges related to criminal intimidation (IPC Section-506) Name:S.P. SHUNMUGANATHAN District:Thoothukudi Constituency:Srivaikuntam 15 Party:AlADMK Total Cases:2 Serious IPC:2 Other IPC:6 Name:T.SENGUTTUVAN District:Krishnagiri Constituency:Veppanahalli Party:DMK Total Cases:2 Serious IPC:2 Other IPC:6 Name:T.SENGUTTUVAN District:Krishnagiri Constituency:Veppanahalli Party:DMK Total Cases:2 Serious IPC:2 Other IPC:3 Other details:3,4 of TNPPD ACT & 4 E.S. ACT & IPC's -147, 148, 294(b), 452, 43 305, 506(2) IPC's - 294(b), 506(ii) 1 charges related to dacoity (IPC Section-395) 1 charges related to lllegal payments in connection with an election (IPC Section-114) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to Rioting (IPC Section-147) 1 charges related to Rioting (IPC Section-148) 1 charges relat		_ ·	· · ·
Other IPC:3 Other details:4(1)A, TNOPP ACT (CR.No.24/2011) Cr.No.569/2010 4(1)A, TNOPP ACT (CR.No.32/2011) 1 charges related to Attempt to murder (IPC Section-307) 1 charges related to Attempt of suicide of child or insane person (IPC Section-2 charges related to criminal intimidation (IPC Section-506) Name:S.P. SHUNMUGANATHAN District:Thoothukudi Constituency:Srivaikuntam 15 Party:AlADMK Total Cases:2 Serious IPC:2 Other IPC:6 Name:T.SENGUTTUVAN District:Krishnagiri Constituency:Veppanahalli Party:DMK Total Cases:2 Serious IPC:2 Other details:3,4 of TNPPD ACT & 4 E.S. ACT & IPC's -147, 148, 294(b), 452, 43 305, 506(2) IPC's - 294(b), 506(ii) 1 charges related to dacoity (IPC Section-395) 1 charges related to lllegal payments in connection with an election (IPC Section-171H) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to to dacoity (IPC Section-395) 1 charges related to dacoity (IPC Section-395) 1 charges related to rioting (IPC Section-147) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-171H) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to Rioting the Rioting that the Rioting			otherwise than on grave provocation (IPC Section-355)
Cr.No.569/2010 4(1)A, TNOPP ACT (CR.No.32/2011) 1 charges related to Attempt to murder (IPC Section-307) 1 charges related to Abetment of suicide of child or insane person (IPC Section-2 charges related to criminal intimidation (IPC Section-506) 1 charges related to criminal intimidation (IPC Section-506) 1 charges related to rioting (IPC Section-147) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) Constituency:Srivaikuntam 1 charges related to House-trespass after preparation for hurt, assault or wron restraint (IPC Section-452) 1 charges related to Mischief by fire or explosive substance with intent to dest house, etc. (IPC Section-436) Other details:3,4 of TNPPD ACT & 4 E.S. ACT & IPC's -147, 148, 294(b), 452, 43 305, 506(2) IPC's - 294(b), 506(ii) 1 charges related to dacoity (IPC Section-395) 1 charges related to Illegal payments in connection with an election (IPC Section-17H) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to Robbery, or dacoity, with attempt to cause death or griev (IPC Section-397) 1 charges related to Acts done by several persons in furtherance of common in (IPC Section-331)			
4(1)A, TNOPP ACT (CR.No.32/2011) 1 charges related to Attempt to murder (IPC Section-307) 1 charges related to Abetment of suicide of child or insane person (IPC Section-2 charges related to Criminal intimidation (IPC Section-506) 1 charges related to criminal intimidation (IPC Section-506) 1 charges related to rioting (IPC Section-147) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to House-trespass after preparation for hurt, assault or wror restraint (IPC Section-452) 1 charges related to Mischief by fire or explosive substance with intent to dest house, etc. (IPC Section-436) Other IPC:6 Other details:3,4 of TNPPD ACT & 4 E.S. ACT & IPC's -147, 148, 294(b), 452, 43 305, 506(2) IPC's - 294(b), 506(ii) 1 charges related to dacoity (IPC Section-395) 1 charges related to lllegal payments in connection with an election (IPC Section-171H) 1 charges related to rioting (IPC Section-147) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to Robbery, or dacoity, with attempt to cause death or griev (IPC Section-397) 1 charges related to Acts done by several persons in furtherance of common in (IPC Section-34)		Other IPC:3	
1 charges related to Attempt to murder (IPC Section-307) 1 charges related to Abetment of suicide of child or insane person (IPC Section 2 charges related to Abetment of suicide of child or insane person (IPC Section 2 charges related to criminal intimidation (IPC Section-506) Name:S.P. SHUNMUGANATHAN District:Thoothukudi Constituency:Srivaikuntam 15 Party:AIADMK Total Cases:2 Serious IPC:2 Other IPC:6 Other details:3,4 of TNPPD ACT & 4 E.S. ACT & IPC's -147, 148, 294(b), 452, 43 305, 506(2) IPC's - 294(b), 506(ii) 1 charges related to Mischief by fire or explosive substance with intent to dest house, etc. (IPC Section-436) Other details:3,4 of TNPPD ACT & 4 E.S. ACT & IPC's -147, 148, 294(b), 452, 43 305, 506(2) IPC's - 294(b), 506(ii) 1 charges related to bouse-trespass (IPC Section-395) 1 charges related to rioting (IPC Section-147) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to house-trespass (IPC Section-448) 1 charges related to Robbery, or dacoity, with attempt to cause death or griev (IPC Section-397) 1 charges related to Acts done by several persons in furtherance of common in (IPC Section-341)			
1 charges related to Abetment of suicide of child or insane person (IPC Section 2 charges related to criminal intimidation (IPC Section-506) Name:S.P. SHUNMUGANATHAN District:Thoothukudi Constituency:Srivaikuntam 15 Party:AIADMK Total Cases:2 Serious IPC:2 Other IPC:6 Name:T.SENGUTTUVAN District:Krishnagiri Constituency:Veppanahalli Party:DMK Total Cases:2 Serious IPC:2 Other Gettion-452 Name:T.SENGUTTUVAN District:Krishnagiri Constituency:Veppanahalli Party:DMK Total Cases:2 Serious IPC:2 Other Gettion-452 Name:T.SENGUTTUVAN District:Krishnagiri Constituency:Veppanahalli Party:DMK Total Cases:2 Serious IPC:2 Other Getails:3,4 of Total Cases:2 Serious IPC:2 Other Getails:3,4 of Total Cases:2 Serious IPC:3 Other Getails:3,4 of Total Cases (IPC Section-147) 1 charges related to Illegal payments in connection with an election (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to Nouse-trespass (IPC Section-448) 1 charges related to Robbery, or dacoity, with attempt to cause death or griev (IPC Section-397) 1 charges related to Acts done by several persons in furtherance of common in (IPC Section-34)			
Other IPC:6 Other details:3,4 of TNPPD ACT & 4 E.S. ACT & IPC's -147, 148, 294(b), 452, 43 305, 506(2) IPC's - 294(b), 506(ii) 1 charges related to dacoity (IPC Section-395) 1 charges related to Illegal payments in connection with an election (IPC Section-114H) 1 charges related to rioting (IPC Section-147) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to house-trespass (IPC Section-448) 1 charges related to Robbery, or dacoity, with attempt to cause death or griev (IPC Section-397) 1 charges related to Acts done by several persons in furtherance of common in (IPC Section-34)		District:Thoothukudi Constituency:Srivaikuntam Party:AIADMK Total Cases:2	1 charges related to Abetment of suicide of child or insane person (IPC Section-305) 2 charges related to criminal intimidation (IPC Section-506) 1 charges related to rioting (IPC Section-147) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to House-trespass after preparation for hurt, assault or wrongful restraint (IPC Section-452) 1 charges related to Mischief by fire or explosive substance with intent to destroy
Other details:3,4 of TNPPD ACT & 4 E.S. ACT & IPC's -147, 148, 294(b), 452, 43 305, 506(2) IPC's - 294(b), 506(ii) 1 charges related to dacoity (IPC Section-395) 1 charges related to Illegal payments in connection with an election (IPC Section-171H) 1 charges related to rioting (IPC Section-147) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to house-trespass (IPC Section-448) 1 charges related to Robbery, or dacoity, with attempt to cause death or griev (IPC Section-397) 1 charges related to Acts done by several persons in furtherance of common in (IPC Section-34)			house, etc. (IPC Section-436)
1 charges related to dacoity (IPC Section-395) 1 charges related to Illegal payments in connection with an election (IPC Section-171H) Name:T.SENGUTTUVAN District:Krishnagiri Constituency:Veppanahalli Party:DMK Total Cases:2 Serious IPC:2 1 charges related to rioting (IPC Section-147) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to house-trespass (IPC Section-448) 1 charges related to Robbery, or dacoity, with attempt to cause death or grieve (IPC Section-397) 1 charges related to Acts done by several persons in furtherance of common in (IPC Section-34)		Other IPC:6	
1 charges related to Illegal payments in connection with an election (IPC Section-171H) Name:T.SENGUTTUVAN District:Krishnagiri Constituency:Veppanahalli Party:DMK Total Cases:2 Serious IPC:2 1 charges related to rioting (IPC Section-147) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to house-trespass (IPC Section-448) 1 charges related to Robbery, or dacoity, with attempt to cause death or grieve (IPC Section-397) 1 charges related to Acts done by several persons in furtherance of common in (IPC Section-34)			
Name:T.SENGUTTUVAN District:Krishnagiri Constituency:Veppanahalli Party:DMK Total Cases:2 Serious IPC:2 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to house-trespass (IPC Section-448) 1 charges related to Robbery, or dacoity, with attempt to cause death or grieve (IPC Section-397) 1 charges related to Acts done by several persons in furtherance of common in (IPC Section-34)			1 charges related to Illegal payments in connection with an election (IPC Section-
Name:T.SENGUTTUVAN District:Krishnagiri Constituency:Veppanahalli Party:DMK Total Cases:2 Serious IPC:2 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to house-trespass (IPC Section-448) 1 charges related to house-trespass (IPC Section-448) 1 charges related to Robbery, or dacoity, with attempt to cause death or grieve (IPC Section-397) 1 charges related to Acts done by several persons in furtherance of common in (IPC Section-34)			
District:Krishnagiri Constituency:Veppanahalli 16 Party:DMK Total Cases:2 Serious IPC:2 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to house-trespass (IPC Section-448) 1 charges related to Robbery, or dacoity, with attempt to cause death or grieve (IPC Section-397) 1 charges related to Acts done by several persons in furtherance of common in (IPC Section-34)		Namo:T SENGUITTUVAN	
Constituency:Veppanahalli Party:DMK Total Cases:2 Serious IPC:2 Constituency:Veppanahalli 1 charges related to nouse-trespass (IPC Section-448) 1 charges related to Robbery, or dacoity, with attempt to cause death or grieve (IPC Section-397) 1 charges related to Acts done by several persons in furtherance of common in (IPC Section-34)			
Party:DMK Total Cases:2 Serious IPC:2 I charges related to Robbery, or dacoity, with attempt to cause death or griev (IPC Section-397) 1 charges related to Robbery, or dacoity, with attempt to cause death or griev (IPC Section-34)		_	
Total Cases:2 Serious IPC:2 (IPC Section-397) 1 charges related to Acts done by several persons in furtherance of common in (IPC Section-34)	16		1 charges related to Robbery, or dacoity, with attempt to cause death or grievous hur
Serious IPC:2 1 charges related to Acts done by several persons in furtherance of common in (IPC Section-34)		-	
		Serious IPC:2	
Other details:397 r/w 34 & Sections 3 & 4 of TNPPD Act (case			Other details:397 r/w 34 & Sections 3 & 4 of TNPPD Act (case
no.148/2003),Royacotta, krishnagii			,
136(g) of Representation of People's Act,1951 r/w (171H of IPC) - case			





		Association for Democratic Reforms
S. No.	Candidate Information	Brief Details of IPCs
		no.272/11,Krishnagiri Town, Krishnagiri
17	Name:B.Valarmathi District:Chennai Constituency:Thousand Lights Party:AIADMK Total Cases:2 Serious IPC:2 Other IPC:7	1 charges related to Attempt to murder (IPC Section-307) 1 charges related to undue influence or personation at an election (IPC Section-171F) 1 charges related to rioting (IPC Section-147) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to Assault or criminal force to deter public servant from discharge of his duty (IPC Section-353) 1 charges related to Negligent conduct with respect to explosive substance (IPC Section-286) 1 charges related to Punishment of criminal conspiracy (IPC Section-120B) 1 charges related to Acts done by several persons in furtherance of common intention (IPC Section-34) 1 charges related to Punishment of abetment if the act abetted is committed in consequence, and where no express provision is made for its punishment (IPC Section-109)
		Other details:13(2),13(I)(e)of PC Act 1988.(Case No.02/07) 5 Explosive Substannces Act (Case No.775/06)
18	Name:A. RAMASAMY District:Dindigul Constituency:Nilakkottai Party:PT Total Cases:1 Serious IPC:2 Other IPC:4	1 charges related to Wrongful confinement for ten or more days (IPC Section-344) 1 charges related to Voluntarily causing hurt by dangerous weapons or means (IPC Section-324) 1 charges related to rioting (IPC Section-147) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to voluntarily causing hurt (IPC Section-323) 1 charges related to criminal intimidation (IPC Section-506) Other details:CASE PENDING IN JUDICIAL MAGISTRATE NO. VI, MADURAI JUDICIAL MAGISTRATE NO. VI, MADURAI, JUDIC
19	Name:A. Narayanan District:Tirunelveli Constituen cy:Nanguneri Party:AIADMK Total Cases:1 Serious IPC:2 Other IPC:1	1 charges related to Voluntarily causing grievous hurt by dangerous weapons or means (IPC Section-326) 1 charges related to Voluntarily causing hurt by dangerous weapons or means (IPC Section-324) 1 charges related to voluntarily causing hurt (IPC Section-323) Other details:107/2006
20	Name:N.MURUGUMARAN District:Cuddalore Constituency:Kattumannarkoil Party:AIADMK Total Cases:1 Serious IPC:2 Other IPC:6	1 charges related to Attempt to murder (IPC Section-307) 1 charges related to Voluntarily causing hurt by dangerous weapons or means (IPC Section-324) 1 charges related to rioting (IPC Section-147) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to voluntarily causing hurt (IPC Section-323) 1 charges related to Negligent conduct with respect to fire or combustible matter (IPC Section-285) 1 charges related to criminal intimidation (IPC Section-506) 1 charges related to Every member of unlawful assembly guilty of offence committed in prosecution of common object (IPC Section-149)
		Other details:147,148,294(b),307,323,324,285,506(ii),149, Case no. 80/2007
	Name:ASHOK	





		Association for Democratic Reforms
S. No	. Candidate Information	Brief Details of IPCs
	ery	Section-324)
	Party:AIADMK Total Cases:1	1 charges related to rioting (IPC Section-147)
	Serious IPC:2 Other IPC:1	
		Other details:4B OF EXPLOSIVE SUBSTANCE ACT 1908, & 3(2)(V) OF THE SC ST ACT
		1989
		1 charges related to Voluntarily causing hurt by dangerous weapons or means (IPC
		Section-324)
		4 charges related to rioting (IPC Section-147)
		3 charges related to Disobedience to order duly promulgated by public servant (IPC
		Section-188)
		2 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148)
		2 charges related to voluntarily causing hurt (IPC Section-323)
		2 charges related to criminal intimidation (IPC Section-506)
		1 charges related to Mischief by fire or explosive substance with intent to destroy
		house, etc. (IPC Section-436)
	Name:R.B. UDHAYAKUMAR	1 charges related to Punishment of criminal conspiracy (IPC Section-120B)
	District:Virudhunagar	1 charges related to Punishment (IPC Section-143)
	G	1 charges related to Assault or criminal force to deter public servant from discharge of
22	Constituency:Sattur	· ·
22	Party:AIADMK	his duty (IPC Section-353)
	Total Cases:5	1 charges related to wrongful restraint (IPC Section-341)
	Serious IPC:1	1 charges related to Voluntarily causing hurt to deter public servant from his duty (IPC
	Other IPC:21	Section-332)
		1 charges related to Mischief causing damage to the amount of fifty rupees (IPC
		Section-427)
		1 charges related to House-trespass after preparation for hurt, assault or wrongful
		restraint (IPC Section-452)
		Other details:506(1), Sec.3(1) of TNPPDL Act(Cr.No.922/2008)
		7(1)(a) CLA ACT.(Cr.No.1127/2007)
		506(i), Cr.No.1442/2007
		Cr.No.787/2007
		7(1) (A) C L A Act (Cr.No.218/2007)
		1 charges related to Obscene acts and songs (IPC Section-294)
		2 charges related to dissertic acts and songs (if a section 254)
		1 charges related to criminal trespass (IPC Section-447)
	No see and AVENUKATE CAN	1 charges related to criminal crespass (IPC Section-447) 1 charges related to wrongful restraint (IPC Section-341)
	Name:L. VENKATESAN	
	District:Villupuram	1 charges related to Threat of injury to public servant (IPC Section-189)
1	Constituency:Tirukkoyilur	1 charges related to Assault or criminal force to deter public servant from discharge of
23	Party:DMDK	his duty (IPC Section-353)
	Total Cases:4	1 charges related to public nuisance in cases not otherwise provided for (IPC Section-
	Serious IPC:1	290)
	Other IPC:7	
		Other details:4(1) (aaa) of TNP Act R/W 5,6,11TNRS.Rules,1959
		4(1) (aaa) of TNP Act
		3(1)of TN, Town Act
24		1 charges related to Voluntarily causing hurt by dangerous weapons or means (IPC
	Name:M. GUNASEKRAN	Section-324)
	District:Sivagangai	3 charges related to rioting (IPC Section-147)
	Constituency: Manamadurai	3 charges related to Disobedience to order duly promulgated by public servant (IPC
	Party:AIADMK	,, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,
	Total Cases:4	Section-188)
	Serious IPC:1	1 charges related to wrongful restraint (IPC Section-341)
	Other IPC:10	1 charges related to voluntarily causing hurt (IPC Section-323)
		1 charges related to criminal intimidation (IPC Section-506)
_	' 41' TZ'4' 4 1' 1 C'4'	





		Association for Democratic Reforms
S. No.	Candidate Information	Brief Details of IPCs
		1 charges related to Punishment (IPC Section-143)
		Other details:3 of PPDL Act & IPC's -147, 323, 324, 506 (II) 171(H) TNCP Act 7(1) (A) CLA Act 7(1) CLA Act
		1 charges related to Voluntarily causing hurt by dangerous weapons or means (IPC
	Name:MADHESWARAN S District:Salem Constituency:Attur Party:AIADMK Total Cases:2 Serious IPC:1 Other IPC:3	Section-324) 1 charges related to violantarily causing flat by dangerous weapons of means (if C Section-324) 1 charges related to rioting (IPC Section-147) 1 charges related to voluntarily causing hurt (IPC Section-323) 1 charges related to criminal intimidation (IPC Section-506) Other details:Case No1173/2007
		107 Cr.PC Act, Case No-1195/2007
26	Name:SENGOTTAIYAN KA District:Erode Constituency:Gobichettipalayam Party:AIADMK Total Cases:2 Serious IPC:1 Other IPC:4	1 charges related to Attempt to murder (IPC Section-307) 1 charges related to rioting (IPC Section-147) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to Assault or criminal force to deter public servant from discharge of his duty (IPC Section-353) 1 charges related to Every member of unlawful assembly guilty of offence committed in prosecution of common object (IPC Section-149) Other details:13(2), 13(1)(e) Prevention of Corruption Act 1988. Sec 3 of TNPPT Act
		1 charges related to Obscene acts and songs (IPC Section-294)
27	Name:M.P.S.SIVASUBIRAMANIAN District:Cuddalore Constituency:Neyveli Party:AIADMK Total Cases:2 Serious IPC:1 Other IPC:5	2 charges related to rioting (IPC Section-147) 2 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to Mischief causing damage to the amount of fifty rupees (IPC Section-427) Other details:3 OF PPD ACT., CR.NO37/2002 CR.NO141/2006
28	Name:PANNEERSELVAM.O District:Theni Constituency:Bodinayakanur Party:AIADMK Total Cases:2 Serious IPC:1 Other IPC:5	1 charges related to Attempt to murder (IPC Section-307) 1 charges related to Punishment of abetment if the act abetted is committed in consequence, and where no express provision is made for its punishment (IPC Section-109) 1 charges related to rioting (IPC Section-147) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to Every member of unlawful assembly guilty of offence committed in prosecution of common object (IPC Section-149) 1 charges related to Assault or criminal force to deter public servant from discharge of his duty (IPC Section-353) Other details:13(1)(e),13(2) of PC Act 3 of TNPPDL Act
29	Name:M.K.SELVARAJU District:Salem Con stituency:Salem (South) Party:AIADMK Total Cases:1 Serious IPC:1 Other IPC:3	1 charges related to Voluntarily causing hurt by dangerous weapons or means (IPC Section-324) 1 charges related to rioting (IPC Section-147) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to voluntarily causing hurt (IPC Section-323) Other details:13(1)(e),13(2) of PC Act





		Association for Democratic Reforms
S. No.	Candidate Information	Brief Details of IPCs
		3 of TNPPDL Act
		1 charges related to Illegal payments in connection with an election (IPC Section- 171H)
	_	Other details:SECTION 171(H) IPC 123 R.P.ACT 1951 AND 236 OF MV RULES r/w 177 MV ACT
31	Name:N. NANJAPPAN District:DharmapuriConstitu ency:Pennagaram Party:CPI Total Cases:1 Serious IPC:1 Other IPC:3	1 charges related to Voluntarily causing hurt by dangerous weapons or means (IPC Section-324) 1 charges related to rioting (IPC Section-147) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to voluntarily causing hurt (IPC Section-323) Other details:SECTION 171(H) IPC 123 R.P.ACT 1951 AND 236 OF MV RULES r/w 177 MV ACT
32	Name:K. KUPPAN District:Thiruvallur Constituency:Thiruvottiyur Party:AIADMK Total Cases:1 Serious IPC:1	1 charges related to Voluntarily causing hurt by dangerous weapons or means (IPC Section-324) 1 charges related to rioting (IPC Section-147) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to voluntarily causing hurt (IPC Section-323) 1 charges related to criminal intimidation (IPC Section-506) Other details:506(ii), CC no. 685/2010 [370/2009, 48/2010], JM TIRUVOTTRIYUR, CHENNAI
33	Name:M Rajanayagam District:Pudukkottai Constit uency:Aranthangi Party:AIADMK Total Cases:1 Serious IPC:1 Other IPC:3	1 charges related to Obscene acts and songs (IPC Section-294) 1 charges related to rioting (IPC Section-147) 1 charges related to Assault or criminal force to deter public servant from discharge of his duty (IPC Section-353) 1 charges related to criminal intimidation (IPC Section-506) Other details:147, 294 (b), 353, 506(i)
34	Name:JANIKIRAMAN District:Villupuram Constituency:Vanur Party:AIADMK Total Cases:1 Serious IPC:1 Other IPC:6	1 charges related to Attempt to murder (IPC Section-307) 1 charges related to Punishment (IPC Section-143) 1 charges related to rioting (IPC Section-147) 1 charges related to Disobedience to order duly promulgated by public servant (IPC Section-188) 1 charges related to Illegal purchase or bid for property offered for sale by authority of public servan (IPC Section-185) 1 charges related to Mischief causing damage to the amount of fifty rupees (IPC Section-427) 1 charges related to Causing miscarriage (IPC Section-312) Other details:DM & JM, VANUR PRC 28/2008(PENDING), CC NO. 207/2007
	Name:M.Karunanidhi District:Thiruvarur Constituency:Thiruvarur Party:DMK Total Cases:1 Serious IPC:1 Other IPC:2	1 charges related to Promoting enmity between different groups on grounds of religion, race, place of birth, residence, language, etc., and doing acts prejudicial to maintenance of harmony (IPC Section-153A) 1 charges related to Uttering, words, etc., with deliberate intent to wound the religious feelings of any person (IPC Section-298) 1 charges related to Statements conducing to public mischief (IPC Section-505) Other details:298,153(A),505(2), c.c. no. 373/2007
36		1 charges related to Attempt to murder (IPC Section-307) 1 charges related to rioting (IPC Section-147)





		Association for Democratic Reforms
S. No.	Candidate Information	Brief Details of IPCs
	Constituency: Manapparai	1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148)
	Party:AIADMK	1 charges related to Assault or criminal force to deter public servant from discharge of
	Total Cases:1	his duty (IPC Section-353)
	Serious IPC:1	1 charges related to Every member of unlawful assembly guilty of offence committed
	Other IPC:4	in prosecution of common object (IPC Section-149)
		Other details: 307 R/W 149, 3 of TNPPDL Act, PRC NO. 30/2010
		1 charges related to Attempt to murder (IPC Section-307)
	Name:R. SAMY	1 charges related to rioting (IPC Section-147)
	District:Madurai	1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148)
	Constituency:Melur	1 charges related to Assault or criminal force to deter public servant from discharge of
37	Party:AIADMK	his duty (IPC Section-353)
	Total Cases:1	1 charges related to Every member of unlawful assembly guilty of offence committed
	Serious IPC:1	in prosecution of common object (IPC Section-149)
	Other IPC:4	
		Other details:3 of TN-PPDL Act
		4 charges related to defamation (IPC Section-500)
		1 charges related to Punishment of criminal conspiracy (IPC Section-120B)
		1 charges related to Printing or engraving matter known to be defamatory (IPC
	Name:J JAYALALITHAA	Section-501)
	District: Tiruchirappalli	1 charges related to Defamation (IPC Section-499)
	Constituency:Srirangam	
	Party:AIADMK	Other details:11 OF THE PC ACT.1988
	Total Cases:10	Crl. M.P No-2972/2007
	Serious IPC:0	CRIMINAL NO. 3699 OF 2007
	Other IPC:7	Crl. M.P No-5347/2007
		13(2) 13(1)(e)OF P.C.ACT
		276-CC OF INCOME TAX ACT.
		35B OF THE WEALTH TAX ACT.
		1 charges related to rioting (IPC Section-147)
		1 charges related to wrongful restraint (IPC Section-341)
		1 charges related to Voluntarily causing hurt to deter public servant from his duty (IPC
		Section-332)
	Name:PERIYASAMY	1 charges related to Punishment of abetment if the act abetted is committed in
39	District:Dindigul Constituency:Athoor	consequence, and where no express provision is made for its punishment (IPC Section- 109)
33	Party:DMK Total Cases:4	103)
	Serious IPC:0 Other IPC:4	Other details:13(1)(e) r/w 13(2) of Prevention of Corruption Act 1988,13(1)(e) r/w
		13(2) of Prevention of Corruption Act 1988 (CASE NO.3138/2010)
		CASE NO.441/2002
		CASE NO. 12/2006 (FILED BY REVENUE DIVISIONAL OFFICER, DINDIGUL)
		CASE NO. 11/2006 (FILED BY REVENUE DIVISIONAL OFFICER, DINDIGUL)
		1 charges related to rioting (IPC Section-147)
		1 charges related to Hotting (if C Section 147) 1 charges related to Illegal purchase or bid for property offered for sale by authority of
		public servan (IPC Section-185)
	Name:A.K.BOSE District:Madurai Constit	1 charges related to Cheating and dishonestly inducing delivery of property (IPC
	uency:Madurai North	Section-420)
/11.1	Party:AIADMK Total Cases:3	1 charges related to criminal intimidation (IPC Section-506)
	Serious IPC:0 Other IPC:4	
		Other details:294B, 420, 506(1) IPC (Cr No:1350/08)
		138 Negotiable Instrument Act (C.C458/2000)
		147, 185, 7(I)A IPC(Cr No:1127/07)
	1	,, , , ,(, ,,)





		Association for Democratic Reforms
S. No.	Candidate Information	Brief Details of IPCs
41	Name:P.CHENDURPANDIAN District:Tirunelveli Constituency:Kadayanallur Party:AIADMK Total Cases:3 Serious IPC:0 Other IPC:7	3 charges related to Punishment (IPC Section-143) 3 charges related to Disobedience to order duly promulgated by public servant (IPC Section-188) 1 charges related to wrongful restraint (IPC Section-341) Other details:7(1)(A)CLA ACT CASE NO.346/2007 CASE NO. 389/2011 CASE NO.180/2011
42	Name:Chellapandian S. T. District:Thoothukudi Constituency:Thoothukkudi Party:AIADMK Total Cases:3 Serious IPC:0 Other IPC:8	3 charges related to wrongful restraint (IPC Section-341) 2 charges related to Punishment (IPC Section-143) 2 charges related to Disobedience to order duly promulgated by public servant (IPC Section-188) 1 charges related to rioting (IPC Section-147) Other details:CR NO. 444/2010, TUTICORIN CENTRAL PS, 3(1) (d) OF TNPPDL ACT, CR NO.157/2011, PALAYAMKOTTAI PS, CR NO.907/2011,TUTICORIN SOUTH PS,
43	Name:K.T.PACHAIMAL District:Kanniyakumari Constituency:Kanniyakumari Party:AIADMK Total Cases:3 Serious IPC:0 Other IPC:5	1 charges related to Punishment (IPC Section-143) 1 charges related to Disobedience to order duly promulgated by public servant (IPC Section-188) 1 charges related to Negligent conduct with respect to fire or combustible matter (IPC Section-285) 1 charges related to Cheating and dishonestly inducing delivery of property (IPC Section-420) 1 charges related to criminal intimidation (IPC Section-506) Other details:420, 294(b), 506(ii) (Crime No 235/10) 13(ii),13(1)e P.C.Act (Crime No 2/2009) 7(1)A Crl.Law Amendment Act (Crime No 27/2008)
	Name:KR PERIYAKARUPPAN District:SivagangaiCon stituency:Tiruppattur Party:DMK Total Cases:2 Serious IPC:0 Other IPC:4	2 charges related to Punishment (IPC Section-143) 2 charges related to Disobedience to order duly promulgated by public servant (IPC Section-188) Other details:177 M.V. Act 177 M.V. Act 14/2011 43/2011
45	Name:R.Sarathkumar District:Tirunelveli Constituency:Tenkasi Party:AIADMK Total Cases:2 Serious IPC:0 Other IPC:4	2 charges related to Punishment (IPC Section-143) 2 charges related to Disobedience to order duly promulgated by public servant (IPC Section-188) Other details:CR NO.180/2011, FIR, COURTALLAM POLICE STATION CR NO.389/2011, FIR,TENKASI POLICE STATION
46	Name:KALAIRAJAN V P District:Chennai Constituency:Thiyagarayanagar Party:AIADMK Total Cases:2 Serious IPC:0 Other IPC:14	2 charges related to Punishment (IPC Section-143) 2 charges related to rioting (IPC Section-147) 2 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 2 charges related to Disobedience to order duly promulgated by public servant (IPC Section-188) 2 charges related to voluntarily causing hurt (IPC Section-323) 2 charges related to wrongful restraint (IPC Section-341) 2 charges related to criminal intimidation (IPC Section-506)





		Association for Democratic Reforms
S. No.	Candidate Information	Brief Details of IPCs
		Other details:506 (ii), FIR No.102310/2007, CRIME No.760/2007 DATE 20-05-2007 (D-4 ZAMBAJAR PS) 506 (ii), FIR No.0839665/2008, CRIME No.597/2008 DATE 30-05-2008 (D-3 ICE HOUSE PS)
47	Name:VETRIIVEL District:Chennai Constituency:Dr Radhakrishnan Nagar	2 charges related to rioting (IPC Section-147) 1 charges related to Assault or criminal force to deter public servant from discharge of his duty (IPC Section-353) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to Wrongful confinement to extort property, or constrain to illegal act (IPC Section-347) 1 charges related to Wrongful confinement to extort confession, or compel restoration of property (IPC Section-348) 1 charges related to criminal intimidation (IPC Section-506) Other details:3 of TNPPDL Act 147,148,347,348,506 (ii) IPC, 25 (1) of Arms Act
48	IName:R Annadurai	2 charges related to Disobedience to order duly promulgated by public servant (IPC Section-188) 1 charges related to Wearing grab or carrying token used by public servant with fraudulent intent (IPC Section-171) 1 charges related to Punishment (IPC Section-143) 1 charges related to wrongful restraint (IPC Section-341) Other details:123(I)A REPRESENTATIVES OF PEOPLES ACT
49	Name:C. KARUPPASAMY District:Tirunelveli Constituency:Sankarankovil Party:AIADMK Total Cases:2	2 charges related to rioting (IPC Section-147) 2 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to Every member of unlawful assembly guilty of offence committed in prosecution of common object (IPC Section-149) 1 charges related to house-trespass (IPC Section-448) 1 charges related to Mischief by destroying or moving, etc., a land- mark fixed by public authority Mischief by fire or explosive substance with intent to cause damage to amount of one hundred or (in case of agricultural produce) ten rupees (IPC Section-435) 1 charges related to voluntarily causing hurt (IPC Section-323) 1 charges related to criminal intimidation (IPC Section-506) Other details:35/2009
50		TNPPDL Act (34/2009) 1 charges related to Negligent conduct with respect to explosive substance (IPC Section-286) 1 charges related to Punishment of abetment if the act abetted is committed in consequence, and where no express provision is made for its punishment (IPC Section-109) Other details:STC 102/2011 STC 102/2011, OFFENCES UNDER SECTION 286 R/W 109 IPC, COIMBATORE DATE: 22-02-2011 (FINE OF RS.750)
51	Constituency:Kunnam Party:DMK Total Cases:1	1 charges related to Wearing grab or carrying token used by public servant with fraudulent intent (IPC Section-171)
	Serious IPC:0 Other IPC:1	Other details:CC 8038/2002, II MM SAIDAPET COURT, DATE ON CHARGE 5/11/2002
52	Name:Anitha	1 charges related to cheating by personation (IPC Section-419)





		Association for Democratic Reforms
S. No.	Candidate Information	Brief Details of IPCs
	R.Radhakrishnan District :Thoothukudi Co nstituency:Tiruchendur Party:DMK Total Cases:1 Serious IPC:0 Other IPC:4	1 charges related to Counterfeiting a property mark used by another (IPC Section-483) 1 charges related to Using as genuine a forged document or electronic record (IPC Section-471) 1 charges related to Having possession of document described in Section 466 or 467, knowing it to be forged and intending to use it as genuine (IPC Section-474)
		Other details:CC 8038/2002, II MM SAIDAPET COURT, DATE ON CHARGE 5/11/2002
53	Name:JAWAHIRULLAH District:Ramanath apuramConstituency:Ramanathapuram Party:Manithaneya Makkal Katchi Total Cases:1 Serious IPC:0 Other IPC:1	1 charges related to Punishment of criminal conspiracy (IPC Section-120B) Other details:120(B), R/W 4(1)(C) AND SECTIONS 23 R/W 6&11 AND U/S 25&22 OF FOREIGN CONTRIBUTION REGULATION ACT 1976, ALLEGATION IS COIMBATORE MUSLIM RELIEF FUND AN ORGANISATION RECEIVED CONTRIBUTION FROM FOREIGN SOURCES WITHOUT GETTING PRIOR PERMISSION FROM CENTRAL GOVT. RCMA12001-A-0053, DATED 31-02-2001, SPE, CBI-ACP, CHENNAI, C.C.NO. 1123/2004
54	Name:Chinnaraj District:Coimbatore Con stituency:Mettuppalayam Party:AIADMK Total Cases:1 Serious IPC:0 Other IPC:4	1 charges related to Punishment (IPC Section-143) 1 charges related to rioting (IPC Section-147) 1 charges related to wrongful restraint (IPC Section-341) 1 charges related to Assault or criminal force to deter public servant from discharge of his duty (IPC Section-353) Other details:120(B), R/W 4(1)(C) AND SECTIONS 23 R/W 6&11 AND U/S 25&22 OF FOREIGN CONTRIBUTION REGULATION ACT 1976, ALLEGATION IS COIMBATORE MUSLIM RELIEF FUND AN ORGANISATION RECEIVED CONTRIBUTION FROM FOREIGN SOURCES WITHOUT GETTING PRIOR PERMISSION FROM CENTRAL GOVT. RCMA12001-A-0053, DATED 31-02-2001, SPE, CBI-ACP, CHENNAI, C.C.NO. 1123/2004
55	Name:SAKKARAPANI R District:DindigulConstituency:Oddanch atram Party:DMK Total Cases:1 Serious IPC:0 Other IPC:4	1 charges related to rioting (IPC Section-147) 1 charges related to wrongful restraint (IPC Section-341) 1 charges related to voluntarily causing hurt (IPC Section-323) 1 charges related to Voluntarily causing hurt to deter public servant from his duty (IPC Section-332) Other details:C/NO. 470/2002, JUDICAL MAJISTRATE COURT, NELAKKOTAI CASE NO. 441/2002
56	Name:GANESHKUMAR A District:Villupuram Constituency:Ginge e Party:PMK Total Cases:1	1 charges related to rioting (IPC Section-147) 1 charges related to Mischief (IPC Section-425) Other details:JM Court, Vandavasi Still Pending
	Serious IPC:0 Other IPC:2 Name:DURAI. MANIVEL District:Ariyalur Constituency:A	1 charges related to rioting (IPC Section-147) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148)
57	riyalur Party:AIADMK Total Cases:1 Serious IPC:0 Other IPC:4	1 charges related to wrongful restraint (IPC Section-341) 1 charges related to criminal intimidation (IPC Section-506) Other details:R/W 2 & 3 PPD ACT, IPC Sections - 147, 148, 341, 506(II)
58	Name:Vaigaichelvan District:Virudhunaga rConstituency:Aruppukkottai Party:AIADMK Total Cases:1 Serious IPC:0 Other IPC:3	1 charges related to rioting (IPC Section-147) 1 charges related to Wantonly giving provocation with intent to cause riot-if rioting be committed-if not committed (IPC Section-153) 1 charges related to Statements conducing to public mischief (IPC Section-505) Other details:CC NO.252/08, CUDDALORE JUDICIARY; IPC Sections - IPC 147,153,294(B),505(1)





		Association for Democratic Reforms
S. No.	Candidate Information	Brief Details of IPCs
	Name:NANJIL A. MURUGESAN District:KanniyakumariCons	1 charges related to criminal trespass (IPC Section-447)
	tituency:Nagercoil Party:AIADMK Total Cases:1 Serious IPC:0 Other IPC:1	Other details:Cr.No. 1022/08 3(1)PPDL Act,Cr.No.1022/08,KOTTAR P.S.,S.C.No.48/2010,19-04-2011, CJM, NAGERCOIL S.C.No. 48/2010 CJM
60	Name:NAINAR NAGENTHRAN District:TirunelveliConstitu ency:Tirunelveli Party:AIADMK Total Cases:1 Serious IPC:0 Other IPC:1	1 charges related to Punishment of abetment if the act abetted is committed in consequence, and where no express provision is made for its punishment (IPC Section-109) Other details:SECTION 13(2), R/W 13(1)(e) OF THE PREVENTION OF CORRUPTION ACT R/W SEC.109. SPECIAL CASE NO. 8/2010, POLICE STATION - DSP VIGILENCE AND ANTI CORRUPTION, TIRUNELVELI.
	Name:M. MURUGAN District:RamanathapuramCon stituency:Mudhukulathur Party:AIADMK Total Cases:1 Serious IPC:0 Other IPC:3	1 charges related to rioting (IPC Section-147) 1 charges related to wrongful restraint (IPC Section-341) 1 charges related to voluntarily causing hurt (IPC Section-323) Other details:Cr.No.180/2008 of Police Station Mudukulathur, STC No.785/2008 Pending before learned Judicial Magistrate Court, Mudukulathur, STC 785/2008, 28-11-2008
62	Name:N.V. KAMARAJ District:NagapattinamConstitu ency:Vedaranyam Party:AIADMK Total Cases:1 Serious IPC:0 Other IPC:0	Other details:CRIME NO.175/2008, SECTION 107 Cr.PC
63	Name:M. MUTHURAMALINGAM District:Madurai Constituency:Thirumangalam Party:AIADMK Total Cases:1 Serious IPC:0 Other IPC:6	1 charges related to rioting (IPC Section-147) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to House-trespass after preparation for hurt, assault or wrongful restraint (IPC Section-452) 1 charges related to Mischief causing damage to the amount of fifty rupees (IPC Section-427) 1 charges related to Mischief by fire or explosive substance with intent to destroy house, etc. (IPC Section-436) 1 charges related to Punishment of criminal conspiracy (IPC Section-120B) Other details:CR.NO.787/07,ANNA NAGAR PS, MADURAI, JUDICIAL MAGISTRATE
64	Name:Velumani S P District:Coimbatore Constituency:Thondamuthur Party:AIADMK Total Cases:1 Serious IPC:0 Other IPC:5	COURT NO.VI MADURAI (FIR STAGE) 1 charges related to rioting (IPC Section-147) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to wrongful restraint (IPC Section-341) 1 charges related to Assault or criminal force to deter public servant from discharge of his duty (IPC Section-353) 1 charges related to criminal intimidation (IPC Section-506) Other details:343/2007 7(1)(a)CLA Act & IPC's - 147, 148, 341, 353, 506(ii)
65	Name:N.D. VENKATACHALAM District:ErodeConstitu ency:Perundurai Party:AIADMK Total Cases:1 Serious IPC:0 Other IPC:4	1 charges related to rioting (IPC Section-147) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to Disobedience to order duly promulgated by public servant (IPC Section-188) 1 charges related to Negligent conduct with respect to fire or combustible matter (IPC Section-285)





		Association for Democratic Reforms
S. No.	Candidate Information	Brief Details of IPCs
		Other details:R/W 7(1)(a) CLA ACT, CC No.372/2007 / 04.10.2007 (CASE PENDING), JM COURT, PERUNDURAI
66	Name:VIJAYKANT District:Villupuram Con stituency:Rishivandiyam Party:DMDK Total Cases:1	1 charges related to defamation (IPC Section-500) Other details:CC NO. 708/2007, CMM COURT, EGMORE
	Serious IPC:0 Other IPC:1	The details of No. 700, 2007, Chill Cooking College
67	Name:S.R. PARTHIBAN District:Salem Constituency: Mettur Party:DMDK Total Cases:1 Serious IPC:0 Other IPC:4	1 charges related to rioting (IPC Section-147) 1 charges related to Rioting, armed with deadly weapon (IPC Section-148) 1 charges related to Disobedience to order duly promulgated by public servant (IPC Section-188) 1 charges related to wrongful restraint (IPC Section-341)
		Other details:3 of TNPPD Act
68	Name:A. BASKAR District:Dharmapuri Constituenc y:Dharmapuri Party:DMDK Total Cases:1 Serious IPC:0 Other IPC:0	Other details:Sec 3 of TNPPD Act. Cr. No. 136/2009, JM COURT NO.1, DHARMAPURI, MADIKONPALAYAM POLICE STATION, DHARMAPURI
69	Name:P.R.MANOGAR District:Vellore Con stituency:Sholingur Party:DMDK Total Cases:1 Serious IPC:0 Other IPC:1	1 charges related to voluntarily causing hurt (IPC Section-323) Other details:Sec 3 of TNPPD Act. Cr. No. 136/2009, JM COURT NO.1, DHARMAPURI, MADIKONPALAYAM POLICE STATION, DHARMAPURI
70	Name:DORAISAMY R District:Coimbatore Constituency:Coimbatore (South) Party:AIADMK Total Cases:1 Serious IPC:0 Other IPC:4	1 charges related to Punishment (IPC Section-143) 1 charges related to rioting (IPC Section-147) 1 charges related to wrongful restraint (IPC Section-341) 1 charges related to Assault or criminal force to deter public servant from discharge of his duty (IPC Section-353) Other details:Cr. No. 51/2010, Solur Mattam Police station

Table:- Full details of pending criminal cases on MLAs





Analysis based on pending criminal cases - Candidates

Party-wise break up of candidates with pending criminal cases

143 candidates out of 738 analyzed (19%) have pending criminal cases against them. PMK had 16 out of 30 (53% of total analyzed), AIADMK had 53 out of 165 (32% of total analyzed), DMK had 27 out of 123 (22% of total analyzed) and DMDK had 8 out of 40 (20% of total analyzed) candidates with pending criminal cases. Out of these 143 candidates with pending criminal cases, 76 have pending serious criminal cases like murder, attempt to murder, kidnapping, robbery, extortion etc. AIADMK had 32, DMK had 11, BJP had 10, PMK had 8 and INC had 6 candidates with pending serious criminal cases. The following table gives the party wise details of candidates with pending criminal cases:-

Party	Total number of Candidates analyzed	Candidates with Pending Criminal Cases	% of Candidates with pending criminal cases	Candidates with serious pending criminal cases	% of Candidates with serious pending criminal cases
BJP	173	19	11%	10	6%
AIADMK	165	53	32%	32	19%
DMK	123	27	22%	11	9%
INC	63	7	11%	6	10%
DMDK	40	8	20%	2	5%
PMK	30	16	53%	8	27%
BSP	16	1	6%	1	6%
CPI(M)	12	3	25%	2	17%
VCK	10	4	40%	2	20%
СРІ	10	1	10%	1	10%
MANITHANEYA MAKKAL KATCHI	3	1	33%	0	0%
PUTHIYA THAMILAGAM	2	1	50%	1	50%
IJK	2	1	50%	0	0%
SDPI	1	1	100%	0	0%
Others	88	0	0%	0	0%





Total	738	143	19%	76	10%

Table: Party-wise break up of candidates with pending criminal cases

Serious crimes distribution – serious IPC count for major parties

There were 192 IPC charges of serious nature on the candidates which included murder, attempt to murder, kidnapping, theft etc. The following table gives the details of serious IPC counts for candidates of major parties

Party/	32	30	29	15	37	30	39	32	38	39	38	30	32	17	17	36	34	36	36	30	25	Tot
IPC	4	7	4	3A	9	2	5	6	0	2	4	4A	5	1F	1H	7	4	5	3	5	8	al
AIADM																						
K	28	25	4	0	4	1	0	1	1	0	0	0	1	1	1	0	0	0	1	1	0	69
PMK	12	6	2	3	1	3	0	2	0	0	1	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	32
BJP	9	9	5	4	1	2	1	1	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	34
DMK	4	6	3	1	2	0	3	2	2	0	0	1	0	0	1	0	0	1	0	0	0	26
DMDK	1	3	1	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	6
CPI(M)	2	2	0	0	0	0	2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	6
INC	2	2	2	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	9
BSP	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	1	2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	4
Puthiya Thamila																						
gam	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	2
VCK	1	0	1	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	3
CPI	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1
																						19
Total	61	53	18	8	10	6	6	8	4	2	2	2	3	1	2	1	1	1	1	1	1	2

Table: - Serious IPC count for major parties

Party-wise comparison of pending criminal cases on candidates contested in Tamil Nadu Assembly Elections 2006 and 2011

The following table give the party wise details of pending criminal cases on candidates contested in Tamil Nadu Assembly Elections 2006 and 2011:-

Party	Total no. of Candidates analyzed	Candidates with Pending Criminal Cases	% of candidates with pending criminal cases	candidates with serious pending criminal cases	% of candidates with serious pending criminal cases	Total no. of Candidates analyzed	Candidat es with Pending Criminal Cases	% of candidat es with pending criminal cases	candidate s with serious pending criminal cases	% of candidate s with serious pending criminal cases
-------	---	--	---	--	---	--	---	--	--	--





Party	Total no. of Candidates analyzed	Candidates with Pending Criminal Cases	% of candidates with pending criminal cases	candidates with serious pending criminal cases	% of candidates with serious pending criminal cases	Total no. of Candidates analyzed	Candidat es with Pending Criminal Cases	% of candidat es with pending criminal cases	candidate s with serious pending criminal cases	% of candidate s with serious pending criminal cases
BJP	173	19	11%	10	6%	87	8	9%	2	2%
AIADMK	165	53	32%	32	19%	183	24	13%	7	4%
DMK	123	27	22%	11	9%	129	49	38%	22	17%
INC	63	7	11%	6	10%	48	12	25%	5	10%
DMDK	40	8	20%	2	5%	84	6	7%	3	4%
PMK	30	16	53%	8	27%	31	21	68%	6	19%
BSP	16	1	6%	1	6%	65	14	22%	10	15%
CPI(M)	12	3	25%	2	17%	13	3	23%	1	8%
СРІ	10	1	10%	1	10%	10	3	30%	1	10%
Others	106	8	8%	3	3%	133	27	20%	10	8%
Total	738	143	19%	76	10%	783	167	21%	67	9%

Table:- Party-wise comparison of pending criminal cases on candidates contested in Tamil Nadu Assembly Elections 2006 and 2011

Top 10 candidates with serious pending criminal cases

76 candidates out of 738 analyzed have pending serious criminal cases like murder, attempt to murder, kidnapping, robbery, extortion etc. The following table gives the details of top 10 candidates with serious criminal cases pending against them.

S.No.	Name of Candidate	District	Constituency	Party	Serious IPC Counts	Total No of Cases	Brief Details of serious IPC Counts	Won/Lost
1	THANIYARASU.U	NAMAKKAL	PARAMATHI- VELUR	AIADMK	14		1 charges related to Murder(IPC section-302) 5 charges related to Attempt to murder(IPC section-307) and others	Won
2	M. MURUGANANDAM	NAGAPATTINAM	NAGAPATTINAM	ВЈР	13		1 charges related to Murder(IPC section-302) 5 charges related to Attempt to murder(IPC section-307) and others	Lost
3	AGORAM K	NAGAPATTINAM	POOMPUHAR	PMK	7	4	1 charges related to Attempt to murder(IPC section-307) and others	Lost
4	J. GURUNATHAN	ARIYALUR	JAYANKONDAM	PMK	6	9	1 charges related to Attempt to murder(IPC section-307) and others	Won
5	BOSE P G	DINDIGUL	DINDIGUL	BJP	6	4	3 charges related to Attempt to murder(IPC section-307) and others	Lost





S.No.	Name of Candidate	District	Constituency	Party	Serious IPC Counts		Brief Details of serious IPC Counts	Won/Lost
6	R.ELANGO	THANJAVUR	PERAVURANI	ВЈР	6	2	1 charges related to Attempt to murder(IPC section-307) 1 charges related to theft(IPC section-379) and others	Lost
7	M.ILANCHEZHIAN	MADURAI	SHOLAVANDAN	PMK	5	7	1 charges related to Murder(IPC section-302) 4 charges related to Attempt to murder(IPC section-307) and others	Lost
8	N. SENTHILKUMAR	THANJAVUR	PATTUKKOTTAI	DMDK	5	,	3 charges related to Attempt to murder(IPC section-307) and others	Lost
9	R.KAMARAJ	THIRUVARUR	NANNILAM	AIADMK	4	10	2 charges related to Attempt to murder(IPC section-307) 1 charges related to kidnapping(IPC section-363) and others	Won
10	ARUKUTTY	Coimbatore	Kavundampalayam	AIADMK	4	4	2 charges related to Attempt to murder(IPC section-307)	Won

Table:- Top 10 candidates with serious pending criminal cases

Analysis based on assets – Candidates

Crorepati candidates- Party wise break up

A total of 280 candidates out of 738 analyzed i.e. 38% were crorepatis. In 2006 Assembly Election there were only 117 candidates out of 783 analyzed i.e. 15 % were crorepatis. This shows a large increase in number of crorepatis contesting elections in 2011 compared to 2006 elections. The following table gives party wise details of crorpati candidates:-

Party	Total Candidates Analysed	No. of Crorepati candidates	% of Crorepati candidates
AIADMK	165	89	54%
DMK	123	83	68%
INC	63	40	64%
ВЈР	173	26	15%
DMDK	40	14	35%
PMK	30	12	40%
KMK	7	6	86%
VCK	10	3	30%





Party	Total Candidates Analysed	No. of Crorepati candidates	% of Crorepati candidates
IND	48	2	4%
CPI(M)	12	1	8%
СРІ	10	1	10%
MANITHANEYA MAKKAL KATCHI	3	1	33%
MAKKAL MANADU KATCHI	7	1	14%
PUTHIYA THAMILAGAM	2	1	50%
OTHER	45	0	0%
Total	738	280	38%

Table: - Party- wise list of crorepati candidates

Average assets of candidates - party-wise

Average asset of a candidate in the 2011 Assembly Election is 2.62 crores. Among major parties, the average asset per candidate for DMK was Rs 4.79 crore, for INC it was Rs 4.77 Crore, for AIADMK it was 3.95 Crore and for PMK it was 3.08 crores. The following table gives the average assets of major parties that contested the election:-

Party	Total Candidates Analyzed	Average Assets
ВЈР	173	Rs 54,56,504 ~ 54 Lacs+
AIADMK	165	Rs 3,95,05,836 ~ 3 Crore+
DMK	123	Rs 4,79,73,308 ~ 4 Crore+
INC	63	Rs 4,77,61,240 ~ 4 Crore+
IND	48	Rs 27,60,771 ~ 27 Lacs+
DMDK	40	Rs 2,73,34,833 ~ 2 Crore+
PMK	30	Rs 3,08,16,427 ~ 3 Crore+
BSP	16	Rs 4,01,138 ~ 4 Lacs+
CPI(M)	12	Rs 22,65,337 ~ 22 Lacs+
СРІ	10	Rs 82,23,550 ~ 82 Lacs+
VCK	10	Rs 60,78,741 ~ 60 Lacs+
LSP	8	Rs 21,83,122 ~ 21 Lacs+





Party	Total Candidates Analyzed	Average Assets
		Rs 6,80,78,527
KMK	7	~ 6 Crore+
	_	Rs 33,12,640
Makkal Manadu Katchi	7	~ 33 Lacs+
NA-with a way Na-black Katabi	2	Rs 55,71,937
Manithaneya Makkal Katchi	3	~ 55 Lacs+
JMM	3	Rs 29,51,500
2101101	5	~ 29 Lacs+
CPI(ML)(L)	3	Rs 4,14,829
CF I(IVIL)(L)	3	~ 4 Lacs+
Puthiya Thamilagam	2	Rs 3,74,97,382
Tuttiya mamagam	-	~ 3 Crore+
IJK	2	Rs 12,81,214
1517	_	~ 12 Lacs+
UMK	2	Rs 1,53,500
O.V.II.	_	~ 1 Lacs+
AIFB	1	Rs 81,22,500
7 2	-	~ 81 Lacs+
MIM	1	Rs 79,11,000
		~ 79 Lacs+
MGRSP	1	Rs 24,15,000
		~ 24 Lacs+
RJD	1	Rs 6,89,000
	1	~ 6 Lacs+
РВ		Rs 4,21,000
		~ 4 Lacs+
APM	1	Rs 3,75,500 ~ 3 Lacs+
		Rs 50,000
АВНМ	1	~ 50 Thou+
		Rs 28,500
MSK	1	~ 28 Thou+
		Rs 19,681
SDPI	1	~ 19 Thou+
	_	Rs 15,000
RPI	1	~ 15 Thou+
DEVA		Rs 4,000
RPI(A)	1	~ 4 Thou+
All Douties	729	Rs 2,62,07,418
All Parties	738	2 Crore+

Table: - Party wise average assets of candidates of major parties

High assets analysis of candidates

H.Vasanthkumar of INC who contested from Thirunelveli constituency has the highest declared assets among all the candidates. He declared an asset of Rs. 133.36 crore followed by A Narayanan of AIADMK with assets of Rs. 103.28 crores. The assets details of the top 20 high asset candidates are s given below:-





						Association Association	on for Democratic Reforms
S. No.	Name	District	Constituency	Party	Movable Assets (Rs)	Immovable Assets (Rs)	Total Assets (Rs)
1	H. VASANTHAKUMAR	TIRUNELVELI	NANGUNERI	INC	64,45,40,190	68,90,94,000	1,33,36,34,190 133 Crore+
2	A. NARAYANAN	TIRUNELVELI	NANGUNERI	AIADMK	37,57,02,444 [*]	65,71,63,000	1,03,28,65,444 103 Crore+
3	* K.C.PALLANI SHAMY	KARUR	ARAVAKURICHI	DMK	31,89,80,271	35,75,67,720	67,65,47,991 67 Crore+
4	S.DURAISAMY	CHENNAI	KOLATHUR	AIADMK	22,83,25,075	41,61,91,268	64,45,16,343 64 Crore+
5	E SUBAYA	TIRUNELVELI	AMBASAMUDRAM	AIADMK	2,38,19,052	57,88,37,228	60,26,56,280 60 Crore+
6	MOHAMED SHEIK DAWOOD	NAGAPATTINAM	NAGAPATTINAM	DMK	26,27,53,344	27,28,09,759	53,55,63,103 53 Crore+
7	J JAYALALITHAA	TIRUCHIRAPPALLI	SRIRANGAM	AIADMK	13,03,27,979	38,37,40,000	51,40,67,979 51 Crore+
8	M.KARUNANIDHI	THIRUVARUR	THIRUVARUR	DMK	40,95,04,142	3,19,89,628	44,14,93,770 44 Crore+
9	KARTHE	SALEM	EDAPPADI	РМК	11,26,72,726	22,61,83,900	33,88,56,626 33 Crore+
10	VIJAYKANT	VILLUPURAM	RISHIVANDIYAM	DMDK	11,43,86,376	16,55,25,198	27,99,11,574 27 Crore+
11	R. GANDHI	VELLORE	RANIPET	DMK	11,84,90,740	15,94,32,366	27,79,23,106 27 Crore+
12	R.SARATHKUMAR	TIRUNELVELI	TENKASI	AIADMK	13,93,17,365	13,73,99,307	27,67,16,672 27 Crore+
13	DORAISAMY R	COIMBATORE	COIMBATORE (SOUTH)	AIADMK	2,56,26,863	24,85,00,000	27,41,26,863 27 Crore+
14	MICHEL RAYAPPAN S.	TIRUNELVELI	RADHAPURAM	DMDK	2,58,01,161*	24,49,57,195 [*]	27,07,58,356 27 Crore+
15	RAJAA T.R.B.	THIRUVARUR	MANNARGUDI	DMK	19,58,25,042	6,86,06,700	26,44,31,742 26 Crore+
16	K.P.KANDAN	KANCHEEPURAM	SHOZHINGANALLUR	AIADMK	1,32,80,571	20,25,00,000	21,57,80,571 21 Crore+
17	K.N.NEHRU	TIRUCHIRAPPALLI	TIRUCHIRAPPALLI (WEST)	DMK	2,73,69,945	15,04,09,786	17,77,79,731 17 Crore+
18	SELVAM. K	THIRUVALLUR	MADURAVOYAL	PMK	59,27,065	16,13,46,800	16,72,73,865 16 Crore+
19	K.NITHIYANANDAN	COIMBATORE	POLLACHI	кмк	42,89,921	15,26,00,000	15,68,89,921 15 Crore+
20	PALANISAMY	COIMBATORE	COIMBATORE (SOUTH)	DMK	10,45,53,000	5,21,10,000	15,66,63,000 15 Crore+
				•	•	•	

*For candidates whose total values have not been given in the affidavit, the total has been calculated from the details given by the candidate himself/herself in the affidavit

Table:- Top 20 candidates with high assets





Low assets Analysis of candidates

Given below is the list of candidates who declared assets equal to Rs. 10,000 and below in Tamil Nadu 2011 Assembly Elections.

S.No.	Name	District	Constituency	Party		Immovable Assets (Rs)	Total Assets (Rs)
1	SHANKAR	KRISHNAGIRI	UTHANGARAI	BJP	0	0	0
2	BALAKRISHNAN	KRISHNAGIRI	HOSUR	ВЈР	0	0	0
3	SHEIKDAWOOD AM	ERODE	ANTHIYUR	IND	0	0	0
4	VISWANATHAN S	THE NILGIRIS	GUDALUR	IND	0	0	0
5	T.ARMSTRONGNAVEEN	VIRUDHUNAGAR	VIRUDHUNAGAR	INC	0	0	0
6	VETRIVEL	VIRUDHUNAGAR	ARUPPUKKOTTAI	BJP	0	0	0
7	ANITHA R.RADHAKRISHNAN	THOOTHUKUDI	TIRUCHENDUR	DMK	0	0	0
8	SHRI P. GOBI	THIRUVANNAMALAI	ARANI	ВЈР	1,000	0	1,000 1 Thou+
9	VETTRIVENDHAN	VILLUPURAM	VANUR	ВЈР	1,000*	0	1,000 1 Thou+
10	RAMESH.K.	THIRUVANNAMALAI	KALASAPAKKAM	ВЈР	3,000*	0	3,000 3 Thou+
11	SACRATES A	KANCHEEPURAM	SRIPERUMBUDUR	CPI(ML)(L)	3,400	0	3,400 3 Thou+
12	SUDHAKAR M	THIRUVALLUR	GUMMIDIPOONDI	RPI(A)	4,000	0	4,000 4 Thou+
13	SELVARAJKUMAR K R	THIRUVALLUR	THIRUVOTTIYUR	IND	5,500 [*]	0	5,500 5 Thou+
14	KOLANCHI	CHENNAI	THIRU-VI-KA-NAGAR	IND	6,126 [*]	0	6,126 6 Thou+
15	ANBALAGAN.M	CHENNAI	VELACHERY	Makkal Manadu Katchi	10,000	0	10,000 10 Thou+
16	T ILANCHEZHIAN	NAGAPATTINAM	POOMPUHAR	BSP	10,000	0	10,000 10 Thou+

*For candidates whose total values have not been given in the affidavit, the total has been calculated from the details given by the candidate himself/herself in the affidavit

Table:- List of candidates who declared assets equal to Rs.10,000 and below





Analysis of Liabilities of Candidates

A total of 10 candidates who contested in the Tamil Nadu 2011 Assembly Elections have declared that they have liabilities of more than Rs.10 crore. Given below is the list of top 20 candidates with highest liabilities

S. No.	Name	District	Constituency	Party	Liabilities (Rs)
1	R. Gandhi	Vellore	Ranipet	DMK	50,31,44,816 50 Crore+
2	H. VASANTHAKUMAR	Tirunelveli	Nanguneri	INC	46,84,89,101 46 Crore+
3	S.DURAISAMY	Chennai	Kolathur	AIADMK	44,83,77,489 44 Crore+
4	E SUBAYA	Tirunelveli	Ambasamudram	AIADMK	31,28,93,000 31 Crore+
5	R.Sarathkumar	Tirunelveli	Tenkasi	AIADMK	17,11,04,312 17 Crore+
6	A. Narayanan	Tirunelveli	Nanguneri	AIADMK	14,81,02,000 [*] 14 Crore+
7	ANBALAGAN	Chennai	Chepauk-Thiruvallikeni	DMK	12,93,76,354 12 Crore+
8	KARTHE	Salem	Edappadi	PMK	12,69,79,588 12 Crore+
9	VIJAYKANT	Villupuram	Rishivandiyam	DMDK	11,78,99,438 11 Crore+
10	K.N.Nehru	Tiruchirappalli	Tiruchirappalli (West)	DMK	10,09,78,794 10 Crore+
11	Perumalsamy.K.	Thoothukudi	Vilathikulam	INC	6,57,86,914 6 Crore+
12	B. RANGANATHAN	Thiruvallur	Ambattur	DMK	6,55,50,223 6 Crore+
13	K.G.RAMESH	Vellore	Tirupattur	AIADMK	6,37,00,653 6 Crore+
14	RAJA KANNAPPAN R.S.	Sivagangai	Tiruppattur	AIADMK	6,37,00,653 6 Crore+
15	RAJAA T.R.B.	Thiruvarur	Mannargudi	DMK	4,42,39,555 4 Crore+
16	C. VIJAYABASKAR	Pudukkottai	Viralimalai	AIADMK	4,02,06,738 4 Crore+
17	MUTHUSAMY S.	Erode	Erode (East)	DMK	3,90,00,000 3 Crore+
18	NATARAJ NSN	Tiruppur	Kangayam	AIADMK	3,56,57,567 3 Crore+
19	SAKKARAPANI R	Dindigul	Oddanchatram	DMK	3,47,56,533 3 Crore+
20	S.Sathyanarayanan	Kancheepuram	Alandur	ВЈР	3,40,00,000 3 Crore+

Table:- Top 20 candidates with high liabilities





High asset candidates who lost the Elections

The following table gives the details of top 20 high asset candidates who lost in the Tamil Nadu 2011 Elections. H Vasanthkumar of INC leads the list with an asset of Rs.133.36 crore and followed by S Duraisamy of AIADMK with an asset of Rs. 64.45 crores.

S.No	Name	District	Constituency	Party	Movable Assets (Rs)	Immovable Assets (Rs)	Total Assets (Rs)
1	H. VASANTHAKUMAR	TIRUNELVELI	NANGUNERI	INC	64,45,40,190	68,90,94,000	1,33,36,34,190 133 Crore+
2	S.DURAISAMY	CHENNAI	KOLATHUR	AIADMK	22,83,25,075	41,61,91,268	64,45,16,343 64 Crore+
3	MOHAMED SHEIK DAWOOD	NAGAPATTINAM	NAGAPATTINAM	DMK	26,27,53,344	27,28,09,759	53,55,63,103 53 Crore+
4	KARTHE	SALEM	EDAPPADI	PMK	11,26,72,726	22,61,83,900	33,88,56,626 33 Crore+
5	R. GANDHI	VELLORE	RANIPET	DMK	11,84,90,740	15,94,32,366	27,79,23,106 27 Crore+
6	K.N.NEHRU	TIRUCHIRAPPALLI	TIRUCHIRAPPALLI (WEST)	DMK	2,73,69,945	15,04,09,786	17,77,79,731 17 Crore+
7	SELVAM. K	THIRUVALLUR	MADURAVOYAL	PMK	59,27,065	16,13,46,800	16,72,73,865 16 Crore+
8	K.NITHIYANANDAN	COIMBATORE	POLLACHI	кмк	42,89,921	15,26,00,000	15,68,89,921 15 Crore+
9	PALANISAMY	COIMBATORE	COIMBATORE (SOUTH)	DMK	10,45,53,000	5,21,10,000	15,66,63,000 15 Crore+
10	POONGOTHAI ALADI ARUNA	TIRUNELVELI	ALANGULAM	DMK	1,42,89,983	14,00,58,447	15,43,48,430 15 Crore+
11	B. RANGANATHAN	THIRUVALLUR	AMBATTUR	DMK	5,99,86,123	6,52,93,000	12,52,79,123 12 Crore+
12	RAJA S R	KANCHEEPURAM	TAMBARAM	DMK	1,51,26,163	10,93,06,507	12,44,32,670 12 Crore+
13	E.R.ESWARAN	COIMBATORE	SULUR	кмк	3,43,32,917	6,89,00,000	10,32,32,917 10 Crore+
14	S.N.M.UBAYADULLAH	THANJAVUR	THANJAVUR	DMK	1,96,65,654	7,98,00,000	9,94,65,654 9 Crore+
15	N POINT MANI	TIRUPPUR	TIRUPPUR (SOUTH)	ВЈР	5,43,27,769	4,23,31,840	9,66,59,609 9 Crore+
16	BALASUBRAMANIAN. K	TIRUPPUR	PALLADAM	кмк	2,81,24,968	6,54,93,000	9,36,17,968 9 Crore+
17	R. MANOHAR	CHENNAI	ROYAPURAM	INC	3,88,28,019	5,45,24,000	9,33,52,019 9 Crore+
18	K.V.THANGKABALU	CHENNAI	MYLAPORE	INC	6,56,73,293	2,76,68,513	9,33,41,806 9 Crore+
19	SRITHAR VANDAIYAR	CUDDALORE	CHIDAMBARAM	DMK	2,33,83,108*	6,64,72,910 [*]	8,98,56,018 8 Crore+
20	MAGESHKUMAR M	CHENNAI	SAIDAPET	DMK	1,54,53,872	7,36,41,218	8,90,95,090 8 Crore+

*For candidates whose total values have not been given in the affidavit, the total has been calculated from the details given by the candidate himself/herself in the affidavit

Table: - Top 20 High Asset Candidates who lost Elections





Analysis based on Income Tax and PAN details of candidates

Top 10 high asset candidates who have not filed Income Tax Returns

Out of 738 Candidates analyzed, 292 Candidates (40%) have declared that they not filed Income Tax Returns. Among them, K P Munusamy of AIADMK has the highest assets of approximately 2.88 crore followed by M Umamaheswari of DMK with assets worth over 2.70 crores. Details of the top 10 candidates who have declared that they have not filed Income Tax returns are as follows:-

S. No.	Name District		Constituency	Party	Movable Assets (Rs)	Immovable Assets (Rs)	Total Assets (Rs)
1	K.P.MUNUSAMY	KRISHNAGIRI	KRISHNAGIRI	AIADMK	15,46,000	2,73,00,000	2,88,46,000 2 Crore+
2	M. UMA MAHESWARI TIRUNELVELI		SANKARANKOVIL	DMK	46,86,512	2,24,00,000	2,70,86,512 2 Crore+
3	RANI MADURAI		MELUR	DMK	73,44,751	1,60,90,000	2,34,34,751 2 Crore+
4	A. PAPPASUNDARAM	KARUR	KULITHALAI	AIADMK	10,65,590	2,10,00,000	2,20,65,590 2 Crore+
5	M.P.SANKAR	VILLUPURAM	TINDIVANAM	PMK	18,52,000	2,01,00,000	2,19,52,000 2 Crore+
6	C. KRISHNAN	SALEM	OMALUR	AIADMK	26,04,595	1,89,57,500	2,15,62,095 2 Crore+
7	DHANAPAL.P	NAMAKKAL	RASIPURAM	AIADMK	63,72,763	1,50,00,000*	2,13,72,763 2 Crore+
8	AMARAMOORTHY D	ARIYALUR	ARIYALUR	INC	1,63,63,076	25,28,639	1,88,91,715 1 Crore+
9	PARIMALADEVI	TIRUCHIRAPPALLI	THURAIYUR	DMK	26,61,341	1,54,30,000*	1,80,91,341 1 Crore+
10	R.RAJENDRAN	CUDDALORE	KURINJIPADI	AIADMK	13,58,659	1,65,90,000	1,79,48,659 1 Crore+

*For candidates whose total values have not been given in the affidavit, the total has been calculated from the details given by the candidate himself/herself in the affidavit

Table: Top 10 high asset candidates who have never filed IT Returns

Number of candidates who have never filed Income Tax Return- party-wise

In Tamil Nadu, among the major parties, BJP had the maximum number of candidates (102 i.e. 59% of the 173 candidates analyzed) who have never filed IT returns (ITR) followed by AIADMK who had 46 such candidates (28 % of the 165 candidates analyzed). DMK had 16 and INC had 5 candidates who have never filed Income Tax Returns. Following table gives the party wise details of candidates who have never filed IT returns.





Party	Total Candidates	Total Candidates Filed	Total Candidates Not Filed	% of candidates not filed
raity	Analyzed	ITR	ITR	ITR
BJP	173	71	102	59 %
AIADMK	165	119	46	28 %
DMK	123	107	16	13 %
INC	63	58	5	8 %
IND	48	13	35	73 %
DMDK	40	22	18	45 %
PMK	30	24	6	20 %
BSP	16	2	14	88 %
CPI(M)	12	1	11	92 %
СРІ	10	3	7	70 %
VCK	10	4	6	60 %
LSP	8	4	4	50 %
Makkal Manadu Katchi	7	2	5	71 %
KMK	7	7	0	0 %
Manithaneya Makkal Katchi	3	2	1	33 %
CPI(ML)(L)	3	1	2	67 %
JMM	3	0	3	100 %
UMK	2	0	2	100 %
Puthiya Thamilagam	2	1	1	50 %
IJK	2	1	1	50 %
RPI	1	1	0	0 %
PB	1	0	1	100 %
SDPI	1	0	1	100 %
APM	1	1	0	0 %
ABHM	1	0	1	100 %
MGRSP	1	1	0	0 %
MIM	1	0	1	100 %
RPI(A)	1	0	1	100 %
MSK	1	0	1	100 %
RJD	1	0	1	100 %
AIFB	1	1	0	0 %
Total	738	446	292	40 %

Table: Number of candidates who have never filed ITR - party wise

Top 10 candidates who declared the highest income in Income Tax Returns (ITR)

Given below are the top 10 candidates with the highest income shown in their income tax returns which includes the income shown by their spouse and dependents.





S.No.	Name	Party	Constituency	Movable Assets	Immovable Assets	Total Assets	Financial year for which ITR filed by candidate	Self income shown by candidate in ITR	Total income shown by candidate in ITR (Self+Spouse+ Dependent)
1	H. VASANTHAKUMAR	INC	NANGUNERI	64,45,40,190 64 Crore+	68,90,94,000 68 Crore+	1,33,36,34,190 133 Crore+	2009-2010	9,37,96,409 9 Crore+	9,45,27,213 9 Crore+
2	A. NARAYANAN	AIADMK	NANGUNERI	37,57,02,444 37 Crore+	65,71,63,000 65 Crore+	1,03,28,65,444 103 Crore+	2009-2010	1,49,04,480 1 Crore+	3,62,27,700 3 Crore+
3	M.KARUNANIDHI	DMK	THIRUVARUR	40,95,04,142 40 Crore+	3,19,89,628 3 Crore+	44,14,93,770 44 Crore+	2009-2010	37,34,020 37 Lacs+	2,69,65,456 2 Crore+
4	N. SENTHILKUMAR	DMDK	PATTUKKOTTAI	21,64,997 21 Lacs+	76,20,000 76 Lacs+	97,84,997 97 Lacs+	2009-2010	1,41,92,741 1 Crore+	1,76,48,622 1 Crore+
5	SELVARAJ.G.	DMK	KUMARAPALAYAM	4,51,08,413 4 Crore+	2,89,02,000 2 Crore+	7,40,10,413 7 Crore+	2009-2010	1,63,44,086 1 Crore+	1,69,64,086 1 Crore+
6	K. PANDIARAJAN	DMDK	VIRUDHUNAGAR	10,40,30,491 10 Crore+	2,14,05,595 2 Crore+	12,54,36,086 12 Crore+	2010-2011	93,28,615 93 Lacs+	1,57,63,433 1 Crore+
7	E SUBAYA	AIADMK	AMBASAMUDRAM	2,38,19,052 2 Crore+	57,88,37,228 57 Crore+	60,26,56,280 60 Crore+	2009-2010	1,40,82,860 1 Crore+	1,53,57,494 1 Crore+
8	K.C.PALLANI SHAMY	DMK	ARAVAKURICHI	31,89,80,271 31 Crore+	35,75,67,720 35 Crore+	67,65,47,991 67 Crore+	2007-2008	1,50,82,756 1 Crore+	1,53,27,916 1 Crore+
9	S.DURAISAMY	AIADMK	KOLATHUR	22,83,25,075 22 Crore+	41,61,91,268 41 Crore+	64,45,16,343 64 Crore+	2009-2010	1,48,83,710 1 Crore+	1,52,02,620 1 Crore+
10	B. RANGANATHAN	DMK	AMBATTUR	5,99,86,123 5 Crore+	6,52,93,000 6 Crore+	12,52,79,123 12 Crore+	2009-2010	1,37,45,830 1 Crore+	1,50,48,040 1 Crore+

Table: Top 10 candidates declared highest income in Income Tax Return

Number of candidates who have paid tax – year-wise

The following table gives information about candidates analyzed by the TNEW who have filed IT returns. 85% of the candidates analyzed have **not** filed their IT returns for the Financial Year 2010-2011. There are 40% candidates (of the total 738 analyzed) who have **never** filed IT returns.

S.No.	Financial Year for which last return filed	Tax payers	Percentage
1	2010-2011	110	15 %
2	2009-2010	308	42 %
3	2008-2009	5	0.7 %
4	2007-2008	9	1 %
5	2006-2007	3	0.4 %
6	2005-2006	3	0.4 %
7	2004-2005	1	0.1 %
8	2000-2001	1	0.1 %
9	Year Not Given	6	0.8 %
candida	ates who have never filed ITR	292	40 %

Table: Percentage of Tax payers – year-wise





Details of candidates who have not declared their PAN

• 201 out of 738 candidates analyzed (27%) who contested in Tamil Nadu 2011 Assembly Elections have not declared their PAN card details.

Analysis based on Educational background of candidates

Overall Education report – candidates

- Only one of the candidates among the 738 candidates analyzed is an illiterate.
- A total of 112 candidates (15% of total analyzed) have only passed 8th standard or below.
- 368 candidates (50%) were graduates or with higher educational qualifications.
- 3 of the candidates were Ph.D holders.

Education Group	Candidates Analyzed
Illiterate	1
Literate	8
5th Pass	36
8th Pass	67
10th Pass	137
12th Pass	87
Graduate	141
Graduate Professional	110
Post Graduate	114
Doctorate	3
Others	19
Not Given	15
Total	738

Table: Overall education report- candidates

Education analysis of candidates- party-wise

Following table gives the party wise details of candidates' education qualifications

			5th	8th	10th	12th		Graduate	Post			Not	Total
Party	Illiterate	Literate	Pass	Pass	Pass	Pass	Graduate	Professional	Graduate	Doctorate	Others	Given	
BJP	0	1	7	15	35	28	34	19	23	0	8	3	173
AIADMK	0	2	10	15	34	23	32	18	25	1	2	3	165
DMK	0	0	6	6	27	13	19	27	21	0	2	2	123
INC	0	0	1	5	8	1	14	17	15	0	1	1	63
DMDK	0	1	1	5	10	5	7	5	5	0	1	0	40
IND	0	2	4	8	7	4	5	6	6	1	0	5	48





			5th	8th	10th	12th		Graduate	Post			Not	Total
Party	Illiterate	Literate	Pass	Pass	Pass	Pass	Graduate	Professional	Graduate	Doctorate	Others	Given	
PMK	0	1	1	4	3	2	7	2	8	0	1	1	30
BSP	0	0	3	1	3	0	5	3	1	0	0	0	16
CPI(M)	0	0	0	2	1	2	4	2	1	0	0	0	12
CPI	0	0	1	1	4	2	1	1	0	0	0	0	10
Others	1	1	2	5	5	7	13	10	9	1	4	0	58
Total	1	8	36	67	137	87	141	110	114	3	19	15	738

Table:- Education analysis of candidates- party-wise

Analysis based on Gender – Candidates

Out of 2748 candidates who contested the Tamil Nadu 2011 Assembly elections, the number of mencandidates was 2604 (95%) whereas total womencandidates were 144 (5%). The percentage of women candidates in 2011 Assembly elections has declined comparing to that of 2006 Assembly elections. Percentage of women candidates in 2006 was 6% (156 out of 2586 candidates) and in 2011 it was 5% (144 out of 2748 candidates contested).

Party-wise analysis based on Gender – Candidates

The following table gives the party wise details of menand womencandidates who contested in the 2011 and 2006 Tamil Nadu Assembly elections.

	Tam	nil Nadu 2011	Assembly Elec	tions	Tamil Nadu 2006 Assembly Elections					
Party	Total candidates	No. of men candidates	% of men candidates	No. of women candidates	% of women candidates	Total candidates	No. of men candidates	% of men candidates	No. of women candidates	% of women candidates
AIADMK	165	153	93%	12	7%	188	165	88%	23	12%
DMDK	41	39	95%	2	5%	232	216	93%	16	7%
DMK	124	113	91%	11	9%	132	120	91%	12	9%
INC	63	59	94%	4	6%	48	44	92%	4	8%
Others	2355	2240	95%	115	5%	1986	1885	95%	101	5%
Total	2748	2604	95%	144	5%	2586	2430	94%	156	6%

Table:- Party-wise analysis gender representation- Comparison between 2011& 2006 Assembly Elections

Analysis Based on Age - Candidates

Analysis Based on Age-candidates

- A total of 27 candidates out of the 738 analyzed have declared their age to be less than 31 years old
- A total of 14 candidates out of the total analyzed are more than 71 years of age.





Age Group	Number of Candidates Analyzed
1-24	0
25-30	27
31-40	161
41-50	267
51-60	199
61-70	70
71-80	12
81-110	2
Total	738

Table: Number of candidates in each age group

Age Analysis of Candidates- party-wise

The following table gives the details of party wise age analysis of candidates who contested in the 2011 Tamil Nadu Assembly Elections.

Party/Age	25-35	36-45	46-55	56-65	66-75	76+	Total
BJP	16	77	59	19	1	1	173
AIADMK	4	34	73	50	3	1	165
DMK	11	27	39	33	11	2	123
DMDK	6	21	8	4	1	0	40
INC	7	18	15	20	3	0	63
PMK	2	12	11	5	0	0	30
BSP	8	7	1	0	0	0	16
CPI(M)	0	1	5	6	0	0	12
VCK	0	6	4	0	0	0	10
Others	27	34	24	18	3	0	106
Total	81	237	239	155	22	4	738

Table: Analysis of candidates on the basis of age - party-wise

Analysis of re-contesting MLAs

Summary of asset comparison of re-contesting MLAs

Out of these 738 candidates analyzed, there were 128 MLAs analyzed whose details were matched with information available from the last Assembly Elections held in 2006. This analysis is based on the affidavits filed in 2006 and 2011. It attempts to compare the assets of MLAs from the Tamil Nadu Assembly, 2006 who re-contested in Tamil Nadu Assembly Elections, 2011.

Asset comparison of re-contesting MLAs

The table below provides the increase in assets of recontesting MLAs who contested and won 2006 elections and are contesting again. In Rupees, the maximum growth in assets has been for H Vasanthakumar of INC contested from Nanguneri constituency. His assets have grown by over 97 crores. He is followed by J Data in this Kit is presented in good faith, with an intention to inform voters. Candidates' affidavit with nomination papers is the source of this analysis. www.adrindia.org, http://www.myneta.info, adr@adrindia.org, http://www.twitter.com/adrspeaks, http://www.facebook.com/adr.new





Jayalalitha of AIADMK (asset growth of over 26.74crores) and R Gandhi of DMK (asset growth of over 21.94 crores).

In percentage terms, the maximum percentage increase is in the total assets of T.Senguttuvan of DMK from Veppanahalli constituency. His assets have grown by 29012%. He is followed by K Ulaganathan of CPI from Thiruthuraipoondi constituency with a growth of 4104% in his assets and M Gunasekaran of AIADMK from Manamadurai constituency with a growth of 3396% in his assets.

S.No.	Name	Party in 2011	Party in 2006	Constituency in Tamil Nadu 2011	Constituency in 2006	Assets in 2011	Assets in 2006	Asset Increase	% Increase in Asset
1.	H. VASANTHAKUMAR	INC	INC	Nanguneri	Nanguneri	1,33,36,34,190 133 Crore+	36,17,52,933 36 Crore+	97,18,81,257 97 Crore+	269%
2.	J JAYALALITHAA	AIADMK	AIADMK	Srirangam	Andipatti	51,40,67,979 51 Crore+	24,65,82,000 24 Crore+	26,74,85,979 26 Crore+	108%
3.	R. Gandhi	DMK	DMK	Ranipet	Ranipet	27,79,23,106 27 Crore+	5,85,22,000 5 Crore+	21,94,01,106 21 Crore+	375%
4.	M.Karunanidhi	DMK	DMK	Thiruvarur	Chepauk	44,14,93,770 44 Crore+	26,57,62,881 26 Crore+	17,57,30,889 17 Crore+	66%
5.	K.N.Nehru	DMK	DMK	Tiruchirappalli (West)	Tiruchirapalli-II	17,77,79,731 17 Crore+	2,79,26,942 2 Crore+	14,98,52,789 14 Crore+	537%
6.	Poongothai Aladi Aruna	DMK	DMK	Alangulam	Alangulam	15,43,48,430 15 Crore+	1,35,10,870 1 Crore+	14,08,37,560 14 Crore+	1042%
7.	B. RANGANATHAN	DMK	DMK	Ambattur	Villivakkam	12,52,79,123 12 Crore+	2,92,01,000 2 Crore+	9,60,78,123 9 Crore+	329%
8.	N.R.RENGARAJAN	INC	INC	Pattukkottai	Pattukkottai	10,51,66,919 10 Crore+	2,75,64,608 2 Crore+	7,76,02,311 7 Crore+	282%
9.	DURAIMURUGAN	DMK	DMK	Katpadi	Katpadi	9,18,98,176 9 Crore+	2,30,47,901 2 Crore+	6,88,50,275 6 Crore+	299%
10.	S Rajakumar	INC	INC	Mayiladuthurai	Mayuram	6,38,37,800 6 Crore+	56,72,882 56 Lacs+	5,81,64,918 5 Crore+	1025%
11.	HASAN ALI	INC	INC	Ramanathapuram	Ramanathapuram	8,86,48,914 8 Crore+	3,38,68,000 3 Crore+	5,47,80,914 5 Crore+	162%
12.	PONMUDI.K.	DMK	DMK	Villupuram	Villupuram	8,22,32,709 8 Crore+	2,98,03,358 2 Crore+	5,24,29,351 5 Crore+	176%
13.	PARITHI ELLAMVAZHUTHI	DMK	DMK	Egmore	Egmore	5,77,04,536 5 Crore+	62,26,162 62 Lacs+	5,14,78,374 5 Crore+	827%
14.	S. Gunasekaran	СРІ	СРІ	Sivaganga	Sivaganga	5,57,42,707 5 Crore+	43,51,125 43 Lacs+	5,13,91,582 5 Crore+	1181%
15.	M.R.K. Panneerselvam	DMK	DMK	Kurinjipadi	Kurinjipadi	6,14,45,620 6 Crore+	1,04,27,000 1 Crore+	5,10,18,620 5 Crore+	489%
16.	Kannappan	DMK	MDMK	Kinathukadavu	Thondamuthur	6,96,75,576 6 Crore+	1,93,50,201 1 Crore+	5,03,25,375 5 Crore+	260%
17.	RAJA NKKP	DMK	DMK	Anthiyur	Erode	5,46,06,307 5 Crore+	74,69,452 74 Lacs+	4,71,36,855 4 Crore+	631%
18.	S.N.M.UBAYADULLAH	DMK	DMK	Thanjavur	Thanjavur	9,94,65,654 9 Crore+	5,51,46,491 5 Crore+	4,43,19,163 4 Crore+	80%
19.	N.Ramakrishnan	DMK	MDMK	Cumbum	Cumbum	6,78,44,299	2,45,93,022	4,32,51,277	176%





S.No.	Name	Party in	Party in	Constituency in	Constituency in	Assets in 2011	Assets in	Asset	% Increase
3.140.	Name	2011	2006	Tamil Nadu 2011	2006	A35613 III 2011	2006	Increase	in Asset
						6 Crore+	2 Crore+	4 Crore+	
20.	ANBARASAN T M	DMK	DMK	Pallavaram	Alandur	5,27,93,439	96,71,281	4,31,22,158	446%
					7.1.0.1.001	5 Crore+	96 Lacs+	4 Crore+	
21.	VISHNUPRASAD.M.K.	INC	INC	Cheyyar	Cheyyar	5,81,50,680 5 Crore+	1,72,39,560	4,09,11,120	237%
						4,81,53,953	1 Crore+ 80,88,400	4 Crore+ 4,00,65,553	
22.	KR PERIYAKARUPPAN	DMK	DMK	Tiruppattur	Tiruppattur	4,81,33,933 4 Crore+	80 Lacs+	4,00,03,333 4 Crore+	495%
	VEERAPANDI S					4,94,28,803	1,30,41,509	3,63,87,294	
23.	ARUMUGAM	DMK	DMK	Sankari	Salem-II	4 Crore+	1 Crore+	3 Crore+	279%
24.	S. PETER ALPHONSE	INC	INC	Kadayanallur	Kadayanallur	5,86,36,660	2,24,26,859	3,62,09,801	161%
24.	S. PETER ALPHONSE	INC	INC	Kadayanallur	Kadayanallur	5 Crore+	2 Crore+	3 Crore+	101%
25.	SAKKARAPANI R	DMK	DMK	Oddanchatram	Oddanchatram	4,57,90,710	1,01,47,093	3,56,43,617	351%
						4 Crore+	1 Crore+	3 Crore+	33273
26.	PALANISAMY	DMK	DMK	Coimbatore	Coimbatore East	15,66,63,000	12,23,12,951	3,43,50,049	28%
				(South)		15 Crore+	12 Crore+	3 Crore+	
27.	RAMACHANDRAN K	DMK	DMK	Coonoor	Gudalur	6,63,88,681 6 Crore+	3,47,59,200 3 Crore+	3,16,29,481 3 Crore+	91%
						5,65,62,069	2,51,34,897	3,14,27,172	
28.	SENGOTTAIYAN KA	AIADMK	AIADMK	Gobichettipalayam	Gobichet tipalayam	5,65,62,069 5 Crore+	2,51,34,897 2 Crore+	3,14,27,172 3 Crore+	125%
						3,13,72,550	2 0/0/0	3,13,72,550	
29.	KRISHNAMOORTHY.S	AIADMK	AIADMK	Kalasapakkam	Kalasapakkam	3 Crore+	0	3 Crore+	%
20	TI TI	D1414	D1414	I I		3,62,90,516	51,12,994	3,11,77,522	64.007
30.	Thangam Thennarasu	DMK	DMK	Tiruchuli	Aruppukottai	3 Crore+	51 Lacs+	3 Crore+	610%
31.	GOPINATH	INC	INC	Hogur	Hogur	3,20,90,352	15,80,000	3,05,10,352	10219/
31.	GOFINATTI	INC	INC	Hosur	Hosur	3 Crore+	15 Lacs+	3 Crore+	1931%
32.	RAJA.T.K.	PMK	PMK	Bargur	Tiruppattur	3,22,65,905	17,66,311	3,04,99,594	1727%
				Dailbai	Паррасса	3 Crore+	17 Lacs+	3 Crore+	1/2/%
33.	VIDIYALSEKAR	INC	INC	Kangayam	Kangayam	4,46,94,092	1,55,15,349	2,91,78,743	188%
				· · ·	<u> </u>	4 Crore+	1 Crore+	2 Crore+	
34.	K.Ghayathri Devi	INC	INC	Alandur	Maduranthakam	3,59,98,923 3 Crore+	70,35,493 70 Lacs+	2,89,63,430 2 Crore+	412%
						3,95,89,739	1,08,31,598	2,87,58,141	
35.	K.K.S.S.R.Ramachandran	DMK	DMK	Aruppukkottai	Sattur	3 Crore+	1 Crore+	2 Crore+	266%
2.5		5.44	5.44			12,44,32,670	9,56,87,736	2,87,44,934	2001
36.	RAJA S R	DMK	DMK	Tambaram	Tambaram	12 Crore+	9 Crore+	2 Crore+	30%
37.	C. GNANASEKARAN	INC	INC	Vellore	Vellore	3,13,58,702	32,37,564	2,81,21,138	869%
37.	C. GIVAINASERARAIN	INC	INC	veliore	veliore	3 Crore+	32 Lacs+	2 Crore+	00970
38.	KOVAI THANGAM	INC	INC	Valparai	Valparai	3,50,94,049	70,50,933	2,80,43,116	398%
						3 Crore+	70 Lacs+	2 Crore+	
39.	Saminathan	DMK	DMK	Madathukulam	Vellakoil	3,26,78,594	56,22,148	2,70,56,446	481%
						3 Crore+	56 Lacs+	2 Crore+	
40.	Pushparaj S	DMK	DMK	Vanur	Kandamangalam	2,75,75,085 2 Crore+	10,71,266 10 Lacs+	2,65,03,819 2 Crore+	2474%
						3,21,87,588	57,97,267	2,63,90,321	
41.	A. RAJENDRAN	DMK	DMK	Veerapandi	Veerapandi	3 Crore+	57,57,207 57 Lacs+	2,03,90,321 2 Crore+	455%
42.	ARUL ANBARASU	INC	INC	Sholingur	Sholinghur	2,74,75,000	32,05,000	2,42,70,000	757%





							Associ	ation for Democratic Reforms	
S.No.	Name	Party in 2011	Party in 2006	Constituency in Tamil Nadu 2011	Constituency in 2006	Assets in 2011	Assets in 2006	Asset Increase	% Increase in Asset
						2 Crore+	32 Lacs+	2 Crore+	
						2,62,36,171	32,38,633	2,29,97,538	
43.	Velumani S P	AIADMK	AIADMK	Thondamuthur	Perur	2 Crore+	32 Lacs+	2 Crore+	710%
						2,47,67,261	23,11,000	2,24,56,261	
44.	S.SIVASANKAR	DMK	DMK	Kunnam	Andimadam	2 Crore+	23 Lacs+	2 Crore+	972%
						2,21,10,091	11,67,458	2,09,42,633	
45.	N.SURESH RAJAN	DMK	DMK	Kanniyakumari	Kanniyakumari	2 Crore+	11,07,436 11 Lacs+	2 Crore+	1794%
						2,84,74,934	75,63,165	2,09,11,769	
46.	V. MULLAIVENDHAN	DMK	DMK	Pappireddippatti	Morappur	2 Crore+	75 Lacs+	2 Crore+	276%
						2,08,35,703	15,72,230	1,92,63,473	
47.	Udhayasuriyan	DMK	DMK	Sankarapuram	Chinnasalem	2 Crore+	15 Lacs+	1 Crore+	1225%
						3,97,83,472	2,09,19,750	1,88,63,722	
48.	SELVARAJ N	DMK	DMK	Manachanallur	Musiri	3 Crore+	2 Crore+	1 Crore+	90%
						1,86,31,940	64,000	1,85,67,940	
49.	T.SENGUTTUVAN	DMK	DMK	Veppanahalli	Krishnagiri	1 Crore+	64 Thou+	1 Crore+	29012%
						1,88,91,715	15,21,764	1,73,69,951	
50.	AMARAMOORTHY D	INC	INC	Ariyalur	Ariyalur	1 Crore+	15 Lacs+	1 Crore+	1141%
						2,70,57,132	1,10,96,500	1,59,60,632	
51.	Saba.Rajendran	DMK	DMK	Panruti	Nellikuppam	2 Crore+	1 Crore+	1 Crore+	144%
					Thiruverambur	1,64,88,904	9,74,432	1,55,14,472	
52.	K.N.Seharan	DMK	DMK	Thiruverumbur		1 Crore+	9 Lacs+	1 Crore+	1592%
						3,67,43,899	2,14,99,286	1,52,44,613	
53.	SHIVAJI E A P	DMK	DMK	Thiruvallur	Tiruvallur	3 Crore+	2 Crore+	1 Crore+	71%
						2,61,35,700	1,09,30,500	1,52,05,200	
54.	A.K.BOSE	AIADMK	AIADMK	Madurai North	Tirupparankundram	2 Crore+	1 Crore+	1 Crore+	139%
						3,33,60,593	1,81,78,498	1,51,82,095	
55.	Sivaraj.S.	INC	INC	Rishivandiyam	Rishivandiam	3 Crore+	1 Crore+	1 Crore+	84%
						2,82,85,187	1,35,77,414	1,47,07,773	
56.	Geetha Jeevan	DMK	DMK	Thoothukkudi	Tuticorin	2 Crore+	1 Crore+	1 Crore+	108%
						1,68,01,753	40,19,102	1,27,82,651	
57.	R. KUMARAGURU	AIADMK	AIADMK	Ulundurpettai	Thirunavalur	1 Crore+	40 Lacs+	1 Crore+	318%
						1,39,69,448	16,40,000	1,23,29,448	
58.	RAMAN E.S.S.	INC	INC	Tiruttani	Pallipet	1 Crore+	16 Lacs+	1 Crore+	752%
						2,37,71,727	1,19,03,333	1,18,68,394	
59.	PICHANDI K	DMK	DMK	Kilpennathur	Tiruvannamalai	2 Crore+	1 Crore+	1 Crore+	100%
						1,49,07,022	31,82,000	1,17,25,022	
60.	K.Jayakumar	INC	INC	Madurantakam	Namakkal	1 Crore+	31 Lacs+	1 Crore+	368%
						1,28,26,599	17,67,700	1,10,58,899	
61.	P.Kamaraj	DMK	DMK	Krishnarayapuram	Krishnarayapuram	1 Crore+	17 Lacs+	1 Crore+	626%
						1,22,35,867	13,20,000	1,09,15,867	
62.	D.Yasodha	INC	INC	Sriperumbudur	Sriperumbudur	1 Crore+	13 Lacs+	1 Crore+	827%
				1,32,07,544	25,16,800	1,06,90,744	+		
63.	R.MANICKAM	DMK	DMK	Kulithalai	Kulithalai	1 Crore+	25 Lacs+	1 Crore+	425%
		Coimbatore		1,55,22,535	49,33,321	1,05,89,214			
64.	MALARAVAN T	AIADMK	AIADMK	(North)	Coimbatore West	1 Crore+	49 Lacs+	1 Crore+	215%
65.	C. GOVINDASAMY	DMK	CPI(M)	Tiruppur (North)	Tiruppur	1,36,85,052	35,70,500	1,01,14,552	283%
	1	l	,,	- 1-1 ()	- I= I=	,,,	, - ,	,- , -,	





C No.	Name	Party in	Party in	Constituency in	Constituency in	Accests in 2011	Assets in	Asset	%
S.No.	Name	2011	2006	Tamil Nadu 2011	2006	Assets in 2011	2006	Increase	Increase in Asset
						1 Crore+	35 Lacs+	1 Crore+	
66.	K.P ANBALAGAN	AIADMK	AIADMK	Palacodu	Palacode	1,54,09,083	53,81,889	1,00,27,194	186%
	10.1 7 11 10 7 11 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	,,	, ,,, ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,	T dideodd	T diacode	1 Crore+	53 Lacs+	1 Crore+	10070
67.	DAMODHARAN	AIADMK	AIADMK	Kinathukadavu	Kinathukkadavu	1,51,89,709 1 Crore+	56,55,523 56 Lacs+	95,34,186 95 Lacs+	169%
						98,33,684	3,28,000	95,05,684	
68.	T. Ramachandran	CPI	IND	Thalli	Thalli	98 Lacs+	3,28,000 3 Lacs+	95 Lacs+	2898%
	NA DUANDADANI	INIC	INIC	Ma da a a a dun	Madagadus	1,23,07,886	28,89,919	94,17,967	2200/
69.	M. DHANDAPANI	INC	INC	Vedasandur	Vedasandur	1 Crore+	28 Lacs+	94 Lacs+	326%
70.	M.R Sundram	INC	INC	Tiruchengodu	Attur	3,24,34,983	2,35,11,300	89,23,683	38%
, 0.	Trini Sanaram			Thruchengoud	, tetai	3 Crore+	2 Crore+	89 Lacs+	3070
71.	John Jacob	INC	INC	Killiyoor	Killiyoor	92,30,211	6,96,000	85,34,211	1226%
						92 Lacs+	6 Lacs+	85 Lacs+	
72.	Avudaippan	DMK	DMK	Ambasamudram	Ambasamudram	1,49,98,259 1 Crore+	66,98,303 66 Lacs+	82,99,956 82 Lacs+	124%
						1,20,46,922	37,50,796	82,96,126	
73.	R Vaithilingam	AIADMK	AIADMK	Orathanadu	Orathanad	1 Crore+	37 Lacs+	82 Lacs+	221%
74.	VELDURAI	INC	INC	Dadhanuram	Cheranmahadevi	1,40,45,394	57,95,000	82,50,394	142%
74.	VELDUKAI	IIIC	INC	Radhapuram	Cheraninanauevi	1 Crore+	57 Lacs+	82 Lacs+	14270
75.	V.P. Duraisamy	DMK	DMK	Rasipuram	Sankari	2,40,15,336	1,57,94,723	82,20,613	52%
	,					2 Crore+	1 Crore+	82 Lacs+	
76.	T.Velmurugan	PMK	PMK	Neyveli	Panruti	83,36,034 83 Lacs+	4,50,000 4 Lacs+	78,86,034 78 Lacs+	1752%
						1,32,04,057	54,70,104	77,33,953	
77.	SENTHILBALAJI	AIADMK	AIADMK K	Karur	Karur	1 Crore+	54 Lacs+	77,55,555 77 Lacs+	141%
				-1		83,27,121	6,95,500	76,31,621	10070/
78.	K.P.P. Sami	DMK	DMK	Thiruvottiyur	Thiruvottiyur	83 Lacs+	6 Lacs+	76 Lacs+	1097%
79.	SEKARBABU P.K.	DMK	AIADMK	Dr.Radhakrishnan	Dr. Radhakrishnan	77,90,630	3,70,515	74,20,115	2003%
73.	SERANDADO F.N.	DIVIK	AIADIVIK	Nagar	Nagar	77 Lacs+	3 Lacs+	74 Lacs+	2003/6
80.	SUBA THANGAVELAN	DMK	DMK	Tiruvadanai	Kadaladi	1,13,11,041	39,98,440	73,12,601	183%
						1 Crore+	39 Lacs+	73 Lacs+	
81.	THANGAMANI.P	AIADMK	AIADMK	Kumarapalayam	Tiruchengode	1,54,19,345 1 Crore+	83,95,276 83 Lacs+	70,24,069 70 Lacs+	84%
						74,85,645	5,33,000	69,52,645	
82.	CHINNADURAI	DMK	DMK	Gangavalli	Talavasal	74 Lacs+	5 Lacs+	69 Lacs+	1304%
	1/D D 4 8 4 4 C 4 8 4 1/		1116	17 11 11	- : 1 ·	1,89,91,063	1,20,89,647	69,01,416	F 70/
83.	KR RAMASAMY	INC	INC	Karaikudi	Tiruvadanai	1 Crore+	1 Crore+	69 Lacs+	57%
84.	ABDUL BASITH	DMK	DMK	Vaniyambadi	Vaniayambadi	80,25,084	13,52,800	66,72,284	493%
04.	7,0000 07,01111	DIVIK	DIVIK	varnyambaar	vamayambaai	80 Lacs+	13 Lacs+	66 Lacs+	43370
1 85	A	DMK	DMK	Lalgudi	Lalgudi	1,01,41,496	37,75,400	63,66,096	169%
	SOUNDHARAPANDIAN	-			-	1 Crore+	37 Lacs+	63 Lacs+	109%
86.	VIJAYAKUMAR.P.S	INC	INC	Kalasapakkam	Polur	72,68,794 72 Lacs+	11,00,000 11 Lacs+	61,68,794 61 Lacs+	561%
						64,98,783	3,59,524	61,39,259	
87.	TAMILARASI A.	DMK	DMK	Manamadurai	Samayanallur	64 Lacs+	3 Lacs+	61 Lacs+	1708%
88.	STALIN M K	DMK	DMK	Kolathur	Thousand Lights	2,11,60,061	1,50,75,648	60,84,413	40%





								Associa	ation for Democratic Reforms	
89	S.No.	Name	_	-			Assets in 2011			% Increase in Asset
Post							2 Crore+	1 Crore+	60 Lacs+	
Post							89.11.090	28.76.000	60.35.090	
90. EDIROLIMANIAN. G. PMK PMK Polur Peranamallur 74,92,614 (15,14,650) (15 lacs*) 59,77,964 (15 lacs*) 395% (15 lacs*) 91. RAMPRABUR. INC INC Paramakudi Paramakudi 1,160,0654 (15,06,654 (15,06)) 15,77,781 (15,012 (15,05)) 55,65,000 (15%) 92. T.P.M.MOHIDEENKHAN DMK DMK Bodinayakanur Bodinayakkanur 77,42,233 (23,0000 (15%) 55,65,000 (15%) 55 lacs* (24,22,23) 23,0000 (15%) 55 lacs* (24,22,23) 23,4000 (15%) 55 lacs* (24,22,23) 23,40000 (15%) 55 lacs* (24,22,23) 23,4000 (15%) 55 lacs* (24,22,23) 23,20,0251 (15%) 56 lacs* (25,20,251 (15%) <td>89.</td> <td>A.THAMIZHARASU</td> <td>PMK</td> <td>PMK</td> <td>Omalur</td> <td>Omalur</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>210%</td>	89.	A.THAMIZHARASU	PMK	PMK	Omalur	Omalur				210%
Principal Prin						- "	74,92,614	15,14,650		
91. RAMM/RABUR. INC. INC. Paramakudi Paramakudi 1 Corret 57 Lacs* 58 Lacs* 103% 92. T.P.M.MOHIDEENKHAN DMK DMK DMK Palayamkottai 1,07741,012 51,76,012 55,65,000 1,08% 93. S.Lakshmanan DMK DMK DMK Bodinayakanur 77,42,233 23,20,000 54,22,233 23,400 55,65,000 52,30,251 586% 94. R. SAMY AIADMK AIADMK Melur Melur 61,23,441 8,93,190 52,30,251 586% 95. ANBIL PERIYASAMY DMK DMK MK Yercaud Yercaud 65,91,479 51,536,000 50,334,79 50 Lacs* 52 Lacs* Lacs* <	90.	EDIROLIMANIAN. G.	PMK	PMK	Polur	Peranamallur				395%
91. RAMM/RABUR. INC. INC. Paramakudi Paramakudi 1 Corret 57 Lacs* 58 Lacs* 103% 92. T.P.M.MOHIDEENKHAN DMK DMK DMK Palayamkottai 1,07741,012 51,76,012 55,65,000 1,08% 93. S.Lakshmanan DMK DMK DMK Bodinayakanur 77,42,233 23,20,000 54,22,233 23,400 55,65,000 52,30,251 586% 94. R. SAMY AIADMK AIADMK Melur Melur 61,23,441 8,93,190 52,30,251 586% 95. ANBIL PERIYASAMY DMK DMK MK Yercaud Yercaud 65,91,479 51,536,000 50,334,79 50 Lacs* 52 Lacs* Lacs* <							1,16,04,654	57,07,781	58,96,873	1000/
92. I.P.M.MOHIDEENKHAN DMK Palayamkottal Palayamkottal 1 Core+ 51 Lass+ 55 Lacs+ 108% 93. S.Lakshmanan DMK DMK Bodinayakanur 77-Lacs+ 23.20,000 54-Lacs+ 23 Lacs+ 54 Lacs+ 22 Jacs+ 54 Lacs+ 54 Lacs+ 52 Lacs+ 56 Lacs+ 55 Lacs+ 56 Lacs+ 55 Lacs+ 56 Lacs+ 50 Lacs+ 34 Lacs+ </td <td>91.</td> <td>RAMPRABU.R.</td> <td>INC</td> <td>INC</td> <td>Paramakudi</td> <td>Paramakudi</td> <td></td> <td>57 Lacs+</td> <td>58 Lacs+</td> <td>103%</td>	91.	RAMPRABU.R.	INC	INC	Paramakudi	Paramakudi		57 Lacs+	58 Lacs+	103%
93. S.Lakshmanan	02	T.D. N.A. N.A.O.I.II.DEENIKII.A.N.	DNAK	DNAK	Dalar and sattat	Delevere estat	1,07,41,012	51,76,012	55,65,000	4000/
93. SLäkshmanan DMK Bödinayakanur Bödinayakanur 77 Lacs+ 23 Lacs+ 54 Lacs+ 24 24% 94. R. SAMY AlADMK AIADMK Melur Melur 61,23,441 8,93,190 52,30,251 586% 95. ANBIL PERIYASAMY DMK DMK DMK Tiruchirapallili (East) 65,91,479 15,38,000 50,53,479 329% 96. Tamilselvan DMK DMK DMK Athoor Athoor 65,21,479 15,38,000 50,53,479 329% 97. PERIYASAMYI DMK DMK Athoor Athoor 1,84,09,394 1,36,04,433 48,04,961 35% 98. KALAIRAJAN V P AIADMK AIADMK Thiyagarayanagar Theagaraya Nagar 59,80,538 16,80,000 43,00,538 256% 99. SUBRAMANIAN. AIADMK AIADMK Gandharvakottai Kolathur 61,75,923 19,32,460 42,24,3465 42 220% 100. M. GUNASEKRAN AIADMK AIADMK Manamadurai Manamadurai	92.	I .P.M.MOHIDEENKHAN	DIVIK	DIVIK	Palayamkottai	Palayamcottai	1 Crore+	51 Lacs+	55 Lacs+	108%
94. R. SAMY AIADMK AIADMK Melur Melur 61,234,41 8,93,190 52,20,251 586% 95. ANBIL PERIYASAMY DMK DMK Tiruchirappallit (East) Tiruchirappallit 65,91,479 15,38,000 50,53,479 329% 96. Tamilselvan DMK DMK DMK Athoor Athoor 1,72,9350 50,47,850 50,467,850 50,467,850 97. PERIYASAMY DMK DMK Athoor Athoor 1,84,09,394 1,36,04,433 48,04,961 35% 98. KALAIRAJAN V P AIADMK AIADMK Thiyagarayanagar Theagaraya Nagar 59,80,538 16,80,000 43,00,538 256% 43 Lacs+ 42,465 20,40,763 42,43,465 220% 99. SUBRAMANIAN N AIADMK	02	C. I. alicala na ana an	DNAK	DNAK	D - dia la	Dardin avadda avan	77,42,233	23,20,000	54,22,233	22.40/
94. R. SAMY AIADMK RIADMK Metur 61 Lacs+ 8 Lacs+ 52 Lacs+ 5666/ 95. ANBIL PERIYASAMY DMK DMK Tiruchirappallii 1 Tiruchirapallii- 65,91,479 15,38,000 50,53,479 329% 96. Tamiiselvan DMK DMK Athoor Athoor 17,29,350 50,47,850 50 Lacs+ 42 Lacs+	93.	S.Laksnmanan	DIVIK	DIVIK	Bodinayakanur	Bodinayakkanur	77 Lacs+	23 Lacs+	54 Lacs+	234%
94. R. SAMY AIADMK RIADMK Metur 61 Lacs+ 8 Lacs+ 52 Lacs+ 5666/ 95. ANBIL PERIYASAMY DMK DMK Tiruchirappallii 1 Tiruchirapallii- 65,91,479 15,38,000 50,53,479 329% 96. Tamiiselvan DMK DMK Athoor Athoor 17,29,350 50,47,850 50 Lacs+ 42 Lacs+	0.4	D. CANAV	A I A D A 41/	414544			61,23,441	8,93,190	52,30,251	5060/
95. ANBIL PERIYASAMY DMK DMK Least) ITRURIYABILITY 65 Lacs+ 15 Lacs+ 50 Lacs+ 3-9% 96. Tamilselvan DMK DMK Yercaud Yercaud 67,77,200 17,29,350 50,47,850 292% 97. PERIYASAMY I DMK DMK Athoor Athoor 1,84,09,394 1,36,04,433 48,04,961 35% 98. KALAIRAJAN V P AIADMK AIADMK Thiyagarayanagar Theagaraya Nagar 59,80,538 16,80,000 48,04,961 25% 99. SUBRAMANIAN. N AIADMK AIADMK Gandharvakottai Kolathur 61,75,925 19,32,460 42,43,465 220% 100. M. GUNASEKRAN AIADMK AIADMK Manamadurai Manamadurai 41,46,929 1,18,616 40,28,313 3396% 101. V.Karuppasamypandian DMK DMK Tenkasi Tenkasi 90,27,916 51,6553 38,Lacs+ 38 Lacs+ 102. C.VE. SHANMUGAM AIADMK AIADMK Villupuram Tindivanam 58	94.	R. SAIVIY	AIADIVIK	AIADIVIK	Meiur	ivieiur	61 Lacs+	8 Lacs+	52 Lacs+	586%
95. ANBIL PERIYASAMY DMK DMK Least) ITRURIYABILITY 65 Lacs+ 15 Lacs+ 50 Lacs+ 3-9% 96. Tamilselvan DMK DMK Yercaud Yercaud 67,77,200 17,29,350 50,47,850 292% 97. PERIYASAMY I DMK DMK Athoor Athoor 1,84,09,394 1,36,04,433 48,04,961 35% 98. KALAIRAJAN V P AIADMK AIADMK Thiyagarayanagar Theagaraya Nagar 59,80,538 16,80,000 48,04,961 25% 99. SUBRAMANIAN. N AIADMK AIADMK Gandharvakottai Kolathur 61,75,925 19,32,460 42,43,465 220% 100. M. GUNASEKRAN AIADMK AIADMK Manamadurai Manamadurai 41,46,929 1,18,616 40,28,313 3396% 101. V.Karuppasamypandian DMK DMK Tenkasi Tenkasi 90,27,916 51,6553 38,Lacs+ 38 Lacs+ 102. C.VE. SHANMUGAM AIADMK AIADMK Villupuram Tindivanam 58	0.5	ANDU DEDIVAÇANAV	D. 41/	D. A.I.	Tiruchirappalli	I III	65,91,479	15,38,000	50,53,479	2200/
96. Familseivan DMK DMK Yercaud 67 Lacs+ 17 Lacs+ 50 Lacs+ 292% 97. PERIYASAMY I DMK DMK Athoor Athoor 1,84,09,394 1 1,36,04,433 48,04,961 1 1 Crore+ 48 Lacs+	95.	ANBIL PERIYASAMIY	DIVIK	DIVIK		i iruchirapaili-i	65 Lacs+	15 Lacs+	50 Lacs+	329%
97. PERIYASAMY I DMK DMK Athoor Athoor 1,84,09,394 1,03,394 1,36,04,433 4,36,04,433 4,80,49,61 1 Crore+ 48 Lacs+ 1 Crore+ 1 Crore+ 48 Lacs+ 1 Crore+ 1 Crore+ 48 Lacs+ 1 Crore+ 3 Class+ 38 Lacs+ 3	0.0	- 11 1	D. 41/	D. 11/			67,77,200	17,29,350	50,47,850	2020/
97. PERIYASAMY1 DMK DMK Athoor Athoor 1 Crore+ 1 Crore+ 48 Lacs+ 35% 98. KALAIRAJAN V P AIADMK AIADMK Thiyagarayanagar Theagaraya Nagar 59,80,538 16,80,000 43,00,538 256% 99. SUBRAMANIAN. N AIADMK AIADMK Gandharvakottai Kolathur 61,75,925 19,32,460 42,43,465 220% 100. M. GUNASEKRAN AIADMK AIADMK Manamadurai Manamadurai 41,46,929 1,18,616 40,28,313 3396% 101. V.Karuppasamypandian DMK DMK Tenkasi 90,27,916 51,76,553 38,51,363 74% 102. C.VE. SHANMUGAM AIADMK AIADMK Villupuram Tindivanam 58,90,799 20,40,763 38,50,036 38 Lacs+ <	96.	l amiiseivan	DIVIK	DIVIK	Yercaud	Yercaud	67 Lacs+	17 Lacs+	50 Lacs+	292%
97. PERIYASAMY1 DMK DMK Athoor Athoor 1 Crore+ 1 Crore+ 48 Lacs+ 3% 98. KALAIRAJAN V P AIADMK AIADMK Thiyagarayanagar Theagaraya Nagar 59,80,538 16,80,000 43,00,538 256% 99. SUBRAMANIAN. N AIADMK AIADMK Gandharvakottai Kolathur 61,75,925 19,32,460 42,43,465 220% 100. M. GUNASEKRAN AIADMK AIADMK Manamadurai Manamadurai 41,46,929 1,18,616 40,28,313 3396% 101. V.Karuppasamypandian DMK DMK Tenkasi 90,21,79,16 51,76,553 38,51,363 74% 102. C.VE. SHANMUGAM AIADMK AIADMK Villupuram Tindivanam 58,90,799 20,40,763 38,42,033 486,500 38,42,033 790% 103. R. DORAIKKANNU AIADMK AIADMK Papanasam Papanasam 43,28,533 4,86,500 38,42,033 790% 104. D.Ravikumar VCK VCK Kattumannarkoil Kattumannar					1,84,09,394	1,36,04,433	48,04,961	250/		
98. KALAIRAJAN V P AlADMK AlADMK Inlyagarayanagar Inleagaraya Nagar 59 Lacs+ 16 Lacs+ 43 Lacs+ 256% 99. SUBRAMANIAN. N AlADMK AlADMK Gandharvakottai Kolathur 61,75,925 19,32,460 42,43,465 220% 100. M. GUNASEKRAN AlADMK AlADMK Manamadurai Manamadurai 41,46,929 1,18,616 40,28,313 3396% 101. V.Karuppasamypandian DMK DMK Tenkasi 90,27,916 51,76,553 38,51,363 74% 102. C.VE. SHANMUGAM AlADMK AlADMK Villupuram Tindivanam 58,90,799 20,40,763 38 Lacs+ 189% 103. R. DORAIKKANNU AlADMK AlADMK Papanasam Papanasam 43,28,533 4,86,500 38,12,033 38,18,340 104. D.Ravikumar VCK VCK Kattumannarkoil Kattumannarkoil 47,19,496 9,0,1,156 38,18,340 42,4% 105. ANBAZHAGAN K DMK DMK Villivakkam Harbour 1,48,06,771 1,11	97.	PERIYASAMY I	DMK	DMK	Athoor	Athoor	1 Crore+			35%
98. KALAIRAJAN V P AlADMK AlADMK Inlyagarayanagar Inleagaraya Nagar 59 Lacs+ 16 Lacs+ 43 Lacs+ 256% 99. SUBRAMANIAN. N AlADMK AlADMK Gandharvakottai Kolathur 61,75,925 19,32,460 42,43,465 220% 100. M. GUNASEKRAN AlADMK AlADMK Manamadurai Manamadurai 41,46,929 1,18,616 40,28,313 3396% 101. V.Karuppasamypandian DMK DMK Tenkasi 90,27,916 51,76,553 38,51,363 74% 102. C.VE. SHANMUGAM AlADMK AlADMK Villupuram Tindivanam 58,90,799 20,40,763 38 Lacs+ 189% 103. R. DORAIKKANNU AlADMK AlADMK Papanasam Papanasam 43,28,533 4,86,500 38,12,033 38,18,340 104. D.Ravikumar VCK VCK Kattumannarkoil Kattumannarkoil 47,19,496 9,0,1,156 38,18,340 42,4% 105. ANBAZHAGAN K DMK DMK Villivakkam Harbour 1,48,06,771 1,11							59,80,538	16,80,000	43,00,538	
100. M. GUNASEKRAN AIADMK AIADMK Manamadurai Kolathur 61 Lacs+ 19 Lacs+ 42 Lacs+ 220% 100. M. GUNASEKRAN AIADMK AIADMK Manamadurai Manamadurai 41,46,929 41 Lacs+ 40,28,313 40 Lacs+ 3396% 101. V.Karuppasamypandian DMK DMK Tenkasi Po,27,916 90,27,916 90,27,916 90,27,916 51,76,553 38,51,363 38 Lacs+ 74% 102. C.VE. SHANMUGAM AIADMK AIADMK Villupuram Tindivanam 58,90,799 58 Lacs+ 20,40,763 38,50,036 38,42,033 38 Lacs+ 189% 103. R. DORAIKKANNU AIADMK AIADMK Papanasam Papanasam 43,28,533 44,86,500 38,42,033 38 Lacs+ 38,42,033 38 Lacs+ 790% 104. D.Ravikumar VCK VCK Kattumannarkoil Kattumannarkoil 47,19,496 47 Lacs+ 9,01,156 38,18,340 424% 38 Lacs+ 38 Lacs+ 424% 105. ANBAZHAGAN K DMK DMK Villivakkam Harbour 1,48,06,771 1,110,00,202 1,000 36,31,778 31 Lacs+ 37 Lacs+ 39 Lacs+ 36 Lacs+ 36 Lacs+ 36 Lacs+ 36 Lacs+	98.	KALAIRAJAN V P	AIADMK	AIADMK	Thiyagarayanagar	Theagaraya Nagar				256%
100. M. GUNASEKRAN AIADMK AIADMK Manamadurai Kolathur 61 Lacs+ 19 Lacs+ 42 Lacs+ 220% 100. M. GUNASEKRAN AIADMK AIADMK Manamadurai Manamadurai 41,46,929 41 Lacs+ 40,28,313 40 Lacs+ 3396% 101. V.Karuppasamypandian DMK DMK Tenkasi Po,27,916 90,27,916 90,27,916 90,27,916 51,76,553 38,51,363 38 Lacs+ 74% 102. C.VE. SHANMUGAM AIADMK AIADMK Villupuram Tindivanam 58,90,799 58 Lacs+ 20,40,763 38,50,036 38,42,033 38 Lacs+ 189% 103. R. DORAIKKANNU AIADMK AIADMK Papanasam Papanasam 43,28,533 44,86,500 38,42,033 38 Lacs+ 38,42,033 38 Lacs+ 790% 104. D.Ravikumar VCK VCK Kattumannarkoil Kattumannarkoil 47,19,496 47 Lacs+ 9,01,156 38,18,340 424% 38 Lacs+ 38 Lacs+ 424% 105. ANBAZHAGAN K DMK DMK Villivakkam Harbour 1,48,06,771 1,110,00,202 1,000 36,31,778 31 Lacs+ 37 Lacs+ 39 Lacs+ 36 Lacs+ 36 Lacs+ 36 Lacs+ 36 Lacs+							61,75,925	19,32,460	42,43,465	22221
100. M. GUNASEKRAN AIADMK AIADMK Manamadural Manamadural 41 Lacs+ 1 Lacs+ 40 Lacs+ 3396% 101. V.Karuppasamypandian DMK DMK Tenkasi 90,27,916 90,27,916 90,27,916 90,6763 38,51,363 38 Lacs+ 74% 102. C.VE. SHANMUGAM AIADMK AIADMK Villupuram Tindivanam 58,90,799 20,40,763 38,50,036 20 Lacs+ 38 Lacs+ 38 Lacs+ 38 Lacs+ 20 Lacs+ 38 Lacs+ 38 Lacs+ 38 Lacs+ 38 Lacs+ 44,66,500 38,42,033 38,42,033 44,66,500 44,719,496 41,600 41,719,496 41,719,496 47 Lacs+ 90,1,156 38,18,340 41,600 47 Lacs+ 90,1,156 38,18,340 41,600 47 Lacs+ 90,1,156 38,18,340 41,600 47 Lacs+ 38 Lacs+ 39 Lacs+ 38 Lacs+ 39 Lacs+ 30 L	99.	SUBRAMANIAN. N	AIADMK	AIADMK	Gandharvakottai	Kolathur				220%
100. M. GUNASEKRAN AIADMK AIADMK Manamadural Manamadural 41 Lacs+ 1 Lacs+ 40 Lacs+ 3396% 101. V.Karuppasamypandian DMK DMK Tenkasi 90,27,916 90,27,916 90,27,916 90,6763 38,51,363 38 Lacs+ 74% 102. C.VE. SHANMUGAM AIADMK AIADMK Villupuram Tindivanam 58,90,799 20,40,763 38,50,036 20 Lacs+ 38 Lacs+ 38 Lacs+ 38 Lacs+ 20 Lacs+ 38 Lacs+ 38 Lacs+ 38 Lacs+ 38 Lacs+ 44,66,500 38,42,033 38,42,033 44,66,500 44,719,496 41,600 41,719,496 41,719,496 47 Lacs+ 90,1,156 38,18,340 41,600 47 Lacs+ 90,1,156 38,18,340 41,600 47 Lacs+ 90,1,156 38,18,340 41,600 47 Lacs+ 38 Lacs+ 39 Lacs+ 38 Lacs+ 39 Lacs+ 30 L	400						41,46,929	1,18,616	40,28,313	222521
101. V.Raruppasamypandian DMK Tenkasi Tenkasi 90 Lacs+ 51 Lacs+ 38 Lacs+ 74% 102. C.VE. SHANMUGAM AIADMK Villupuram Tindivanam 58,90,799 58 Lacs+ 20,40,763 20 Lacs+ 38,50,036 38,20,033 38,20,033 48,6500 38,50,036 38,42,033 	100.	M. GUNASEKKAN	AIADIVIK	AIADINK	Manamadurai	Manamadurai	41 Lacs+	1 Lacs+	40 Lacs+	3396%
101. V.Raruppasamypandian DMK Tenkasi Tenkasi 90 Lacs+ 51 Lacs+ 38 Lacs+ 74% 102. C.VE. SHANMUGAM AIADMK Villupuram Tindivanam 58,90,799 58 Lacs+ 20,40,763 20 Lacs+ 38,50,036 38,20,033 38,20,033 48,6500 38,50,036 38,42,033 38 Lacs+ 189% 103. R. DORAIKKANNU AIADMK Papanasam Papanasam 43,28,533 43,28,533 43,28,533 43,6500 4,86,500 41 Lacs+ 38,42,033 38,18,340 9 Lacs+ 790% 104. D.Ravikumar VCK VCK Kattumannarkoil Kattumannarkoil 47,19,496 47 Lacs+ 9,01,156 9 Lacs+ 38,18,340 38 Lacs+ 424% 105. ANBAZHAGAN K DMK DMK Villivakkam Harbour 1,48,06,771 1 Crore+ 1,11,00,202 1 Crore+ 37,06,569 37,1450 39,10600 33% 33% 106. PONNUSAMY K DMK DMK Senthamangalam Sendamangalam 75 Lacs+ 39,10,600 39,10600 36,21,778 39 Lacs+ 36 Lacs+ 36 Lacs+ 31,6254 31,625 31,6409 43,069 38,14,698 38,14,698 3	404						90,27,916	51,76,553	38,51,363	
102. C.VE. SHANMUGAM AIADMK AIADMK VIIIupuram Tindivanam 58 Lacs+ 20 Lacs+ 38 Lacs+ 189% 103. R. DORAIKKANNU AIADMK AIADMK Papanasam Papanasam 43,28,533	101.	V.Karuppasamypandian	DMK	DMK	Tenkası	Tenkası			38 Lacs+	/4%
103. R. DORAIKKANNU AIADMK Papanasam Papanasam 43,28,533	402	C.V.F. CULANDALICANA	A I A D A 41/	414544) ('II	!·	58,90,799	20,40,763	38,50,036	4000/
103. R. DORAIKKANNU AIADMK AIADMK Papanasam Papanasam 43 Lacs+ 4 Lacs+ 38 Lacs+ 790% 104. D.Ravikumar VCK VCK Kattumannarkoil Kattumannarkoil 47,19,496 9,01,156 38,18,340 424% 105. ANBAZHAGAN K DMK DMK Villivakkam Harbour 1,48,06,771 1,11,00,202 37,06,569 33% 106. PONNUSAMY K DMK DMK Senthamangalam Sendamangalam 75,42,378 39,10,600 36,31,778 36 Lacs+ 36 Lacs+ 93% 107. KRISHNASAMY DMK DMK Orathanadu Thiruvonam 43,21,625 8,14,698 35,06,927 430% 108. JAYAKUMAR D. AIADMK AIADMK Royapuram Royapuram 84,73,902 51,69,018 33,04,884 51 Lacs+ 33 Lacs+ 430% 109. PALANISAMY RM INC Modakurichi Modakurichi 58,07,555 26,25,621 31,81,934 121% 110. SENTHAMIZHAN.G AIADMK AIADMK Saidapet Saidapet Saidapet 55,11,140	102.	C.VE. SHANMUGAM	AIADIVIK	AIADINK	Villupuram	Tindivanam	58 Lacs+	20 Lacs+	38 Lacs+	189%
104. D.Ravikumar VCK VCK VCK Kattumannarkoil 47,19,496 47,19,496 47, Lacs+ 9,01,156 9 Lacs+ 38,18,340 38,18,340 38, Lacs+ 424% 105. ANBAZHAGAN K DMK DMK Villivakkam Harbour 1,48,06,771 1 Crore+ 1,11,00,202 1 Crore+ 37,06,569 37,06,569 37,06,569 37,06,569 37,06,569 37,06,569 37,06,569 37,06,569 37,06,569 37,06,000 36,31,778 39,000 39,000 36,31,778 39,000 39,000 30,13,778 30,000 30	102	D. DODAHKKANINI I	A I A D A 41/	A LA DA AIZ	D	D	43,28,533	4,86,500	38,42,033	7000/
104. D.Ravikumar VCK VCK VCK Kattumannarkoli 47 Lacs+ 9 Lacs+ 38 Lacs+ 424% 105. ANBAZHAGAN K DMK DMK Villivakkam Harbour 1,48,06,771 1,11,00,202 1,706,569 1 2,706,569 1 2,706,569 1 37,06,569 1 37,06,569 1 2,706,569 1 2,706,569 1 2,706,569 1 2,706,569 1 2,706,569 1 37,06,569 1 2,706,569 1 2,706,569 1 2,706,570 1 2,706,569 1 2,706,570 1 2,706,569 1 2,706,570 1 2,706,569 1 2,706,570 1 2,	103.	R. DOKAIKKANNU	AIADIVIK	AIADIVIK	Papanasam	Papanasam	43 Lacs+	4 Lacs+	38 Lacs+	790%
105. ANBAZHAGAN K DMK DMK Villivakkam Harbour 1,48,06,771 1 1,11,00,202 17,06,569 37,06,569 1 1 Crore+ 37 Lacs+ 37 Lacs+ 38 Lacs+ 37 Lacs+ 37 Lacs+ 38 Lacs+ 37 Lacs+ 38 Lacs+	104	D. Dovilusana	VCK	VCK	Kott uses a series il	Matt	47,19,496	9,01,156	38,18,340	42.40/
105. ANBAZHAGAN K DIVIK VIIIVARKAIII Harbour 1 Crore+ 1 Crore+ 37 Lacs+ 35% 106. PONNUSAMY K DMK DMK DMK Senthamangalam Sendamangalam 75,42,378 75 Lacs+ 39,10,600 36,31,778 36 Lacs+ 36 Lacs+ 36 Lacs+ 36 Lacs+ 36 Lacs+ 36 Lacs+ 43,21,625 8,14,698 35,06,927 430% 35,06,927 35 Lacs+ 43,0% 108. JAYAKUMAR D. AIADMK AIADMK Royapuram Royapuram 84,73,902 84 Lacs+ 51,69,018 33,04,884 51 Lacs+ 33 Lacs+ 64% 109. PALANISAMY RM INC INC Modakurichi Modakurichi 58,07,555 26,25,621 31,81,934 31 Lacs+ 31 Lacs+ 31 Lacs+ 121% 110. SENTHAMIZHAN.G AIADMK AIADMK Saidapet Saidapet 55,11,140 24,97,700 24,97,700 30,13,440 30 Lacs+ 121%	104.	D.Kavikumar	VCK	VCK	Kattumannarkon	Kattumannarkoli	47 Lacs+	9 Lacs+	38 Lacs+	424%
106. PONNUSAMY K DMK DMK Senthamangalam Sendamangalam 75,42,378 75 Lacs+ 39,10,600 36,31,778 39 Lacs+ 36 Lacs+ 93% 107. T.MAHESH KRISHNASAMY DMK DMK Orathanadu Thiruvonam 43,21,625 43 Lacs+ 8,14,698 35,06,927 35 Lacs+ 430% 108. JAYAKUMAR D. AIADMK AIADMK Royapuram Royapuram 84,73,902 84 Lacs+ 51,69,018 33,04,884 51 Lacs+ 33 Lacs+ 64% 109. PALANISAMY RM INC INC Modakurichi Modakurichi 58,07,555 58 Lacs+ 26,25,621 26 Lacs+ 31,81,934 31 Lacs+ 121% 110. SENTHAMIZHAN.G AIADMK AIADMK Saidapet Saidapet 55,11,140 24,97,700 24,97,700 24 Lacs+ 30,13,440 30 Lacs+ 121%	105	ANDAZHACANIK	DMI	DMAK	Villivaldom	Harbaur	1,48,06,771	1,11,00,202	37,06,569	220/
106. PONNOSAMY K DMK DMK Senthamangalam Sendamangalam 75 Lacs+ 39 Lacs+ 36 Lacs+ 93% 107. T.MAHESH KRISHNASAMY DMK DMK Orathanadu Thiruvonam 43,21,625 43 Lacs+ 8,14,698 8 Lacs+ 35,06,927 35 Lacs+ 430% 108. JAYAKUMAR D. AIADMK AIADMK Royapuram Royapuram 84,73,902 84 Lacs+ 51,69,018 51 Lacs+ 33,04,884 33 Lacs+ 64% 109. PALANISAMY RM INC INC Modakurichi Modakurichi 58,07,555 26,25,621 31,81,934 26 Lacs+ 31,81,934 31 Lacs+ 121% 110. SENTHAMIZHAN.G AIADMK AIADMK Saidapet Saidapet 55,11,140 24,97,700 24,97,700 24 Lacs+ 30,13,440 30 Lacs+ 121%	105.	ANBAZHAGAN K	DIVIK	DIVIK	VIIIIVAKKAITI	Harbour				33%
107. T.MAHESH KRISHNASAMY DMK DMK Orathanadu Thiruvonam 43,21,625 42,21,625 43,21,625 43,21,625 42,21	100	DONINI ICA NAVIV	DNAK	DNAK	Conthonononalon	Candanaanaalana	75,42,378	39,10,600	36,31,778	020/
107. KRISHNASAMY DMK DMK Oratnanadu Iniruvonam 43 Lacs+ 8 Lacs+ 35 Lacs+ 430% 108. JAYAKUMAR D. AIADMK AIADMK Royapuram Royapuram 84,73,902 51,69,018 33,04,884 33 Lacs+ 64% 109. PALANISAMY RM INC INC Modakurichi Modakurichi 58,07,555 26,25,621 31,81,934 121% 110. SENTHAMIZHAN.G AIADMK AIADMK Saidapet Saidapet 55,11,140 24,97,700 30,13,440 30 Lacs+ 121%	106.	PUNNUSAIVIY K	DIVIK	DIVIK	Senthamangalam	Sendamangalam	75 Lacs+	39 Lacs+	36 Lacs+	93%
108. JAYAKUMAR D. AIADMK AIADMK Royapuram Royapuram 84,73,902 84,1acs+ 35 Lacs+ 35 Lacs+ 35 Lacs+ 36,74,884 33 Lacs+ 109. PALANISAMY RM INC INC Modakurichi Modakurichi 58,07,555 26,25,621 31,81,934 31 Lacs+ 31	107	T.MAHESH	DMA	DIME	Orathanadu	Thirmonam	43,21,625	8,14,698	35,06,927	/200/
108. JAYAKUMAR D. AIADMK AIADMK Royapuram 84 Lacs+ 51 Lacs+ 33 Lacs+ 64% 109. PALANISAMY RM INC INC Modakurichi Modakurichi 58,07,555 26,25,621 31,81,934 31 Lacs+ 121% 110. SENTHAMIZHAN.G AIADMK AIADMK Saidapet Saidapet 55,11,140 24,97,700 30,13,440 121%	10/.	KRISHNASAMY	DIVIK	DIVIK	Orathanadu	Thiruvonam	43 Lacs+	8 Lacs+	35 Lacs+	430%
109. PALANISAMY RM INC INC Modakurichi Modakurichi 58,07,555 26,25,621 31,81,934 31 Lacs+ 121% 110. SENTHAMIZHAN.G AIADMK AIADMK Saidapet Saidapet 55,11,140 24,97,700 30,13,440 30 Lacs+ 121%	100	IVANTIMAD D	A LA DA AIZ	IKAJADMK Rovanuram Rovanuram	84,73,902	51,69,018	33,04,884	6.40/		
109. PALANISAMY RM INC INC Modakurichi Modakurichi 58 Lacs+ 26 Lacs+ 31 Lacs+ 121% 110. SENTHAMIZHAN.G AIADMK AIADMK Saidapet Saidapet 55,11,140 24,97,700 30,13,440 30 Lacs+ 121%	108.	JATANUIVIAN D.	AIADIVIK	AIADIVIK	πογαματατιτ	коуаригат	84 Lacs+	51 Lacs+	33 Lacs+	64%
110. SENTHAMIZHAN.G AIADMK AIADMK Saidapet Saidapet S5,11,140 24,97,700 30,13,440 55 Lacs+ 31 Lacs+ 121%	100	DALANICANAY DAA	INC	INIC	Modakkurish:	akkurichi Modakurichi	58,07,555	26,25,621	31,81,934	1210/
110. SENTHAMIZHAN.G AIADMK AIADMK Saidapet Saidapet 55 Lacs+ 24 Lacs+ 30 Lacs+ 121%	109.	PALAINISAIVIY KIVI	IIIC	INC	IVIOUAKKUITCIII		58 Lacs+	26 Lacs+	31 Lacs+	121%
55 Lacs+ 24 Lacs+ 30 Lacs+	110	CENTHANAIZHAN C	VIVDVAN	VIVDVAN	Caidanat	Caidanat	55,11,140	24,97,700	30,13,440	1210/
111. Subburam. RM. INC INC Thirumayam 50,44,800 23,85,326 26,59,474 111%	110.	JEN I HAIVIIZHAN.G	AIADIVIK	AIADIVIK	Saluapet	Saidapet	55 Lacs+	24 Lacs+	30 Lacs+	121%
	111.	Subburam. RM.	INC	INC	Thirumayam	Thirumayam	50,44,800	23,85,326	26,59,474	111%





	Association for Democratic Reforms						_		
S.No.	Name	Party in 2011	Party in 2006	Constituency in Tamil Nadu 2011	Constituency in 2006	Assets in 2011	Assets in 2006	Asset Increase	% Increase in Asset
						50 Lacs+	23 Lacs+	26 Lacs+	
112.	Selvi Ramajayam	AIADMK	AIADMK	Bhuvanagiri	Bhuvanagiri	38,87,376 38 Lacs+	17,03,495 17 Lacs+	21,83,881 21 Lacs+	128%
113.	R.CHINNASAMY	AIADMK	AIADMK	Singanallur	Singanallur	37,12,192 37 Lacs+	15,50,000 15 Lacs+	21,62,192 21 Lacs+	139%
114.	C. KARUPPASAMY	AIADMK	AIADMK	Sankarankovil	Sankaranayanarkoil	19,71,575 19 Lacs+	69,746 69 Thou+	19,01,829 19 Lacs+	2727%
115.	K. ULAGANATHAN	СРІ	СРІ	Thiruthuraipoondi	Tiruthuraipundi	15,78,286 15 Lacs+	37,539 37 Thou+	15,40,747 15 Lacs+	4104%
116.	PANNEERSELVAM.O	AIADMK	AIADMK	Bodinayakanur	Periyakulam	35,67,174 35 Lacs+	20,81,702 20 Lacs+	14,85,472 14 Lacs+	71%
117.	Chinnaraj	AIADMK	AIADMK	Mettuppalayam	Mettupalayam	22,49,254 22 Lacs+	9,20,000 9 Lacs+	13,29,254 13 Lacs+	144%
118.	VISWANATHAN R	AIADMK	AIADMK	Natham	Natham	1,15,43,019 1 Crore+	1,02,40,468 1 Crore+	13,02,551 13 Lacs+	13%
119.	MATHIVANAN U	DMK	DMK	Kilvelur	Tiruvarur	15,78,942 15 Lacs+	2,82,500 2 Lacs+	12,96,442 12 Lacs+	459%
120.	P Dilli Babu	CPI(M)	CPI(M)	Harur	Harur	12,42,602 12 Lacs+	82,355 82 Thou+	11,60,247 11 Lacs+	1409%
121.	ARUMUGAM K	PMK	PMK	Thiruporur	Chengalpattu	88,63,250 88 Lacs+	78,00,193 78 Lacs+	10,63,057 10 Lacs+	14%
122.	Leemarose	CPI(M)	CPI(M)	Vilavancode	Thiruvattar	8,48,049 8 Lacs+	3,35,454 3 Lacs+	5,12,595 5 Lacs+	153%
123.	K Bala Bharathy	CPI(M)	CPI(M)	Dindigul	Dindigul	6,15,161 6 Lacs+	6,83,420 6 Lacs+	-68,259	-10%
124.	M Rajasekaran	INC	INC	Musiri	Thottiam	29,56,466 29 Lacs+	45,53,500 45 Lacs+	-15,97,034	-35%
125.	G.K.Mani	PMK	PMK	Mettur	Mettur	24,44,759 24 Lacs+	64,80,227 64 Lacs+	-40,35,468	-62%
126.	Shanmugavelu	AIADMK	AIADMK	Madathukulam	Udumalpet	3,75,56,618 3 Crore+	4,51,63,243 4 Crore+	-76,06,625	-17%
127.	SIVANANDAM R	DMK	DMK	Arani	Arni	63,93,484 63 Lacs+	2,30,43,398 2 Crore+	-1,66,49,914	-72%
128.	Anitha R.Radhakrishnan	DMK	AIADMK	Tiruchendur	Tiruchendur	0	2,32,44,500 2 Crore+	-2,32,44,500	-100%

Table: - Asset comparison of re-contested MLAs

Average asset increase for re-contesting MLAs-Party wise

The table below provides the party-wise average asset growth of re-contested MLAs. Financial details of 61 MLAs of DMK were available from affidavits of 2006 Assembly Elections. These were matched with available affidavits of 2011 to reveal that the average asset increase for recontesting MLAs of DMK was Rs. 3.08 crores. The same procedure was followed for 27 MLAs from INC and it shows an average asset increase of Rs. 5.68 crores. Given below is the detail for seven parties who had re-contested MLAs in Tamil Nadu Assembly Elections 2011





S.No.	Party	Total Number of re- contested MLAs	Average Assets in Tamil Nadu 2011	Average Assets in Tamil Nadu Assembly Elections 2006	Average Asset Increase	Average % Increase in Asset
1.	DMK	61	4,94,10,248 4 Crore+	1,85,93,908 1 Crore+	3,08,16,340 3 Crore+	166%
2.	INC	27	7,88,08,990 7 Crore+	2,19,75,761 2 Crore+	5,68,33,229 5 Crore+	259%
3.	AIADMK	27	3,21,88,381 3 Crore+	1,48,16,257 1 Crore+	1,73,72,124 1 Crore+	117%
4.	PMK	6	1,13,85,609 1 Crore+	34,81,230 34 Lacs+	79,04,379 79 Lacs+	227%
5.	CPI(M)	3	9,01,937 9 Lacs+	3,67,076 3 Lacs+	5,34,861 5 Lacs+	146%
6.	СРІ	3	2,23,84,892 2 Crore+	15,72,221 15 Lacs+	2,08,12,671 2 Crore+	1324%
7.	VCK	1	47,19,496 47 Lacs+	9,01,156 9 Lacs+	38,18,340 38 Lacs+	424%
	GRAND TOTAL	128	4,80,76,935 4 Crore+	1,68,37,650 1 Crore+	3,12,39,285 3 Crore+	186%

Table: Average asset increase for re-contested MLAs-Party wise

LIST OF SERIOUS IPC SECTIONS CONSIDERED FOR THIS REPORT

IPC	IPC Description
121	Waging, or attempting to wage war, or abetting waging of war, against the Government of India
121A	Conspiracy to commit offences punishable by section 121
122	Collecting arms, etc., with intention of waging war against the Government of India
123	Concealing with intent to facilitate design to wage war
124	Assaulting President, Governor, etc., with intent to compel or restrain the exercise of any lawful power
124A	Sedition
	Promoting enmity between different groups on grounds of religion, race, place of birth, residence, language, etc., and doing acts prejudicial to maintenance of harmony
171B	Bribery
171C	Undue influence at elections
171D	Personation at elections
171E	Bribery
171F	undue influence or personation at an election
171G	False statement in connection with an election
171H	Illegal payments in connection with an election
171I	Failure to keep election accounts
172	Absconding to avoid service of summons or other proceeding
177	Furnishing false information
181	False statement on oath or affirmation to public servant or person authorized to administer an oath or affirmation
191	Giving false evidence
192	Fabricating false evidence





	Association for Democratic Reforms
IPC	IPC Description
193	false evidence
194	Giving or fabricating false evidence with intent to procure conviction of capital offence
195	Giving or fabricating false evidence with intent to procure conviction of offence punishable with imprisonment for
155	life or imprisonment
196	Using evidence known to be false
197	Issuing or signing false certificate
198	Using as true a certificate known to be false
230	Coin defined
231	Counterfeiting coin
232	Counterfeiting Indian coin
233	Making or selling instrument for counterfeiting coin
234	Making or selling instrument for counterfeiting Indian coin
235	Possession of instrument, or material for the purpose of using the same for counterfeiting coin
236	Abetting in India the counterfeiting out of India of coin
237	Import or export of counterfeit coin
238	Import or export of counterfeits of the India coin
239	Delivery of coin, possessed with knowledge that it is counterfeit
240	Delivery of Indian coin, possessed with knowledge that it is counterfeit
241	Delivery of coin as genuine, which, when first possessed, the deliverer did not know to be counterfeit
242	Possession of counterfeit coin by person who knew it to be counterfeit when he became possess thereof
243	Possession of Indian coin by person who knew it to be counterfeit when he became possessed thereof
244	Person employed in mint causing coin to be of different weight or composition from that fixed by law
245	Unlawfully taking coining instrument from mint
246	Fraudulently or dishonestly diminishing weight or altering composition of coin
247	Fraudulently or dishonestly diminishing weight or altering composition of Indian coin
248	Altering appearance of coin with intent that it shall pass as coin of different description
249	Altering appearance of India coin with intent that it shall pass as coin of different description
250	Delivery of coin, possessed with knowledge that it is altered
251	Delivery of Indian coin, possessed with knowledge that it is altered
252	Possession of coin by person who knew it to be altered when he became possessed thereof
253	Possession of Indian coin by person who knew it to be altered when he became possessed thereof
254	Delivery of coin as genuine, which, when first possess, the deliverer did not know to be altered
255	Counterfeiting Government stamp
256	Having possession of instrument or material for counterfeiting Government stamp
257	Making or selling instrument for counterfeiting Government stamp
258	Sale of counterfeit Government stamp
259	Having possession of counterfeit Government stamp
260	Using as genuine a Government stamp known to be a counterfeit
274	Adulteration of drugs
275	Sale of adulterated drugs
292	Sale, etc., or obscene books, etc.
292A	Printing etc. of grossly indecent or scurrilous matter or matter intended for blackmail
	·





	Association for Democratic Reforms
IPC	IPC Description
293	Sale, etc., of obscene objects to young person
294	Obscene acts and songs
295	Injuring or defiling place of worship with intent to insult the religion of any class
295A	Deliberate and malicious acts, intended to outrage religious feelings or any class by insulting its religion or religious beliefs
299	Culpable homicide
300	Murder
301	Culpable homicide by causing death of person other than person whose death was intended
302	Murder
303	murder by life-convict
304	culpable homicide not amounting to murder
304A	Causing death by negligence
304B	Dowery death
305	Abetment of suicide of child or insane person
306	Abetment of suicide
307	Attempt to murder
308	Attempt to commit culpable homicide
324	Voluntarily causing hurt by dangerous weapons or means
325	voluntarily causing grievous hurt
326	Voluntarily causing grievous hurt by dangerous weapons or means
343	Wrongful confinement for three or more days
344	Wrongful confinement for ten or more days
359	Kidnapping
360	Kidnapping from India
361	Kidnapping from lawful guardianship
362	Abduction
363	kidnapping
363A	Kidnapping or maiming a minor for purposes of begging
364	Kidnapping or abducting in order to murder
364A	Kidnapping for ransom, etc.
365	Kidnapping or abducting with intent secretly and wrongfully to confine person
366	Kidnapping, abducting or inducing woman to compel her marriage, etc.
366A	Procreation of minor girl
366B	Importation of girl from foreign country
367	Kidnapping or abducting in order to subject person to grievous hurt, slavery, etc.
368	Wrongfully concealing or keeping in confinement, kidnapped or abducted person
369	Kidnapping or abducting child under ten years with intent to steal from its person
370	Buying or disposing of any person as slave
371	Habitual dealing in slave
372	Selling minor for purposes of prostitution, etc.
373	Buying minor for purposes of prostitution, etc.
374	Unlawful compulsory labour





IPC	IPC Description
375	Rape
376	rape
378	Theft
379	theft
380	Theft in dwelling house, etc.
381	Theft by clerk or servant of property in possession of master
382	Theft after preparation made for causing death, hurt or restraint in order to the committing of the theft
383	Extortion
384	extortion
390	Robbery
391	Dacoity
392	robbery
393	Attempt to commit robbery
395	dacoity
396	Dacoity with murder

DISCLAIMER

All information about candidates, MLAs and Ministers in this report has been taken from the affidavits filed by candidates with their nomination papers. Copies of affidavits were obtained from the Election Commission (Website http://eci.nic.in) and CEO Tamil Nadu (http://ecotamilnadu.nic.in/). While all efforts have been made to ensure that the information is in keeping with what is mentioned in the affidavits, in case of discrepancy between information in this report and that given in the affidavits, the information reported in the affidavits filed by candidates should be treated as correct. Association for Democratic Reforms, Tamil Nadu Election Watch and their volunteers are not responsible or liable for any damage arising directly or indirectly from the publication of this report.

Background on Association for Democratic Reforms (ADR) and National Election Watch (NEW)

About ADR & NEW

Association for Democratic Reforms (ADR) was established in 1999 by group of professors from Indian Institute of Management (IIM) Ahmedabad. In 1999, a Public Interest Litigation (PIL) was filed by them with Delhi High Court asking the disclosure of criminal, financial and educational background of the candidates contesting elections. Based on this, the Supreme Court in 2002 and subsequently in 2003, made it mandatory for all candidates contesting elections to disclose Criminal, Financial and educational background prior to the polls by filing an affidavit with Election Commission.





The first election watch was conducted by ADR in 2002 for Gujrat Assembly Elections whereby detailed analysis of the backgrounds of candidates contesting elections was provided to the electorate in order to help the electorate make an informed choice during polls. Since then ADR has conducted Election Watches for almost all state and parliament elections in collaboration with the National Election Watch. It conducts multiple projects aimed at increasing transparency and accountability in the political and electoral system of the country.

Our Achievements

- ADR won the NASSCOM award for ICT led Innovation by Multi-stakeholder Partnerships. This award was for the Election Watch software of ADR and Webrosoft.
- ADR won two milestone judgments on disclosure of candidate's criminal and financial records from the Supreme Court in May 2002 and March 2003 respectively. Since then, 1200 NGOs from all over the country are supporting ADR and ADR in partnership with its partners has organized Citizen Election Watch for all major elections and disclosed candidate's background information to the media and the public.
- The Election Commission has completed a massive exercise based on the Gujarat Election Watch report to verify information filed by candidates in the nomination papers and affidavits, and has started proceedings against candidates with false declarations.
- A Bill on Electoral Expenses was passed in September 2003. The EC has asked candidates to file a statement of expenses in every three days during the campaign. This information is made available to citizens on request to Returning Officers, District Election Officers and the CEOs.
- Civil Society non-partisan Election Watches are springing up in different states. In the Lok Sabha 2004
 Elections, 19 States and 5 Union Territories carried out Election Watches. In the Lok Sabha 2009
 elections, Election Watches were held in all states and union territories in the country.
- Bihar Election Watch in October-November 2005 resulted in intense pressure on the Chief Minister
 designate due to the extensive media coverage of candidate's background. As a result, for the first
 time, Bihar has a Council of Ministers without any known criminal record.
- The Election Commission inaugurated Civil Society led National Conferences on Electoral Reforms in Ahmedabad, Banglore, Patna, Lucknow, Mumbai, Bhopal and Chennai. These Conferences were action oriented and resulted in successful Election Watch campaigns.
- The EC issued several very significant orders in the last two years relating to candidate disclosure, ensuring those affidavits are complete, taking action against false affidavits based on complaints, and disclosing electoral expenses.
- In April 2008, ADR obtained a landmark ruling from the Central Information Commission (CIC) saying that Income Tax Returns of Political Parties would now be available in the public domain along with the assessment orders.
- In the Karnataka Assembly Elections, 2008, there was a reduction in the number of candidates with serious offenses put up by parties. There were 93 such cases against candidates in the 2008 elections, down from 217 in the 2004 assembly elections.





- Overall, the percentage of candidates with pending criminal cases came down from 20% to 14% in the
 assembly elections held in the country in 2008 for the states of Rajasthan, Chhattisgarh, Madhya
 Pradesh, NCT of Delhi and Mizoram.
- A large number of candidates with serious pending cases that contested Lok Sabha 2009 elections like Pappu Yadav, Atiq Ahmed, Mukhtar Ansari, Akhilesh Singh, etc. lost.
- The number of total serious IPC sections against MPs decrease from 296 in Lok Sabha 2004 to 274 in Lok Sabha 2009.
- On Jan 25, 2010 both the Congress Chief Ms Sonia Gandhi and leader of opposition in Lok Sabha Ms Sushma Swaraj of BJP made public statements calling for a consensus on barring candidates with criminal backgrounds from contesting elections.
- On Feb 3, 2010 Prime Minister Manmohan Singh asked his Cabinet colleagues to disclose details of their assets and liabilities and refrain from dealing with the government on immovable property.
- Because of an RTI application that ADR has been following up with the CIC for nearly the past 2 years, the contribution reports of major political parties have been made public. Added to this is the fact that the Election Commission has taken proactive steps towards bringing in some level of accountability in the functioning of the political parties by getting the ICAI to develop reporting formats for political parties
- In May, 2010, the Chief Minister of Uttar Pradesh, Ms. Mayawati had announced the expulsion of about 500 party leaders with criminal past.
- In January 2011, the Election Commission of India entrusted the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) with the task of developing accounting format for political parties.
- Details of the movable and immovable assets of 30 Bihar ministers, including that of CM Nitish Kumar, were uploaded on the government website in January, 2011. It is seen as a step aimed at ending corruption promised by the Chief Minister himself.

Some eminent persons who are or have been involved with this initiative

- 1. Justice M.N. Venkatachaliah, Former Chief Justice of India
- 2. Justice Jeevan Reddy, Former Supreme Court Judge and Chairman of the Law Commission
- 3. Justice B.J. Divan, Former Chief Justice of the Gujarat High Court
- 4. (Late) Justice P.D. Desai, Former Chief Justice of the Gujarat High Court
- 5. Justice T.U. Mehta, Former Chief Justice of the Gujarat High Court
- 6. Mr. V. T. Shah, Former DG Police, Gujarat
- 7. Mr. Julio Rebeiro, Former DG Police, Maharashtra
- 8. Admiral Ram Tahiliani, Former Head of the Indian Navy, and President of Transparency International
- 9. Mr. J.M. Lyngdoh, Former Chief Election Commissioner of India
- 10. Mr. T.S. Krishnamurthy, Former Chief Election Commissioner of India
- 11. Mr. C G Somiah, Former Comptroller and Auditor General of India
- 12. Justice Shiva Shankar Bhatt, Former Justice of the Karnataka High Court
- 13. Late Mr. L.C. Jain, Former Member Planning Commission; Former High
- 14. Mr. T R Satish Chandran, Former Chief Secretary; Karnataka, Former Governor Goa
- 15. Dr. Samuel Paul, Former Director of IIM Ahmedabad
- 16. Dr. Narayan Sheth, Former Director of IIM Ahmedabad





- 17. Mr. Ramachandra Guha, Eminent Historian and columnist
- 18. Mr. P.S. Appu, IAS, Former Secretary to the Government of India
- 19. Mr. P.V. Shenoi, IAS, Former Secretary to the Government of India
- 20. Mr. K C Sivaramakrishnan, , Former Secretary to the Government of India
- 21. Mr. I.C. Dwivedi, Former DG Police, Uttar Pradesh
- 22. Justice Sachidanand Awasthi, Former Judge of the MP High Court
- 23. Mr. B.G. Deshmukh, Former Cabinet Secretary, Government of India
- 24. Justice Chandrashekhar Dharmadhikari, Former Justice of the Mumbai High Court
- 25. Mr. D.M. Sukhtankar, Former Chief Secretary; Maharashtra
- 26. Lt. Gen. Y.D. Sahasrabuddhe, Former Director General Army Service Corps
- 27. Justice S.C. Verma, Former Lokayukta U.P.
- 28. Justice Kamleshwar Nath, Former Judge of Allahabad High Court
- 29. Justice D.K. Trivedi, Former Judge of Allahabad High Court.
- 30. Shri R.C. Tripathi, Former Secy. Genl. Rajya Sabha
- 31. Shri S.A.T. Rizvi, Former Secy. Parliamentary Affairs, Govt. of India.
- 32. Prof. Banwari Lal Sharma, Formerly of Allahabad University
- 33. Prof. S.K. Agarwal, Former Vice Chancellor Agra University.
- 34. Dr. Bhumitra Former Vice Chancellor Gorakhpur and Ruhelkhand Universities.
- 35. Dr. Veer Bhadra Mishra, Retd. Prof, BHU
- 36. Prof. Waseem Barelwi, Renowned Urdu Poet and Social Activist
- 37. Shri Prakash Singh, Former DG BSF & DGP U.P
- 38. Shri Ram Arun, Former DGP, U.P.
- 39. Dr H.K. Paintal, Former Professor, Lucknow University
- 40. General(Retd) Shankar Roychowdhury, Former General, Indian Army
- 41. Ms Aruna Roy, founder member MKSS